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BOARD OF INQUIRY

FATAL ACCIDENT - 13 FEBRUARY 1986

24351430 -SERGEANT LYDEN D PARA

OPINION AND RECOMMENDATION OF GENERAL OFFICER COMMANDING
SOUTH WEST DISTRICT

1. I agree with my Deputy Commander's view that the Board of Inquiry was
conducted most thoroughly. Sergeant Lyden should never have died under
these circumstances: the accident was a direct result of neglect of the
rules of safety. Action has been taken against the 2 officers principally

concerned with its conduct. 1 endorse the Findings and Recommendations of
the Board.
2. However, the Inquiry into this accident raises a broader issue for

consideration which stems from our knowledge of other fatal and serious
accidents which have occurred largely, but not exclusively, on Infantry

field firing during the 3 years of my tenure of command. The common thread

is that they would not have occurred if the rules of conduct contained in
Infantry Training Manual, Volume 4 Pamphlet 21 had been adhered to. The

Board has looked carefully at this Pamphlet to see if there is any need for
amendment, but they have concluded that there is not. I accept this, although
it may help users in the field if a concise summary of the most important issues
was produced.

3. I am led to conclude that the disregard of safety rules, which can so
easily lead to death or injury, generally stems not from wilful negligence

but from a lack of experience and professionalism. By their very nature,
field firing exercises are dangerous and can result in serious accidents
unless conducting officers are entirely familiar with the appropriate
procedures and safety rules. It is therefore incumbent upon those responsible
for training officers in the planning and conduct of field firing that they are not
amly made aware of the regulations but they are brought up to date and
periodically practised. The Board has made Recommendations concerning training:
whilst I do not take issue with their Recommendations in so far as they go,

I note that they have not addressed the problem of keeping Infantry officers
up to date and practised in these very important skills. I understand that
almost all Infantry platoon commanders do achieve the qualifications necessary
to run these exercises but, bearing in mind that at the time of imstruction
they are young and inexperienced, that will seldom be beyond platoon level.

It is the competence of officers at the level of company commander and above
that concerns me; this is well illustrated by the circumstances of this
accident. In many cases officers appointed to command companies do so
following a substantial period away from regimental duty. It seems to me

that inadequate emphasis is given to this subject prior to their appointment
to command a company, and later a battalion. Indeed, they may have no formal
instruction after their initial course at the age of say 19 or 20.

4. These comments should be seen against the fact that there is in many

units a serious lack of expertise in the organisation of skill-at-arms

training - most seriously, even in some Infantry battalions. The Board

have concluded in this case that both the Commanding Officer and the

Company Commander concerned unintentionally disregarded the rules pertaining

to the use of the 2 inch Light Mortar on field firing. The fact that no-one
else said anything at the time suggests that all those in a position of
authority in that Battalion either did not know of the rules or disregarded them.



I suspect that this could have happened in many battalions. There were
also other serious breaches of safety on that Exercise, although they
did not -contribute to Sergeant Lyden's death.

5. From my experience in this appointment, I believe that every battalion
should have at least one field officer qualified in advanced skill-at-arms

training, including field firing. I therefore recommend that the Director

of Infantry should urgently review the structure of training in the conduct
and supervision of field firing up to battalion level.

6. In the meantime, I recognise that it will take time to complete such

a review and the implementation of its recommendations. I therefore endorse
the Recommendation of the Board that SASC Instructors should be attached to
Infantry battalions whilst training on live field firing areas overseas,
particularly where there is no suitably qualified senior Regimental officer.

7 April 1987 B M LANE
Major General
General Officer Commanding
South West District



BOARD OF INQUIRY

FATAL ACCIDENT - 13 FEBRUARY 1986
24351430 SERGEANT LYDEN D PARA
OPINION AND RECOMMENDATION OF
COMMANDER BULFORD GARRISON

1. I accept the opinions of the Board that Sergeant Lyden died as a result of a
fragment from a 2 inch Mortar HE bomb entering his heart. I also accept that a

bomb exploded some 3 feet above the ground and that this bomb was the direct cause
of the fatal accident.

2. I am satisfied that the current regulations for conducting live firing
exercises, as described in Infantry Training Manual Volume 4 Pamphlet Number 21
"Range Conduct and Safety Rules'" 1978 are comprehensive. I support the Board's
opinion that there is insufficient evidence to substantiate the view that the
climatic conditions and deep snow in Norway alter the danger areas of weapons.

3. I am concerned that during the preparation and planning of this exercise the
battalion not only failed to read and to apply the rules of Pamphlet 21 in

respect of the 2 inch Mortar, they also failed to observe the following safety
regulations:

a. To produce a safety trace incorporating the template danger areas of
all weapons used.

b. To employ unqualified safety supervisors without the necessary
authorisation by the Commanding Officer.

c. To brief and rehearse safety supervisors adequately and to equip them
suitably, for their task.

d. To apply the correct safety criteria in the siting and firing of
certain weapons.

4, To prevent a re-occurrence and to improve officers' awareness of the problems
of live firing, I support the Board's recommendation that the Commanding Officers'
(Designate) Course should include a period of revision on the planning and conduct
of live firing exercises. I also support the recommendation that the time spent
on the subject by the All Arms Tactics Course should be increased to one hour.

5. The Board's recommendation to attach an SASC adviser to battalions whilst
training on live firing exercises overseas, is attractive. However, not only

are such men scarce but also, I believe, that most Commanding Officers would
prefer to seek the advice of an officer from their own battalion, who has recently
trained in this field. I appreciate that the School of Infantry may have
difficulties in programming a course but I recommend a study is undertaken now of

the feasibility of such a course. In the meantime I recommend the attachment of
SASC advisers.



6. Whilst I am satisfied that Pamphlet 21 is comprehensive, I am of the opinion
that some method of drawing attention to the relevant paragraphs for the planning
and supervision of all live firing exercises is required. A short aide memoire
in addition to the index is all that is necessary. I so recommend.

7. I congratulate the Board for a thorough and detailed examination of the

accident. Their Findings, Opinion and Recommendations have been clearly
expressed.

M J EVANS
Brigadier
Commander Bulford Garrison

¢ March 1987



RESTRICTED

BOARD OF INQUIRY
CONVENING ORDER
BY
MAJOR GENERAL B M LANE CB OBE
GENERAL OFFICER COMMANDING SOUTH WEST DISTRICT

1. A Board of Inquiry composed as under will assemble at the Court Martial
Centre, Bulford at a time and date decided by the President to Investigate the
circumstances under which 24351430 Sergeant LYDEN D 1st Battalion The Parachute
Regiment lost his life during Exercise HARDFALL SOUTH whilst training with his
unit, 1st Battalion The Parachute Regiment at MJOLFJELL Valey, NORWAY, on 13
February 1986.

PRESIDENT: i IR

MEMBERS : B AL S

2. The Board is to investigate all the circumstances and record all evidence
relevant to the inquiry.

3. The evidence 1s to be taken on oath.

4, The Board is to report on the following matters.
a. The circumstances which resulted in the death of Sergeant LYDEN.
b. Were the regulations for the conduct of this type of training

adhered to?
5. The Board is to express an opinion:
a. How Sergeant LYDEN met his death.

b. Whether current regulations for running field firing exercises in
Norway require amendment in any way.

6. The Board is to record what action has been or will be taken to prevent a
recurrence and is to make any recommendations to this end.

7. The President is to direct which military witnesses are to attend.

8. The President's attention is drawn to the following special instructions:
a. Army Act 55 Section 135.
b. BI(A) Rules 1956.
C. QR 73 Chapter 4 Annex A.

d. Infantry Training Manual Volume IV Pamphlet 21 "Range Conduct and
Safety Rules" (with Amendment 7).

e. Ammunition and Explosive Regulations (Land Service) Volume 1
Pamphlet 11 (1984) Annex E Appendix E1.
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9. The President is to forward ten copies of the record of the proceedings
to G1 Branch Headquarters SOUTH WEST DISTRICT.

10. Administration.

a. Commanding Officer 1st Battalion The Parachute Regiment is to
liaise with Commanding Officer BATAU to ensure that the Court
Martial Centre BULFORD is suitably equipped for the inquiry, with
a supply of stationery, manuals regulations; and copies of the
following amended:

(1)  MML 1955 Part 1.
(2) QRs 1975.
(3) Infantry Training Manual Volume IV Pamphlet 21.

(4) Arms and Explosives Regulations (LS) Volume 1
Pamphlet 11 (1984)

(5) The Commanding Officers' Directive for Mountain and
Arctic Warfare for 1985/86.

(6) Maps and traces of the various weapons and safety areas
which should have been used.

b. He is to detail an orderly for duty during the inquiry.

=T m
Maj
for GOC

Bulford . Date & Feb 87
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SUMMARY SHEET

Unit: 1 PARA SRR - e

Board of Inquiry ' Major General B M Lane CB OBE GOC SWDIST
Convened by:

Terms of reference - Investigating the circumstances under which 24351430 Sergeant
LYDEN D 1st Battalion The Parachute Regiment lost his life during Exercise
HARDFALL SOUTH whilst training with his unit, 1st Battalion The Parachute Regiment
at MJOLFJELL Valley, Norway on 13 February 1986.

Date of occurrence 13 Feb 86
Date of assembly of inquiry 10 Feb 87
Date inquiry completed 17 Feb 87
References:

A, Headquarters Special Investigation Branch RMP UKLF 06022/6 dated 21 Oct 86.
B. HQ SIB RMP UKLF 06022/6 dated 20 Jan 87.
C

Infantry Training Volume I Platoon Weapons Pamphlet No 8 "The Light Mortar"
published 1966 Code No 70373.

D. Infantry Training Volume IV Pamphlet No 21 "Range Conduct and Safety Rules
(A1l Arms)" 1978 Code No 71080.

Opinion and recommendations of inquiry

1. The Board 1s of the opinion that Sergeant LYDEN was killed by a fragment of
a 2 inch mortar high explosive bomb. In all probability this fragment came from
a bomb fired by the mortar that he was crewing. The bomb detonated on striking
a small tree forward of his baseplate position.

2. The field firing in which Sergeant LYDEN was participating was not planned or
conducted in accordance with the regulations governing this type of exercise.

3. The Board recommends:

a. That a SASC adviser be attached to units intending to carry out
infantry field firing on ranges that lack an integral, British, range
saflety authority.

b. That the coverage of field firing given to company commanders on
the infantry special to arm briefing prior to the All Arms Tactics
Course be extended, and that a similar period be included in the
corresponding briefing prior to the Commanding Officers (Designate)
Course.

RESTRICTED



Opinion and

instructions of the

Proceedings forwarded to:

Headquarters
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Signed .evecesceocsceasoccosossssssassscscscessss
by the Authority of the Officer
authorized to sign for him
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G U VD A VRN S o ving been sworn,

states:

I am _ of the RMP SIB, stationed at Aldershot.

I was tasked on 17 February 1986 to conduct enquiries into the death
of Sergeant LYDEN 1 PARA, who died during a field firing exercise in
the MJOLFJELL Valley, Norway on 13 February 1986.

I produce copies of the relevant statements which I recorded during

that enquiry together with copies of the exhibits and documentary
evidence which I recovered.

P T February 1987

RMP (SIB)
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FINDINGS OF THE BOARD

THE CIRCUMSTANCES WHICH RESULTED IN THE DEATH OF SERGEANT LYDEN

1. Sergeant LYDEN met his death on Thu 13 Feb 86, at about 1400
hours, in a range accident on the MJOLFJELL ranges in NORWAY. As
a member of 2 Platoon, A Company, 1 PARA he was taking part in a
live firing company attack exercise when an explosion fatally
wounded him and injured 3 other soldiers.

2. The exercise was planned by —, who also
acted as the range safety officer, and was intended as the
culmination of 1 PARA's training in NORWAY. The CO had directed
that the exercise should be as demanding and realistic as
possible; with this instruction in mind (NP > 2nncd a
company level live firing exercise incorporating the use of all
support and platoon weapons. Within the basic framework of the
exercise each company was free to plan the attack, deploy and
support itself with company weapons, as officers commanding
companies saw fit.

3. Although neither written instruction nor overall safety trace
was produced a full scale conference and orders group were held at
battalion level prior to the exercise. Safety supervisors were
appointed by (N :d civen a detailed verbal briefing;
a reconnaissance of the MJOLFJELL range area was carried out.
However, not all those responsible for safety supervision on the
day of A Company's exercise attended this briefing or
reconnaissance. 1t is also apparent that not all the safety
supervisors were clear in their own minds as to their specific
responsibilities.

4, B and C Companies 1 PARA conducted the same exercise on 11
and 12 Feb 86 without incident. On 13 Feb Sergeant LYDEN as a
member of 2 Platoon A Company, the leading platoon, attacked the
first of the 3 objectives which the company were ordered to clear.
Sergeant LYDEN's specific responsibility, in addition to his
normal duties as platoon Sergeant, was to fire the platoon 2 inch
mortar, as required, to support attacks by his or any other
platoon. Specific instructions on this were given to Sergeant
LYDEN by his company commander (jiEKGTG_u.

5. During the course of the attack by A Company Sergeant LYDEN
deployed and began firing his 2 inch mortar. At this time he was
positioned on objective XII, GR 828372 and firing at objective
X13, GR 831370, His baseplate position was on hard packed snow
and there were some small trees in front of it but slightly to the
right. Assisted by (Gl :2s the No 1, (firer), of the
mortar Sergeant LYDEN had successfully fired 2 rounds of 2 inch
mortar high explosive, adjusting the fall of shot closer to his
target each time. It should be noted that the correct drills for
loading and firing the mortar were not being observed.

6. It is clear that a third round was loaded. Although (il has
no recollection of firing it subsequent inspection of the barrel
shows that the round must have left the mortar as designed, ie the
weapon had been fired.

7
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7. At this stage many witnesses describe an explosion
occurring some 3 feet above the ground in the area of

Sergeant LYDEN's position, generally indicafted as a ball of black
smoke. Immediately following this explosion it was apparent that
some form of accident had occurred. Sergeant LYDEN, b
and 2 other soldiers in the immediate vicinity of the 2 inch
mortar were found to have been injured. Sergeant LYDEN died
shortly afterwards. Investigation of the fragments taken from
his body, and those of the other injured soldiers, suggests them
to be shrapnel fragments from a 2 inch mortar bomb.

WERE THE REGULATIONS FOR THIS TYPE OF TRAINING ADHERED TO?

8. It appears that in their desire to make the company live
firing exercise as demanding and realistic as possible, many of
the regulations for the conduct of field firing were disregarded
by 1 PARA.

9. There is no doubt that if the specific regulation governing
the use of the 2 inch mortar on field firing had been observed,
Sergeant LYDEN would not have been killed. The use of 2 inch
mortar high explosive bombs on field firing exercises is
expressly forbidden by Reference C Paragraph 129 and Reference D
Paragraph 1262 ("Bombs are not to be fired on field firing
exercises"). This is a long standing rule, which has been in
force since at least 1966. Both the above references are
reproduced at Reference A, Annexes H and I.

10. Although the death and injuries sustained on the company
field firing exercise are attributable to the accident with the
2 inch mortar, the following additional serious breaches of
safety regulations should be noted:

a. Failure to produce a safety trace incorporating
the template danger areas of all weapons to be used.

b. Employment of unqualified safety supervisors
without the necessary authorisation by the
commanding officer.

C. Failure to brief and rehearse safety supervisors
adequately, and to equip them suitably, for their task.

d. Failure to apply the correct safety criteria in
the siting and firing of certain weapons.

11. While it is accepted that the nature of the MJOLFJELL ranges
allows considerable flexibility, imagination and initiative in
the planning of field firing, this fact should not be accepted as
an excuse for disregard of minimum safety standards. The 4
points above are highlighted for the following reasons:

a. Failure to Produce a Safety Trace. Without a
safety trace it is impossible to delineate the overall
danger area which an exercise encompasses. Such a
trace cannot be drawn unless the templates for the
individual weapons, which it is planned to fire, have
been applied to the map. The drawing and use of such

'8
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a trace does not restrict any field firing exercise, except
for reasons of safety.

b. Employment of Unqualified Supervisors. It is not
unusual for any field firing exercise to require a greater
number of safety supervisors than are School of Infantry
course qualified and available within a Battatlion.
However, ungualified safety supervisors must be formally
authorised. Such authorisation pre-supposes proper
training in their duties by a course qualified individual.
It is realised that the time required to complete such
formal authorisation will be hard to find, but in a
complex and demanding exercise, to curtail it is foolhardy.

c. - Failure to Brief Safety Supervisors Adequately.
There is nothing wrong with allowing a measure of tactical
free play within a field firing exercise but, if it is
intended to do so there 1s an increased need to brief and
rehearse safety supervisors in detail. Each supervisor
must be aware of the complete exercise plan and of the
inherent dangers 1n any course of action that the players
on the exercise might take. It is clear that although
briefings and reconnaissances were conducted before A
Company 1 PARA's fileld firing exercise, some safety
supervisors were insufficiently briefed, eg

d. Failure to Apply Weapon Safety Criteria.

(1) The lack of an overall trace suggests that
no individual weapon templates were applied. Any
briefing of the safety supervisors on danger areas
would be therefore, at best, imprecise.

(2) It is not possible from the evidence which
the Board has seen, to be definitive as to the
breaches of safety with individual weapons.
However, it would appear that:

(a) The rules for conducting overhead and
flanking small arms fire were largely
ignored and the resultant fire dangerous.

(b) Notwithstanding the ban on firing of

2 inch mortar high explosive, the use of the
light mortar on field firing in these
conditions was particularly risky.

12. Finally, overall control of the exercise appears to have been
less than satisfactory. Inadequate provision was made for stopping
the exercise in the event of an emergency. Although radios were
provided and a safety net established, some radios were not working
and there was insufficient issue of red Verey cartridges. Neither
does it seem to have been clear to af least one safety supervisor
what constituted an emergency. Given these shortcomings, when an
accident occurred at the waterfall it was inevitable that a certain
amount of confusion arose, and that safety supervisors left the
groups for whom they were responsible while the live firing

9
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WHETHER CURRENT REGULATIONS FOR RUNNING FIELD FIRING EXERCISES
IN NORWAY REQUIRE AMENDMENT IN ANY WAY

16. The Board is of the opinion that:

a. The current regulations for running field firing
exercises, as laid down in Infantry Training Volume 4
Pamphlet Number 21 "Range Conduct and Safety Rules"
1978 are comprehensive. They are applicable world
wide, contain the basic rules for the safe conduct of
field firing, and require no amendment as a result of
this accident.

b. Common sense must be used in interpreting Pamphlet
21 1in accordance with any local range standing orders
and the experience of the soldiers being exercised.

This is the prerogative of the commanding officer.
However, it must be remembered that the pamphlet is
written to avoid accidents and the rules guard against
what is possible based on scientific experiment and the
recommendations of many boards of inquiry into accidents.

C. The suggestion that the climatic conditions and deep
snow in Norway alters the danger areas of weapons in any
way, cannot be substantiated.

WHAT ACTION HAS BEEN OR WILL BE TAKEN TO PREVENT A RECURRENCE

17. Immediately after the accident a worldwide ban was imposed on

the firing of 2 inch mortar high explosive by the Directorate of
Land Service Ammunition (DLSA) and a thorough investigation was
conducted. The findings of this board of inquiry and its
recommendations are the culmination of that investigation.

18. The Board considered the need to remind those about to
command infantry companies and battalions of the rules for field
firing and believe that detailed and lengthy revision

is unnecessary.

19. The Infantry phase of the All Arms Tactics Course contains
a brief reminder on the regulations for this type of training.
At only 15 minutes this is too short, but to extend it beyond an
hour is not considered to be of merit because:

a. Some "first tour" company commanders do not attend
the course. It is not yet all embracing in this respect.

b. Battalion seconds in command are the officers
directly responsible for training, but they do not
complete the course prior to assuming their appointments,
nor could the course size accommodate them.

C. To cover the subject in detail would take several
days in an already crowded programme.

1
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20. The Infantry phase of the Commanding Officers (Designate)
course could include a similar refresher period. The combination
of these measures should ensure that those in a position of
responsibility for the safe conduct of this type of training are
fully aware of their duties.

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE BOARD

217. The ban on the firing of 2 inch mortar high explosive should
be lifted.

22. Pamphlet 21 is a comprehensive reference book with a clear
index. There is no need to revise or amend it, nor to produce a
simplified aide memoire. The scale of issue to an infantry
battalion is such that the pamphlet is readily available to those
who need to consult it.

23. Certain ranges and training areas used by the British Army
do not have integral range safety personnel such as will be
found at SENNYBRIDGE or SENNELAGER; MJOLFJELL is such a range.
Other examples are in BELIZE, the Falkland Islands, BRUNEI and
KENYA. The Board recommends that, to prevent exercise incidents
resulting from ignorance or disregard of Pamphlet 21, a SASC
adviser of at least warrant officer rank is attached to any unit
undertaking overseas training involving infantry field firing on
such ranges. It is understood by the Board that this system
already operates with the Gurkha Infantry Brigade units on
exercise in BRUNEI. The Board also notes that it is normal
practice for armoured and artillery units conducting complex
field firing to be assisted by instructors from the appropriate
Arms Schools, and that such advisers were present in Feb 86 on
Exercise HARDFALL.

24. The Infantry special to arm phases of the All Arms Tactics
Course and Commanding Officers (Designate) course should contain
revision periods on the regulations for conducting field

firing. There is no requirement for these to exceed one hour.
This last recommendation is made because, in the opinion of the

Board, Sergeant LYDEN's death resulted as much from disregard of
the rules in Pamphlet 21 as from any professed ignorance of them.

PRESIDENT

MEMBER

MEMBER

MEMBER

MEMBER

i‘r T, O
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SPECIAL INVESTIGATION BRANCH RMP (UK)

Southern Region
Provost Barracks Maida Road Aldershot Hants GU11 2DN

Telephone 0252-24431 ext -

Your reference

See Distribution Qur reference 06022/6

Ny
Date 2}\) Jan 87

SPECIAL INVESTIGATION

References:

AGATI Vol 2 Chap 62.

Manual of Army Security Vol III, Ch 5, Sect IT.
Initial Case Report 06022/6 dated 21 Feb 86.
Interim Report 06022/6 dated 27 Feb 86.

Final Report 06022/6 dated 21 Oct 86.
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: S Forenames: WS
Service No: - Rank: e

Type of Engagement: - Height:
Date & Place of Birth: i
Full Unit Address: 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford, Wilts.
Date to leave a.Command: May 87 b. Service: Open
This statement,(consisting of pages each signed by me) is true to the

best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which T know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 6th day of January 1987 Signed: GGG

T am ” an officer at present serving with 1 PARA,
Bulford. I currently hold the appointment of Adjutant and have done since
May 86.

I have today extracted from the unit files a copy of Instructions
issued on 7 Jan 86 for Ex 'HARDFALL 86' signed under the auspices of the
then Commanding Officer (il P I have handed a copy of those
instructions to — RMP (SIB) who has labelled them as
exhibit ACPK/3 and 1 have signed that label.

Signed: RN

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1410 hrs on
Tue 6 Jan 87 at Bulford.

Signed:

RMP (SIB)

1=
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STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: e Forenames: NS

Service No: B ] Rank:
Type of Engagement: e Height:
Date & Place of Birth: {—
Full Unit Address: Aldershot Det SIB RMP UKLF, Maida Road, Aldershot,
Hants.
Date to leave a.Command: Sep 87 b. Service: Sep 87
This statement,(cenststing of  pages—each signed by me) is true to the

best of my knowledge and belief and T make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, T shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be e .

Dated the [q, dav of CT§V\ 1987  Signe
1 an N - ¢ "o Special lavestigarion

Branch, Roval Military Police at present serving with my unit in
Aldershot.

At Bulford on Tue 6 Jan 87, I received from (s, :dic !

PARA, a copy of Ex Instructions for Ex 'HARDFALL 86'. T labelled these
instructions as exhibit ACPX/3, sizned the label and retained them in my
possession.

Those ianstructions I now produce.

Sign

RMP (SIB)

STAFY IN CONFIDENCE



STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

Case No:

06022/6

Surname:

Service No:

Full Unit Add

Date to leave

— Forenames:

Tt doioas .
it Rank: r

Type of Engagement: _ Height:
Date & Place of Birth:_

ress: Aldershot Det SIB RMP UKLF, Maida Road, Aldershot,
Hants.
a.Command: Sep 87 b. Service: Sep 87

. . , / . .
This statement,(consisting of ' pages each signed bv me) is true
- f) < ie -

best of my kn
in evidence,

anvthing which T know to be false or do not believe to bhe true.

Dated the 3 day of// A ]9§7- Signed:

to the

owledge and belief and T make it knowing that, if it is tenderved

T shall be liable to prosecution if T have wilfully stated

I an s ¢ i Special Investication

Branch, Roval
Aldershot.

hetween 1

recognise, afte

Military Police at present serving with my unit in

s}
3
4
interviewed G D 1./PARA ~ whom T can
r

caution. Throughout the interview T maintained a

in it

Dec 86 at the Joint Service DNefence College, Greenwich,
520 hrs and 1605 hrs = 1700 hrs in the presence of il

contemnoraneous record of the questions asked and answers given. At the

conclusion of
interview.

the interview read over and signed the record

G -0 ro:d over and signed the record.

On Tue

wished to add

of

23 Dec 86 at the SIB Office Aldershot about 1640 hrs I was
approached by QN ~hon I can recognise who explained that he

something to the record of his previous interview. I

cautioned the Officer and made a written record of his verbal comments,

which he read

Those

over and signed., The interview terminated at 1652 hrs.

records I now produce.

RMP (SIB)

STAFY IN CONFIDENCE



STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

STATEMENT

Case No: 06022/6

Surname: Forenames:

Service No: ) Rank:

Type of Engagement: Height:

e T ——

Full Unit Address: Aldershot Det SIB RMP UKLF, Maida Road, Aldershot, Hants
Date to leave a.Command: Aug 87 b. Service: Aug 91
This statement, comststimg—of pages—each—stgmed—by—me) is true to the

hest of my knowledge and belief and T make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which T know to be false or do not believe to begtrue.

2%(’:& day of Qﬁ'&wm 1986 Signed:

Dated th

[

I an a(j® in the Royal Military Police currently serving as
the Officer Commanding Southnern Region SIB RMP UKLF in Aldershot.

Between 1147 hrs and 1700 hrs on Mon 22 Dec 86 at the JSDC
Greenwich, I was present when RMP (SIB) carried out an
interview after caution with , who T can
recognise.

Throughout that interview— made a contemporaneous
record of the questions he asked the Officer and of his replies which at

the end of the interview, he read over, agreed with and signed.

I also read over the record of interview and signed it.

RP

-

STAFF IN CONFIDENCE



MOD Form 811C

(Edn 7/86)
SERVICE POLICE
RECORD OF INTERVIEW
CASE REF NUMBER: 06022/6

PART 1
INTERVIEW OF
Number: L] Rank/Status: @l Surname : il
Forenames: (NN
Date & Place of Birth: I Colour of Eyes:
Ship/Regt/Corps/Unit: PARA, Colour of Hair:

Joint Service Defence

College, Sex:

Greenwich.

Height:

INTERVIEWED BY
Number: (S Rank/Status: P Surname : NN

Forenanes: (M

Unit & Address: Aldershot Det SIB RMP UKLF, Maida Rd, Aldershot,

" PERSONS PRESENT

Rank/Status Name/Initials In What Capacity
— PR RMP SIB Officer
INTERVIEW

Place: JSDC, Greenwich

Date: 22 Dec 86 Time Started: 1147 hours

Hants.

Witnessed by the Service Police: VG

Signed: g



ARREST

Prior to Interview — Place: Date: Time: hours

By Number: Rank: Name:

PART 2

I an N -d this is QR of the Special

Investigation Branch Royal Military Police. We are making
inquiries into the death of Sgt Lyden 1 PARA on 13 Feb 86 in
Norway .

I am going to ask you some questions, but before I do, I must
caution you that you do not have to say anything unless you wish
to do so, but what you say may be given in evidence.

Time: 1148 hours

You now have the right to:

a. *Legal advice. (If being interviewed about a serious
service offence).

b. Request the presence of an observer at the interview.

c . *Leave the interview unless you are in arrest or I
decide there are sufficient grounds to arrest you.

d. Consult the Service Police Codes of Practice when
practicable.

You may exercise any of these rights now, but if you do not, you
may do so later during the course of this interview.

* Delete if inapplicable

Witnessed by the Service Police: (D
ST
Signed: (I



HANDOVER 'NOTICE TO SUSPECT"
Record any reply:
Time: 1149 hours

Ask the suspect the following questions. Record any reply.
1. *Do you wish to consult a legal adviser now? Time: 1151 hrs

"I do not want to have a legal advisor but I do want to make the
point that this has been badly set up in that I had not been warned that
this interview would be under caution. Had T wished a legal advisor
present forewarning would have been a sensible and indeed courteous
precaution.”

2. *Do you wish to have a legal adviser present now? "No."
Time: 1156 hours

3. Do you wish to have an observer present now? "No."
Time: 1156 hours

(If YES, it is the responsibility of the service police to assist the
suspect to exercise the option(s)).

*Tf NO/NOT NOW to either 1 and/or 2 ask: "Do you agree to commence the
interview without a legal adviser present?”: Record any reply: "Yes.”

CERTIFICATION BY SUSPECT

] G ccrtify that I have been told of my rights and
understand them. I have received a copy of MOD Form 811A entitled:
*Notice to Suspect®and I*¥ DO NOT want legal advice at this

point.

Signature: (i D Date: 22 Dec 86 Time: 1157 hours

Witnessed by the Service Police: il
Signed: WD



TO BE COMPLETED BY THE SERVICE POLICE

Detalls concerning the Legal Adviser,

should be recorded as indicated below:

a. Legal Adviser(s).
hours.

Name:
Address:

Telephone:
Time Contacted:

Result:

Time of Arrival:

Remarks:

First Choice

Observer and Appropriate Adult

Record time when arrangements

Alternative (1)

started

Alternative (2)

b. Observer{s)Record time when arrangements started:
hours

Name:
Address:

Telephone:
Time Contacted:

Result:

Time of Arrival:

Remarks:

First Choice

Alternative (1)

Alternative (2)

Signed: D

Witnessed by the Service Police: NNy



c. Appropriate Adult
Name :
Time when notified interview is to take place:
Time of arrival:

Time when suspect cautioned in the presence of the Appropriate
Adult:

Signed by Appropriate Adult:
Witnessed by the Service Policeman:

Remarks:

PART 3
LEGAL ADVISER DELAYED
If the right to consult or the request for the presence of a legal

adviser 1s delayed record the reason(s) and the identity of the
authorising officer below:

PART 4

INFORMATION TO SUSPECT ON INTERVIEW PROCEDURE

* When the interview is to be tape recorded say to the suspect:

"The remainder of the interview will be tape recorded. I am now

going to insert two tapes and place them in the tape recorder and
commence to record”.

*Where a written contemporaneous record is to be made say to the
suspect:

"During this interview *I will make a record of the questions asked
and the replies given. A record of events will also be made, such
as breaks for refreshment, as requested by the Codes of Practice.

At the end of the interview, you will be given the opportunity to
read over and sign the Record. If you consider it to be inaccurate,

you may make a note on the Record accordingly.”

*Delete if inapplicable

Witnessed by the Service Police:
R R

Signed: _



CONTINUATION SHEET

MOD Form 811D

Case Ref Number: 06022/6

Record of Interview of: G *.RA

Time
When

Line

Appropriate

Record of Interview

Ql
Al.

02.

A2.

Q3.

A3 .

"What appointment did you hold on 13 Feb 867"
"Commanding Officer 1 PARA?"

"At that time your unit was taking part in Ex
Hardfall. Did you issue any written orders
regarding the live firing company exercises
conducted over the period of 11 - 13 Feb 867"

"A comprehensive written instruction dealing with
Exercise Hardfall as whole was issued by the Bn 2
I/C. Within this instruction reference was made
to the company exercises at the conclusion of the
company training phase. I cannot be specific as
to detail, but no doubt the document remains on
file. Additionally I issued under my own
signature a training directive for Ex Hardfall. I
do not have a copy to hand but general reference
was made to the company exercise. This document
will also be on file with 1 PARA.

"What orders did you give for the writing of the
exercise and what were its terms of reference with
specific regard to the live firing company
exercises?”

"As on the previous 2 Exercises Hardfall (1984 and
1985) T decided that the climax to the Company
training phase was to be a demanding and
challenging dry and live firing exercise to ensure
that the company groups of 1 PARA were fit in
every way for their Artic role. To this end I
devised a 48 hrs exercise which commenced with a
parachute insertation, a dry phase of just:under
24 hrs and a final live firing phase. The dry

phase was run by the new Bn 2 I/C (I
I tasked yMSNNNND o plan and supervise
the live firing exercise. (il D h:2:0 run

a similar live firing exercise to my complete
satisfaction on Exercise Hardfall 85. Yl

discussed an outline for the live firing
phase with me, T think before leaving UK. Once in
Norway we skied the ground in some

Signed:

e 0

Witnessed by the Service Police: G
Weqy, ATHR

-10-=2



CONTINUATION SHEET

MOD Form 811D

Case Ref Number: 06022/6

Record of Interview of: (il NS P AR A

Time
When

Line

Appropriate

Record of Interview

1250 hrs Coffee.

Q4 -

detail. U (-ronstrated to me the

general scheme of manoeuvre he proposed, with
which I was content. I told him then to go
ahead and plan it in detail. "Terms of
reference” is an odd phrase to use in
connection with a field firing exercise. The

object of the exercise was to provide the

Battalion's sub-units with the opportunity of
rehearsing a full scale company group attack in
the Artic. Although ambitious, nothing else in
my opinion, would have been sufficient to meet
my prime responsibility of ensuring the
Battalion's readiness for war. The style and
conduct of the exercise were gone into at
considerable length and in great detail at a
full battalion O Group held before the 3
exercises took place."”

"What orders did you give in respect of the
conduct of the exercise and the employment of
weapons systems?”

"I have already described the manner in which
the exercise was planned. As to conduct, I
directed that the range organisation, including
safety staff, was to be formed basically from
uninvolved members of Sp Coy under its Company
Commander ¢ P The training
programme was intensive during this week and in
addition it was necessary to use all available
personnel within the battalion to help Sp Coy
out . The division of responsibility between
the range organization and the particular
company being exercised I laid down as follows;
The general scheme of manoeuvre which I had
approved could not be altered by the Company
Commander being exercised, but within that
constraint his detailed deployment and pace
were for him to decide. I have already stated
that the object of the exercise was to put each
company group through a full scale attack. The
weapon systems involved therefore were small
arms, grenades and platoon weapons from within

Signed:

Witnessed by the Service Police: (INNNND
B vt

-11=



CONTINUATION SHEET

MOD Form 811D

Case Ref Number: 06022/6

Record of Interview of: (Y PR A

Time
When

Line

Appropriate

Record of Interview

Q5 .

AS.

the rifle companies, and 8lmm mortars and
Milan from Sp Coy. Additionally FGA and armed
helicopters were worked into the exercise and
had our affiliated 105mm gun battery been
available I would also have included that
weapon system. I discussed the employment of
the various weapons systems with (i)
as I wanted to be satisfied that the exercise
could safely achieve its objective. I remember
being particularly concerned about the 8lmm

mortar and Milan, Gl 25 able to

safisfy me on these points.”

"What orders did you give regarding safety and
in particular in respect of the 2 inch
mortar?”

"On the question of safety I had a number of
discussions with G j | NS [ did not lay
down any orders per sa as 1 was not in a
position to do so; there were many concurrent
activities going on in the battalion which
required my attention and there was no
guarantee that I could be physically present at
each of the 3 live firing attacks (Due to
non-flying weather, for example). As I have
already indicated, i D -: the
conducting officer satisfied me in discussion
that he had thought through the safety aspect
and I respected the judgement of this
experienced officer. At the Battalion 'O!
Group I have already mentioned safety was gone
into at length and I accepted

assurances that the safety supervisors had been
allocated in conjunction with the Bn 2I/C, and
had been or would be briefed. ' The history of
the involvement of the 2 inch mortar in the
exercise is as follows; Before going to
Norway, the then ZI/C— informed
me that although no 5lmm ammunition was
available, the Battalion would be provided with
2 inch ammunition HE end smoke and the 2 inch
mortars from which to fire it on Ex Hardfall.

Signed:

Witnessed by the Service Police: GEllENNED
Wb 3 e

-12-



CONTINUATION SHEET

MOD Form 811D

Case Ref Number: 06022/6

Record of Interview of: PARA

Time
When

Line

Appropriate

Record of Interview

Q6 .

Ab .

The allocation of 2 inch ammunition along with
all other natures was published in the main
Hardfall instruction. As far as I can
remember, an allotment of 2 inch HE was made in
the allocation for the live firing exercise.
Once in Norway there was concern that the 2
inch would produce an unacceptable number of
blinds due to the age of the ammunition and to
the depth of snow coverage. During our range
recce, QI G 2] [ fired a
number, about 10, of 2 inch HE and smoke to
evaluate this concern. The smoke rounds were
ineffective in the snow and it was decided not
to make any further use of them. The HE rounds
all detonated, and we noted the greatly reduced
effect due to the snow. This concern (over
blinds) was therefore allayed. Prior to the
exercise under investigation, the 2 inch mortar
was used by the rifle companies with their own
training. At no time was I made aware of the
provisions of Pamphlet 21 regarding 2 inch HE
ammunition. It is also my firm belief that
nobody else in the Battalion knew that use of
the 2 inch mortar with HE bombs was in
contravention of the regulations. I cannot
believe that any Officer or SNCO who was so
aware would have allowed the exercise to
progress without bringing this point to the
notice of \GNjjj D -~d vltimately myself.
Since the 2 inch/5lmm mortar is not often fired
live and since it is a hand-held weapon I did
direct as an additional safety precaution that
it was only to be fired by SNCOs."

"Are there any other points you wish to bring
out?"

"Having answered the specific questions posed
by the HQ SW Dist there several additional

points I wish to make. Firstly, it is clear
that the provisions of Pamphlet 21 regarding
the use of the 2 inch mortar were not at all
commonly known. I have already indicated my

Signed:

Witnessed by the Service Police: ()
Y RRBARERY

-13-



MOD Form 811D

CONTINUATION SHEET

Case Ref Number: 06022/6

Record of Interview of: (NGNS ©ARA

Time
When Line ; Record of Interview
Appropriate

belief that had any Officer or SNCO in the
battalion known that particular regulation he
would have brought it up. Furthermore, none of
the many other personnel from outside the
Battalion who were involved with or who watched
the exercise or any of its 3 runs made any
comment regarding the use of 2 inch HE.
Secondly, 1if I or any of the Company Commanders
had knowingly contravened regulations it 1is at
least rather unlikely that high ranking
observers from C in C NORTH downwards would
have been invited to observe the exercise and
welcomed in the way they were. Thirdly, I
have known and worked with (il 8 P - <
G for many years. I know them both to be
highly professional and motivated soldiers.
high ability has been recognised
by his selection for promotion to Lt Col at an
early age. QY ::cscrvedly has the
reputation of being a most competent and
effective trainer. I have seen him run several
similar live firing exercises and they have
always been a model of this form of training.
Indeed, on at least 2 occasions his work in
this field has been observed by the GOC SW Dist
who subsequently commeunted most favourably on
what he had seen and on
ability. It will be clear, therefore, that
there were no grounds whatsoever for me in
anyway to suspect the judgement of either P
or GNJIN, nor for me to suspect
that the exercise under investigation was in
breach of the Pamphlet. Fourthly, the exercise
under investigation was the last of 3 runs. I
. had watched the previous 2 along with other
gsenior observers. My opinion was that the
exercise provided realistic battle training
without prejudice to safety; this opinion was
entirely borne out by the remarks of the
observers, all of whom were most complimentary
and none of whom made any adverse comment
regarding safety. Finally, whilst I
acknowledge the breach of the Pamphlet

Witnessed by the Service Police: ﬁ_—“
WS b

Signed: (U

A



CONTINUATION SHEET

MOD Form 811D

Case Ref Number: 06022/6

Record of Interview of: (il P ARA

Time
When

Line

Appropriate

Record of Interview

Q7.

A7.

Q8.

A8 .

1454 hrs

1520 hrs

1605 hrs Q9.

nonetheless it is apparent to me that if the
explosion was caused by defective ammunition or
an error of drill it 1s quite possible that the
accident could still have occurred even 1if the
Pamphlet had been followed to the letter.”

"Do you wish to make any form of written
statement regarding this matter?”

"I've already done so.'

"You are now given the opportunity to read over
the record of interview. As you do so, would
you sign the bottom of each page, indicating
that you have read it, agreed with the

contents and make a note against anything you
consider to be inaccurate. You are also
invited to place your initials against each
question and answer. Do you wish to read the
record of interview?”

Yes.

Record handed over.

Interview terminated in order that G

could collect his wife from the station.

"T must remind you that you do not have to say
anything unless you wish to do so, but what you
say may be given in evidence.”

"Having read through the record I believe it
both relevant and important to emphasize
certain points and place the exercise 1in
context. Whilst as I have said I acknowledge
the breach of the Pamphlet I am quite satisfied
that it was unwitting and not deliberate on any
persons part. I had no reason to doubt either
of the Company Commander's judgement and I am

Signed:

Witnessed by the Service Police: VNN
WIS L

-15-



CONTINUATION SHEET

MOD Form 811D

Case Ref Number: 06022/6

Record of Interview of: PARA

Time
When
Appropriate

Line

Record of Interview

1640 hrs

certain that neither knowingly breached the
regulations. In other other words, I expected
and required the exercise to run safely and Qi
G . U bclieved in good faith
that they were so doing. Had the relevant
regulation been brought to my notice then T
would have deleted the 2 inch mortar from the
exercise; exactly the same can be said of WP
TS - GNP [ deeply regret Sgt
Lyden's death and it will be a continuing
source of sorrow to me. But, having said that,
I firmly believe that all risk cannot be
eradicated from proper training for war,
despite the best intentions of professional and
conscientious Officers and SNCOs."

Repeat question Q8.

“"Yes.'

Record handed over.

I G, 'ove read over the

Record of Interview consisting of 14 pages. 1

have indicated where it is inaccurate. I have
signed each page.
Signed: D
1700 hrs
22 Dec 86

Signed: il

Witnessed by the Service Police: G SRENND

-16-



MOD Form 811C

(Edn 7/86)
SERVICE POLICE
RECORD OF INTERVIEW
CASE REF NUMBER: 06022/6
PART 1 ‘
INTERVIEW OF
Number: B Rank/Status: D Surname : QN

Forename s: Gll———

Date & Place of Birth: NSNS Colour of Eyes: g
Ship/Regt/Corps/Unit: PARA, Colour of Hair: ~
Joint Service Defence
College, Sex: S
Greenwich.
Height: L]
INTERVIEWED BY
Number: W Qa6ANE Rank/Status: Gl Surname: G

Forenazme s: GGGl

Unit & Address: Aldershot Det SIB RMP UKLF, Maida Rd, Aldershot, Hants.

PERSONS PRESENT

Rank/Status Name/Initials In What Capacity

INTERVIEW

Place: SIB Office Aldershot

Date: 23 Dec 86 Time Started: 1640 hours

Witnessed by the Service Police: (N
W T
signed: GG

- 17~



ARREST

Prior to Interview - Place: Date: Time: hours

By Number: Rank: Name:

PART 2

I am QMR of the SIB RMP. T understand you wish to speak
to me but before you do I must caution you that you do not have to
say anything unless you wish to do so, but what you say may be
given in evidence.

Time: 1640 hours

You now have the right to:

a. *Legal advice. (If being interviewed about a serious
service offence). ‘

b. Request the presence of an observer at the interview.

C . *Leave the interview unless you are in arrest or I
decide there are sufficient grounds to arrest you.

d. Consult the Service Police Codes of Practice when
practicable.

You may exercise any of these rights now, but if you do not, you
may do so later during the course of this interview.

* Delete if inapplicable

Witnessed by the Service Police: U
Signed: D

-18-



HANDOVER 'NOTICE TO SUSPECT"

Record any reply:

Time: 1641 hours

Ask the suspect the following questions. Record any reply.

1. *Do you wish to consult a legal adviser now?
No Time: 1641 hours

2. *Do you wish to have a legal adviser present now?
No Time: 1642 hours

3. Do you wish to have an observe present now?
No Time: 1642 hours

(If YES, it 1s the responsibility of the service police to assist the
suspect to exercise the option(s)).

*Tf NO/NOT NOW to either 1 and/or 2 ask: "Do you agree to commence the
interview without a legal adviser present?”: Record any reply: Yes.

CERTIFICATION BY SUSPECT

] R c-rcify that I have been told of my rights and

understand them. I have recived a copy of MOD Form 811A entitled:
"Notice to Suspect'and T DO NOT want legal advice at this
point.

Signature: (N Date: 23 Dec 86 Time: 1644 hours.

Witnessed by the Service Police: (il liinul
Signed: WD

~19-



TO BE COMPLETED BY THE SERVICE POLICE
Details concerning the Legal Adviser, Observer and Appropriate Adult
should be recorded as indicated below:

a. Legal Adviser(s). Record time when arrangements started
hours.

First Choice Altermative (1) Alternative (2)

Name:
Address:

Telephone:
Time Contacted:

Result:
Time of Arrival:

Remarks:

b. Observer(s)Record time when arrangements started:
hours

First Choice Alternative (1) Alternative (2)

Name:
Address:

Telephone:
Time Contacted:

Result:
Time of Arrival:

Remarks:

Witnessed by the Service Police: —
Signed: N

-20-



c. Appropriate Adult
Name :
Time when notified interview is to take place:
Time of arrival:

Time when suspect cautioned in the presence of the Appropriate
Adult:

Signed by Appropriate Adult:
Witnessed by the Service Policeman:

Remarks:

PART 3
LEGAL ADVISER DELAYED
If the right to consult or the request for the presence of a legal

adviser is delayved record the reason(s) and the identity of the
authorising officer below:

PART 4

INFORMATION TO SUSPECT ON INTERVIEW PROCEDURE

* When the interview is to be tape recorded say to the suspect:

“"The remainder of the interview will be tape recorded. I am now
going to insert two tapes and place them in the tape recorder and
commence to record”.

*Where a written contemporaneous record is to be made say to the
suspect:

"During this interview *I will make a record of the questions asked
and the replies given. A record of events will also be made, such
as breaks for refreshment, as requested by the Codes of Practice.

At the end of the interview, you will be given the opportunity to
read over and sign the Record. If you consider it to be inaccurate,

you may make a note on the Record accordingly.”

*Delete if inapplicable

Witnessed by the Service Police: “
Signed: il

“27 -



CONTINUATION SHEET

MOD Form 811D

Case Ref Number: 06022/6

Record of Interview of: NS AR A

Time
When
Appropriate

Line

Record of Interview

"I want to add that although I have covered the
circumstances surrounding the use of the 2 inch
mortar in some detail, I have not specifically
dealt with the suggestion that T "authorised” its
use. It might be inferred from this that I
deliberately decided that the 2 inch mortar could
be fired on the exercise in the knowledge that its
use was irregular. This was not the case, as 1
have already made clear that such a decision was
never put to me. Throughout the planning and
execution of the exercise the 2 inch mortar was
regarded by all concerned as simply another
weapons system to be included. However, Gl
G :s concerned that the HE bombs might
produce an unacceptable number of blinds and it
was to check on this that he arranged for me to be
present when a number of rounds were fired during

the range recce. As I have already said, this
trial showed that the possible blind problem did
not actually exist. It is therefore only in this
context - the avoidance of blinds - that any

suggestion of "authorisation” by me makes sense.”
"You are now given the opportunity to read the
Record of Interview. As you do so would you sign
the bottom of each page, indicating that you have
read it, agreed with the contents and make a note
agalnst anything you consider to be inaccurate.
You are also invited to place your initials
against each question and answer.”

I, I, have read over the

Record of Interview consisting of 7 pages. I have
indicated where I consider it to inaccurate. I
have signed each page accordingly.

Signed : N

1652 hrs 23 Dec 86 at Aldershot.

Witnessed by the Service Police: CNND

PP -



STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

STATEMENT

Case No: 06022/6
Surname: [ Forenames: B, W ey

W W
Service No: DENB LGS Rank: L5
Type of Engagement: - Height:
Date & Place of Birth:
Full Unit Address: Aldershot Det SIB RMP UKLF, Maida Road, Aldershot,

Hants.
Date to leave a.Command: Sep 87 b. Service: Sep 87
This statement, (- atsttime pages eact stgmed—by—me) is true to the

best of my knowledge and belief and I wmake it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, T shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the \L¥ day of GXC”W\ 1987 Signed:

- .

I am CEEENGEGEEGEEN © ¢ e Special Investigation
Branch, Royal Military Police at present serving with my unit in
Aldershot.

On Mon 5 Jan 87 at Bulford about 2057 hrs I had occasion to

interviev quiiiumpsy @ © .., vhom I now recognise after

caution.

Throughout the interview I maintained a contemporaneous record of
the questions asked and answers given. At the conclusion of the interview
both —read over and signed the record of interview. The
interview terminated at 2200 hrs.

That record of interview I now produce.

Signed

RMP (SIB)

)

STAFF IN CONFIDENCE



MOD Form 811C

(Edn 7/86)
Service Police
Record of Interview
Case Ref Number 0602276
Part 1
Interview Of
Number: .. Gl . . . . Rank/Status: .. G Surname: . |H———
Forenames: . VNN =
Date & Place of Birth: — ..... — .................. Colour of eyes: . b
Ship/Regt/Corps/Unit:  PARA, ... . Colour of hair: . ... ..
HQ 1 INF BDE, TIDWORTH
’ Sex: . =l
Height — ...............
Interviewed By
Number; . S Rank/Status: . @ Suyrname: ..... ..

Persons Present

Rank/Status Name/initials In What Capacity

Interview
Place: ......... | Bagdad Rd, Bulford
Date: ..2.Jan 87 . . . Time started: ..... 2057 . hours
Witnessed by the Service Police:
Signed Wrndpinal ‘ - Sevaresas



Arrest

Prior to Interview -Place: .......... .. ... ... .... Date: ................

By Number: ......

Royal Military Police

*you xnewx/ | am making inquiries into . the death of Sgt Lyden 1 PARA, which occurred on

13 Feb 86 in Norway.

I am going to ask you some (*further) questions, but before | do, | must caution you that you do not have to say

anything

unless you wish to do so, but what you say may be given in evidence.

Time: .2959. hours.

You now
a.

b.

You may

have the right to:
*Legal advice. (If being interviewed about a serious service offence).
Request the presence of an observer at the interview.

*Leave the interview unless you are in arrest or | decide there are sufficient grounds to arrest
you. _

Consult the Service Police Codes of Practice when practicable.

exercise any of these rights now, but if you do not, you may do so later during the course of this

interview.

* Delete if inapplicable

Signed

Witnessed by the Service Police:



Handover ‘Notice to Suspect’

Record any reply: oo

Time: . 21.00. .. hours

Ask the suspect the following questions. Record any reply.

1. * Do you wish to consult a legal adviser now?: NO Time: . 2! OO .. hours.
2. * Do you wish to have a legal adviser present now?: NO Time: ..2190  hours
3. Do you wish to have an observer present now?: NO Time: . 2100 . hours.

(If YES, it is the responsibility of the service police to assist the suspect to exercise the option(s)).

*1f NO/NOT NOW to either 1 and /or 2 ask: “Do you agree to commence the interview without a legal
adviser present?’:  Record-any reply:

Certification by Suspect

certify that | have been told of my rights and understand them. | have
received a copy of MOD Form 811 A entitled: ‘Notice to Suspect’ and | * DQ /DO NOT want legal advice at
this point.

Signature: e R Date: ....5./.1./.87 ............. Time: 2100 hours.

Witnessed by the Service Police:

Signed T | [



To be Completed by the Service Police

Details concerning the Legal Adviser, Observer and Appropriate Adult should be recorded as i
below:

a. Legal Adviser(s). Record time when arrangements started: .........

First Choice Alternative (1) Alternative (2)

Name:
Address:

Telephone:
Time Contacted:

Result:

Time of Arrival:

Remarks:
//
e
-
b. Observer(s) Record time when arrangements started: ......... hours. /

First Choice Alternative (1) // Alternative (2)
Name:
Address:
Telephone:

Time Contacted:
Result:
Time of Arrival: /

Remarks:

Witnessed by the Service Police:

Signed o P Ay

-27-



c. Appropriate Adult

Time when notified interview is to take place: ....... ... ... ... . . . i
Time of arrivall ...

Time when susypect cautioned in the presence of the Ap fate Adult: ... .. . .
Signed by Appropriate AdUlt: ... T
Witnessed by the Service PolieemNan: ... ... .

Remark s T

.................................................................................................

Part 3

Legal Adviser Delayed

If the right to consult or the request for the presence of a legal adviser is delayed record the reasogﬁsw/
identity of the authorising officer below: T

Part 4

Information to Suspect on Interview Procedure

* When the interview is to be tape recorded say to

“The remainder of will be tape recorded. ! am now going to inserttwo tapes and place them in the
er and commence to record.”

* Where a written contemporaneous record is to be made say to the suspect:

“During this interview * | / Rank———rrr—— Namer———rrrrr O e

will make a record of the questions asked and the replies given. A record of events will also be made, such as
breaks for refreshment, as required by the Codes of Practice.

Atthe end of the interview, you will be given the opportunity to read over and sign the Record. If you consider it
to be inaccurate, you may make a note on the Record accordingly.”

* Delete if inapplicable

Witnessed by the Service Police:

Signed SRS Ry e R

-28-



Continuation Sheet Case Ref Number 06022/6

Record of Interview of NG

Q1 Were you previously the 2 I/C of 1 PARA?

Al Yes.

Q2 Between what dates did you hold that appointment?

A2 From April '84 until about the 30 Jan 86.

Q3 Were you involved in the preparation of exercise Hardfall '36?

A3 Yes.

Q4 What form did your participation take?

Ab I wrote the main exercise instructions, which were issued down to
company level and should be included with my statement.

Q5 Did this instruction specify the details of the company live firing
exercise?

A5 As I recall it outlined various training objectives one of which was

that each company would go through a live firing exercise which hopefully
would be run concurrently with the Parachute programme.

Q6 What orders did you give for the deployament and use of the 2 inch
mortar?
A6 Firstly it was depeandent on whether the Norweigians would let them be

fired on their ranges. This agreement we did not get until arriving in
theatre and prior to deployment there was always a question mark as to
whether the 2 inch wortar could be fired on the Mjolfjell Ranges. The
deployment and use of the mortars, once cleared for use by the
Norweigians, were subject to the range orders, as was any other weapon.

Q7 Did you issue any orders relating to the safety of the 2 inch wmortar when
in use?

A7 Other than the written instructions and Standing Orders I published for
Mjolfjell Range, no.

Q8 I have here a copy of those orders. Can you point out to me any written

references to the safety of the 2 inch wortar? Produced a copy of
Standing Orders.

A8 The reference at Ref A on Page 1 and paragraph 3 of Page 1.

Q9 Who in a supervisory capacity within 1 PARA would have received a copy
of these orders?

A9 All companies and the training team, plus a trace of the range area.

Copies also went to the AMF Cell who were the controllers of the
Hardfall exercise for issue to other AMF units who might use the ranges.

QL0 During the course of the live firing company exercises conducted in
Norway safety supervisors were detailed to oversee the general safety of
the exercise and also allocated to some weapons groups. What steps did
you take to verify the competence of the safety supervisors, their
qualifications or authorisations?

AlQ T was aware in outline that there was going to be three company live
firing exercises as part of the overall training, but having
relinquished my appointment as 2 I/C and returned to the UK on 31 Jaa 36
I was not involved in any of the detailed planning allocation of safety
staff or detailed briefing for this series of live firing exercises. 1
was aware that S 25 the project officer and support coy
would be responsible for coordinating the exercise.

Qll As the Commanding Officer's assistant in training matters what steps did
you take to ensure that the live firing exercise was written within the
current safety rules?

All None, with the exception of the range 3Standing Orders as I was not
involved in the detailed planning of this exercise, having left the Bn
on 31 Jan 86.

Signed ki i MY Witnessed by the Service Police: R
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Continuation Sheet Case Ref Number 06022/6

Record

Q12

Al2
Q13

Al3
Ql4

Al4
Q15
Al5
QL6

Al6
2145

Signed

of Interview of NG

Having published the Mjolfjell Range Standing Orders did you expect
people planning exercises in that area or conducting live firing
practices of any type to comply with those instructions?

Yes. Subject to any further restrictions that might be imposed by the
Norweigians.

And those standing orders clearly draw the attention of the user to
Pamphlet 21.

Correct as does any other live firing.

I have no further questions to put to you at this stage and propose to
terminate this interview although it may be necessary to see you again at
a later date. 1Is there anything further you wish to add to what has
already been said?

No.

Do you wish to make any form of written statement.

No.

You are now given the opportunity to read over the Record of Interview.
As you do so, would you sign the bottom of each page, indicating that you
have read it, agreed with the contents and make a note against anything
you consider to be inaccurate. You are also invited to place your
initials against each question and answer. Do you wish to read the
Record of Interview.?

Yes.

Interview record handed over.

I D have read over the Record of Interview consisting of

nine pages. There are no inaccuracies. I have signed each page
accordingly. I have also initialled each question and answer.

[Eyemsehe S Witnessed by the Service Police: NP
G /1 /37 Bulford 2200 hrs.



STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: L Forenames: SREREERT TR,

Service No: ARy TR Rank:
Type of Engagement: f % Height:
Date & Place of Birth: NN
Full Unit Address: Aldershot Det SIB RMP UKLF, Maida Road, Aldershot,
Hants.
Date to leave a.Command: Sep 87 b. Service: Sep 87
This statement,(consisting of pages ecach signed by me) is true to the

best of my knowledge and belief and T make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, T shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be tru

Dated the (L day of ArzA 1987 Signed

1 anm (RS 0 © thc Special Iivestigation

Branch, Roval Military Police at present serving with my unit in
Aldershot.

On Tue 6 Jan 87 at Bulford about 1544 hrs I had occasion to

interview GENENNEEER @ ©:::A, whom I now recognise after

caution.

Throughout the interview I maintained a contemporaneous record of
the questions asked and answers given. At the conclusion of the interview
both R - ] over and signed the record of interview. The
interview terminated at 1633 hrs.

That record of interview I now produce.

Signed

MP (SIB)

A

STAFF IN CONFIDENCE



MOD Form 811C

(Edn 7/86)
Service Police
Record of Interview
Case Ref Number 06022/6
Part 1
Interview Of
Number: — .......... Rank/Status: - ..... Surname: — ..................
Forenames: — .......................................................................
Date & Place of Birth: _ ............... Colour of eyes: L
Ship/Regt/Corps/Unit:  PARA Colour of hair: NG .
1 PARA
Picton Bks Sex: ... . ... . ... ... . .
Bulford
Height: - ................

interviewed By

Number: HEENNNSS Rank/Status: .S Surname: GHNERES @@

.................................................................................

Persons Present

Rank/Status Name/Initials In What Capacity
Interview
Place Picton Bks Bulford
Date: ..... 6 Jan 87 . . Time started: .. 284 L. hours

Witnessed by the Service Police:
Signed  CEEEEG—— A

~32.



Arrest -

—
%/’
Prior to Interview - Place: .........coueeeeeeini.. Date: 777 ........ Time: ........ hours
By Number: ..., 7 ..., Rank: ............... Name: .................
Part 2
lam ..... susecel® of the SIB RMP

*woux knew | am making inquiries into .. the death of Sgt Lyden 1 PARA which occurred on

1

3.Feb 86 In NOIMay.

I am going to ask you some (*further) questions, but before | do, | must caution you that you do not have to say
anything unless you wish to do so, but what you say may be given in evidence.

Time:

L1544 hours.

You now have the right to:

a.

b.

*Legal advice. (If being interviewed about a serious service offencs).
Request the presence of an observer at the interview.

*Leave the interview unless you are in arrest or | decide there are sufficient grounds to arrest
you.

Consult the Service Police Codes of Practice when practicable.

You may exercise any of these rights now, but if you do not, you may do so later during the course of this
interview.

* Delete if Inapplicable

Witnessed by the Service Police:

Signed  \EEEEEE—GNS e



Handover ‘Notice to Suspect’

Record any reply: o

Ask the suspect the following questions. Record any reply.

1. * Do you wish to consult a legal adviser now?: NO Time: ..12%5 . hours.
2. " Do you wish to have a legal adviser present now?: NO Time: ..1245 . hours
3. Do you wish to have an observer present now?: NO Time: ..12%3 . hours.

(If YES, it is the responsibility of the service police to assist the suspect to exercise the option(s)).

*If NO/NOT NOW to either 1 and /or 2 ask: "“Do you agree to commence the interview without a legal
adviser present?”’:  Record any reply:

I - T certify that | have been told of my rights and understand them. | have
received a copy of MOD Form 811 A entitled: ‘Notice to Suspect’ and | * DO / DO NOT want legal advice at
this point. '

Signature: Al S b ' Date: 6/1/87 Time: 1545 hours.

Witnessed by the Service Police:

Signed Nt S R

~34-



To be Completed by the Service Police

Details concerning the Legal Adviser, Observer and Appropriate Adult should be recordéd as indicated
below: .

-

a. Legal Adviser(s). Record time when arrangements started: ......... hours. //
.
First Choice Alternative (1) P “Alternative (2)
Name: //(
Address: /
/'/r
Telephone: -
Time Contacted: e
e
/”/
Result: -
e
P
-~ /’
Time of Arrival: -
Remarks:
b. Observer(s) Record time when arrangements started: ......... hours.
First Choice Alternative (1) ~ Alternative (2)
Name: o
Address: /,.,-/'/
/’/"
7
Telephone: e
Time Contacted: -
-
Result: //
Time of Arrival: /
Remarks: -
Witnessed by the Service Police:
Signed R ‘ SRR S



C. Appropriate Adult

Part 3

Legal Adviser Delayed

If the right to consult or the request for the presence of a legal adviser is delayed record the reason(s) and the
identity of the authorising officer below:

Part 4

Information to Suspect on Interview Procedure -

—

* When the interview is to be tape recorded s_qy«to%he/sfﬁect:

“The remainder of the intervieﬂwﬂl betape recorded.lam now goingtoinserttwotapes and place themin the

tapeWeﬁ:e to record.”

* Where a written contemporaneous record is to be made say to the suspect:

“During this interview * | / Renks———"""—— TNEAME: L. O T TTIIT
will make a record of the questions asked and the replies given. A record of events will also be made, such as
breaks for refreshment, as required by the Codes of Practice.

Atthe end of the interview, you will be given the opportunity to read over and sign the Record. If you consider it
to be inaccurate, you may make a note on the Record accordingly.”

* Delete if inapplicable

Witnessed by the Service Police:

Signed W Avenl 4 R
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Continuation Sheet Case Ref Number 06022/6

Record of Interview of Wl

Q1 When did you assume the duties of 2 I/C 1 PARA?

Al About 30 Jan 86.

Q2 Did you take any part in the preparations for exercise Hardfall '86
involving 1 PARA?

A2 In the UK No.

Q3 With regard to exercise Hardfall '86 three live firing coapany exercises
were carried out over the period 11-13 Feb 86 is that correct?

A3 Yes.

Q4 Did you take any part whilst in Norway in the planning of those exercises?

A4 No.

Q5 Did you attend any briefings or O Groups relating to those exercises?

AS I can't be sure.

Q6 Were you in any way involved in the selection of supervisory staff for
those live firing exercises?

A6 No.

Q7 Did you verify any of the qualifications or authorisations for safety
supervisors involved in those live firing exercises?

A7 No, the OC of support coupany ran a course before the exercises.

Q8 Were you aware that 2 inch wmortars were to be deployed and used on those
live firing exercises?

A8 Yes.

Q9 Did you give any orders, written or verbal, relating to the safety of
the 2 inch mortar?

A9 No.

Q10 Why not?

AlO Because I was'nt on the exercise.

Qll Were you satisfied that the weapons were being used correctly within the
regulations governing their use?

All I was not involved in the detailed planning of the exercise, therefore I
had not investigated that side of the exercise.

Q12 As the Commanding Officer's assistant in training matters, what steps did
you take to ensure that the exercise had been written within the current
safety rules?

Al2 Having only assumed my appointment as 2 I/C some 13 days or so prior to
the accident involving Sgt Lyden, I was not involved in any of the
detailed planning of the exercise, nor selection of safety staff,
although I was present on one occasion when (NP bricfed the CO
in general terms on the exercise. I myself did not attend any of the
actual exercises as I was fully committed with the supervision of the
Parachute and dry training phases of the exercise being conducted
elsewhere. Additionally I was not consulted by either G  or
_ regarding the exercise nor were any written
instructions/orders relating to it submitted for my approval or comment.
Whilst I was aware that the 2 inch mortar was to be fired all matters
relating to this and the live firing exercise were decided between NN
G o] EEEEE®. As 2 inch HE mortar ammunition had already
been allocated to the exercise I naturally assumed that it was clear to
fire the weapon on that particular exercise.

Ql3. Do you wish to make any form of written statement regarding this matter?

Al3 Not at this moment.

Signed W e 5 Witnessed by the Service Police: (il ENED
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Continuation Sheet Case Ref Number 06022/6

Record of Interview of GNININENND

Ql4

1626

Signed

I intend to terminate this interview now and you may be seen again at a
later date. In the meantime you are now given the opportunity to read
over the record of interview. As you do so would you sign the bottom of
each page to indicate that you have read it, agreed with the contents and
make a note against anything you consider to be inaccurate. You are also
invited to place your initials against each question and answer. Do you
wish to read the Record of Interview?

Record of Interview handed over.

I ) ove read the Record of Interview coasisting

of nine pages. There are no inaccuracies. I have signed each page
accordingly. I have also initialled each question and answer.

RS TRIET IR 1633 hrs 6th January 1987

Picton Barracks Bulford

Witnessed by the Service Police:



STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

STATEMENT
' Case No: 06022/6
Surname: SAEEGHS Forenames: Wk abiteld)
WA ne G AR
Service No: WEOLLLAR Rank: BB
Type of Engagement: L ) Height:
Date & Place of Birth: (SN
Full Unit Address: Aldershot Det SIB RMP UKLF, Maida Road, Aldershot,
Hants.
Date to leave a.Command: Sep 87 b. Service: Sep 87
This statement,(consisting of pages each signed by me) i1s true to the

best of my knowledge and belief and T make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution 1f T have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the day of 1987 Signed:

I an R > ¢ the Special Investigation

Branch, Royal Military Police at present serving with my unit in
Aldershot.

On Wed 7 Jan 87 at 0ld Sarum about 1107 hrs I had occasion to

interview NGNS | PARA, after caution, whom I now
recognise, in the presence of (KNGS P -

Throughout the interview T maintained a contemporaneous record of
the questions asked and answers given. At the conclusion of the interview

both D 2~ GND r-ad over and signed the reocrd of
interview. The interview terminated at 1251 hrs.
That record of interview I now produce.
Signed:

RMP (SIB)

-30-
STAFF IN CONFIDENCE



STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

Statement by:

Surname: Case No: 06022/6

Christian Names: Type of Enga‘gement: SRC

Regt No & Rank:

Date & Place of Birth:

Full Unit Address: HQ SIB RMP UKLF
01d Sarum, Salisbury, Wilts.

Date to leave cowmmand: N/ A Service: N/A
Who states:

This statement, consisting of 1 page signed by we, is true to the
best of my kunowledge and belief and [ make it knowing that, if it is tendered in
evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution 1f I have wilfully stated in it

anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.
//»A_‘\

Dated the 7th date of January, 1937.

I azn—“ﬂ’, at present holding the appointment of 2IC SIB RiP UKLF.

On Wed 7 Jan 87, I was present when U, RP(SIB) interviewed
G °:r2, in ny office at Old Sarum, Salisbury, Wilts.

The interview commenced at 1107 hrs and terminated at 1251 hrs. Throughout
Ul "2intained a contemporaaeous record of questions and answers given
in accordance with the Services Police Code of Practice. I was present when (il
W) signed that record and appended the relevant certificate. 1 have also
signed the record of interview.

L0

-

STAFF IN CONFIDENCE



MOD Form 811C
(Edn 7/86)

Service Police
Record of Interview

Case Ref Number 06022/6
Part 1
Interview Of
Number: ...\ Rank/Status: . SE® . . . Surname: NI

Forenames:

Date & Place of Birth:

Ship/Regt/Corps/Unit: LA RA Colour of hair: . SR
1 PARA
PICTON BKS Sex; G
BULFORD Height g

Interviewed By

Number: - ....... Rank/Status: “ Surname: — ...............
Forenames: “ ...................................................
Unit & Address: ALDERSHOT DET SIB RMP UK, MAIDA RD ALDERSHOT

Persons Present

Rank/Status Name/Initials In What Capacity
w0 waaass SIB.Officer ...
Interview

Place: .19 SIB RMP UK OLd Sarum
Date: .7..Jau. Q0 ... ...... Time started: . 1107, .. ....... hours

Witnessed by the Service Police:
. | FHT St ]
Signed i G
W R i
1
41 -



Arrest

Prior to Interview ~Place: ....................... Date:

................ Time: ........ hours
By Number: ... .. ... ... ... Rank: ............... Name: .................
Part 2
| g . S ¢ ChiS of the . S15 NP

we are ' . i n h Ay
*you know / kam making inquiries into death of Sgt Lyden in Norway

I am going to ask you some (*further) questions, but before I do, | must caution you that you do not have to say
anything unless you wish to do so, but what you say may be given in evidence.

Time: ..11.08 hours.

You now have the right to:
a. ‘*Legal advice. (If being interviewed about a serious service offence).
b. Request the presence of an observer at the interview.

c. ‘Leave the interview unless you are in arrest or | decide there are sufficient grounds to arrest
you.

d. Consult the Service Police Codes of Practice when practicable.

You may exercise any of these rights now, but if you do not, you may do so later during the course of this
interview.

* Delete if inapplicable

Witnessed by the Service Police:

Signed  EREEE_—_G



Handover ‘Notice to Suspect

Record any reply: . L8 S
Time: .. 1109 hours

Ask the suspect the following questions. Record any reply.

1. * Do you wish to consult a legal adviser now?: NO Time: ..11.09.. hours.
2. * Do you wish to have a legal adviser present now?: NO Time: ..11.09  nhours.
3. Do you wish to have an observer present now?: NO Time: ..11.09.. hours.

{If YES, it is the responsibility of the service police to assist the suspect to exercise the option(s)).

*If NO/NOT NOW to either 1 and/or 2 ask: “Do you agree to commence the interview without a legal
adviser present?”:  Record any reply:

b _ ............. certify that | have been told of my rights and understand them. | have
received a copy of MOD Form 811 A entitled: ‘Notice to Suspect and 1 * DO /DO NOT want legal advice at
this point.

,
Signature: Wl Date: rJAN 87 Time: ... 'O hours.

Witnessed by the Service Police:
Signed QAR k L eicibiin
3 SRR

43



To be Completed by the Service Police

Details concerning the Legal Adviser, Observer and Appropriate Adult should be recorded as indicated
below:

a. Legal Adviser(s). Record time when arrangements started: ......... hours.
First Choice Alternative (1) Alternative (2)
Name:
Address:
Telephone:

Time Contacted:

Result:

Time of Arrival:

Remarks:
b. Observer(s) Record time when arrangements started: ......... hours.
First Choice Alternative (1) Alternative (2)
Name:
Address:
Telephone:

Time Contacted:

Result:

Time of Arrival:

Remarks:

Witnessed by the Service Police:

Signed  uEEGEG— R
. T AR

A



c. Appropriate Adult

Time when notified interview is to take place: ... . .
TImMeE Of ArTIVAl e
Time when suspect cautioned in the presence of the Appropriate Adult:  ..............................
Signed by Appropriate Adult: ... ..
Witnessed by the Service POliCEMaN: ...

REmMaAarK S o

Part 3

Legal Adviser Delayed

If the right to consult or the request for the presence of a legal adviser is delayed record the reason(s) and the
identity of the authorising officer below:

Part 4

Information to Suspect on Interview Procedure

* When the interview is to be tape recorded say to the suspect:

“Theremainder of the interview will be tape recorded. | am now going to inserttwo tapes and place them in the
tape recorder and commence to record.”

* Where a written contemporaneous record is to be made say to the suspect:

“During thisinterview *1/Rank: ................ Name: ..................... oft ...
will make a record of the questions asked and the replies given. A record of events will also be made, such as
breaks for refreshment, as required by the Codes of Practice. '

Atthe end of the interview, you will be given the opportunity to read over and sign the Record. If you consider it
to be inaccurate, you may make a note on the Record accordingly.”

* Delete if inapplicable

Witnessed by the Service Police:

Signed B s, Sl Wl il
5 kL SRR SRR Y
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Maj Pike

Continuation Sheet Case Ref Number 06022/6

Record of Interview of GIEEEEEEEEND

QL
Al

Q2
A2
Q3

A3
Q4

A4

Q5
AS

Q6

Ab

Q7

A7

Q8

A8

Q9

A9
Q10

AlO

What experience do you have as a supervisor of Infantry Weapon Training?
Well I would say in broad terms commensurate with being a platoon
commander attending a platoon commanders battle course and commensurate
with my subsequent appointments.

What experience do you have of conducting live firing practices?
Considerable in that I have done it as a platoon commander specialist
platoon commander (RSO) on secondment and as a company commnander when
exercising my platoons.

You are then conversant with the general saftey criteria applied to the
live firing of weapons.

Yes. ‘

What are the inherent dangers of overhead GPMG fire in a training
environment?

The dangers are two fold firstly that the height of the rounds over the
troops must not exceed the laid down wminimum and secondly that the gun
must be fired from a prepared position so as to minimise the risk of it
slipping, but the term overhead fire normally means fire which is used to
bring exercising troops under fire when they are for example on an
advance.

What are the inherent dangers in the use of the 2 inch mortar HE?

The danger with the 2 inch mortar HE and any weapon firing any round is
that the round will go somewhere other than where you intend it to, but
that is not a danger it is a risk and it is a risk that is minimised by
the conduct and planning of the live firing exercise.

What particular things would effect the 2 inch mortar HE in such a
manner?

The training and ability of the firer, secondly the safety supervisor and
the control that he exercises and thirdly the position or platform from
which the weapon is fired.

As the 2 inch mortar is a hand held weapon without any form of support or
stabilisation other than the firer is this an accurate weapon?

Thats not actually true the weapon has a base plate its not as if its
shoulder fired. It is not designed to be a weapon of point accuracy its
an area weapon and it is sufficiently accurate for that purpose.

In view of that is the weapon safe enough or accurate enough to be used
when troops are deployed on the ground either forward of or to the sides
of that weapons position?

Well the answer is yes to the sides certainly, to the front yes providing
they are not direcetly in front thats a fundemently rule for all mortars
you do not fire overhead. But it comes back to the firer the safety
supervisor, their ability and the platform from which the weapon is being
fired.

There is no fixed trajectory or directional aid other than the skill of
the firer.

Yes.

What steps would you take to ensure the safety of troops on the ground
during fire from a 2 inch mortar using HE in a training environment?

I would take the steps that we did take on that exercise. That is, one,
nominate specific firers of sufficient training and experience, in this
case the platoon Sgts. Two ensure that there was no overhead fire.

Three ensure that the platform on which the base plate rested was
adequate and in this case I asked the conducting officer to provide
sandbags for that purpose. What I have just said is what I consider to
be the check points for me as the sub unit commander being exercised they
do not include the wider responsibilities of the Conducting Officer which
I was not.

Witnessed by the Service Police:

Signed <G Bedans Cl
R et 3



Continuation Sheet Case Ref No 06022/6

Record of Interview of —

QL1

All

QL2
Al2
Q13
A13

QL4
Al4

QLS

AlS

Q16

Al6

Q17
Al7

Q18

Al8

At your own Company O group did you lay down any arcs of fire for the 2
inch mortar which ensured that your troops were well to the side of the
possible line of fire of the 2 inch?

Yes, but they related not to points on the ground but to the actual
position of the manouvering troops. The two weapons that were being
fired by my platoon Sgts, did have specific targets to engage and their
orders were to cease fire on those targets before it became unsafe.

What situation dictated that is was unsafe to fire on a target?

The judgement of the Sgt firing the weapon and the safety supervisor.

And this is in relation to the position of troops approaching the

target.

Correct or another target if they were in a position to make firing
unsafe.

Did you lay down any minimum distances, or angles?

No because it is for the firer and the safety supervisor to make that
decision when to stop firing because they know what the minimum distances
and angles are. You cannot in giving tactical orders take every decision
away from the people under your command they are qualified to make those
decisions themselves and if you do not allow them to do so then the
exercise becomes worthless. But, that is on the assumption that the
field firing exercise as planned by the Conducting Officer is not in
itself inherently unsafe.

Prior to this live firing exercise did you consult Mjolfjell Range
Standing Orders or any of the relevent Infantry Training !Manuals?

I was conversant with Mjolfjell Range Standing Orders as I had previously
exercised there as the conducting officer. 1 was conversant with the
Battalion Instructions that the 2 inch mortar was to be fired into the 81
mm mortar impact area, I had previously consulted pamphlet 21 prior to
individual, section and platoon live firing for which I was conducting
officer. I have not looked at the section on the 2 inch mortar because I
hadn't used it and I did not consult pamphlet 21 prior to exercise
"Coldfire' because I was not the conducting officer. When we were shown
the ground by the conducting officer he explained how the rules of
pamphlet 21 translated into constraints on the ground.

Was any particular reference made to the use of the 2 inch mortar HE at
that time?

Yes it was, the positions from which the weapons could be fired and the
targets they could engage were pointed out. The point or points at which
fire would have to stop due to the position of manouvering troops were
discussed the firers were discussed and it was at that point that I
decided that my platoon Sgts would fire those weapons. The platforms for
the base plates were discussed and I requested that sandbags be provided
for that purpose. And Qi ~-dec the point that all bombs should
be prepared for firing before firing commenced so that the weapon was not
brought out of the aim during the engagement. The part that the mortar
played in my own tactical plan was confirmed as being within the
constraints of the exercise plan.

How long had your unit been equipped with 2 inch wmortars?

The 2 inch mortar was issued for exercise Hardfall 86 but the light
mortar has been with us since World War II.

How much mortar training had been done in Norway using the 2 inch prior
to the time firing exercise?

There was dry training but no live firing. We were forbidden to fire
smoke and I believe that there wasn't any 2 inch HE ammunition allocated

to the company for its own use. and his team did fire the
2 inch mortar live prior to the exercise and the lessons that he learned
were passed on and implemented by us. A Coy did not fire that weapon

until those lessons had been learnt and passed on.

Signed — Witnessed by the Service Police: Gl
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Record of Interview of VD

Q19 When was the last time that members of A Coy carried out a live firing
practice using the 2 inch mortar prior to that exercise?

Al9 Certainly we have not during my tour in command.

Q20 How long has that been?

A20 Then it was thirteen months.

Q21 Who conducted the instruction during your companys dry training oan the 2
inch mortar?

A21 This is misleading, the company did not carry out dry training on the 2
inch mortar because the company was not going to fire it. It is not like
the LMG which is a weapon that is only used in Norway which any man could
be expected to use and on which every man therefore did dry training.

The two people who were going to fire the two inch mortar were the
platoon Sgts they were given specific instructions in the use of the
weapon in those circumstances (i.e. the Arctic) byl :-d
myself. They were responsible for implementing those instructions for
revising themselves in the use of the weapon and for the instruction of
their No 2s.

Q22 Was any supervised dry training carried out involviag those people?

A22 Well the No 2s were supervised by the platoon Sgts the platoon Sgts were
given specific instructions as I have said. They were responsible for
carrying out those instructions and for revising themselves as necessary.

Q23 Were they furnished with the 2 inch mortar infantry training pamphlet?

A23 They weren't furnished with it whether they had it or not I don't know.
They shouldn't have needed a pamphlet to revise themselves in the use of
the 2 inch mortar and if they needed one it cculd have been provided.

Q24 As the Officer Commanding A Coy during this live firing exercise and the
tactical commander what duty or responsibility did you have to ensure
that the exercise was conducted in such a wmanner as to afford the maximum
safety to the soldiers under your command who were participating In the
exercise?

A24 I've answered that question before. I'm not going to answer that
question as it is phrased in a misleading and subjective way but I will
make a statement. I was not the conducting officer the planning and
conduct of that exercise was his responsibility. He had to ensure that
the safety of the soldiers in all three companies was not put at risk my
responsibility as the sub unit commander being exercised was two fold,
firstly to ensure that my tactical plan complied with the constraints of
the exercise plan which it did and secondly to easure that ay soldiers
and officers were sufficiently well trained to meet the demands of tnat
exercise, which they were.

Q25 Had any of the live firing going on during the exercise caused you
concern for the safety of your soldiers would you have drawn such matters
to the attention of <@ or your CO?

A25 Yes had that been the quickest way to put it right but the quickest way
to halt or adjust the fire or manouver of one of my sub units or one of
the fire units under my command would probably have been to speak to thenm
direct.

I consider that there is sufficient evidence to justify disciplinary action
being taken against you in connection with Sgt Lyden's death and contravention
of Standing Orders under the service Disciplinary Acts and for the prosecution
to succeed. A report will be submitted without delay to your Commanding
Officer and other relevant service authorities. You do not have to say
anything unless you wish to do so, but what you say may be given in evidence.

Yes.

Signed <G Witnessed by the Service Police: D
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Record of Interview of <IN

You are now given the opportunity to read over the Record of Interview. As you
do so, would you sign the bottom of each page indicating that you have read it,
agreed the contents and make a note against anything you consider to be
inaccurate. You are also invited to place your initials against each question
and answer. Do you wish to read the record of interview?

Yes.

1240 hrs record handed over.

Do you wish to make any form of written statement.

No.

I "N :ave read over the Record of Interview consisting of 15

pages. I have indicated where I consider it to be inaccurate and have signed
each page accordingly.

Signed G 1251 7 Jan 87 01d Sarum

Witnessed by the Service Police: SRR

-49-
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Service No: [CFERs Rank:

. Type of Engagement: o Height:

Surname: RN Forenames: meilieg oy
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MOD Form 811C

(Edn 7/86)
Service Police
Record of Interview
Case Ref Number 06022/6
Part 1
Interview Of
Number: ... _ ........ Rank/Status: ... W syurname: .. — ..............
Forenames: . NG &
Date & Place of Birth: i . Colour of eyes: .M. .. ...
Ship/Regt/Corps/Unit: 1 PARA . . Colour of hair: CNG—_—. .. ..
Sex: ...... — ............
Height: . — .............

Interviewed By

Number: u ...... Rank/Status: ‘ Surname: —

Forenames: ..... Gelbismmmeprcasionedl

Unit & Address: .Aldershot Det SIB RMP UK, Maida. Rd,.Aldershat

Persons Present

Rank/Status Name/Initials In What Capacity
Interview

Place: ....... RMP Office, Bulford
Date: ..6.Jan 87 .. .. .. ... Time started: ....0/20 .. ... hours

Witnessed by the Service Police:

Signed SRR GRG e I

—



Arrest

Prior to Interview - Place: ....................... DT Time: ........ hours

By Number: .......... — P Name: .................

I am going to ask you some (*further) questions, but before | do, | must caution you that you do not have to say
anything uniess you wish to do so, but what you say may be given in evidence.

Time: 1723 .. hours.

You now have the right to:
a. *Legal advice. (If being interviewed about a serious service offence).
b. Request the presence of an observer at the interview.

c. ‘*Leave the interview unless you are in arrest or | decide there are sufficient grounds to arrest
you.

d. Consult the Service Police Codes of Practice when practicable.

You may exercise any of these rights now, but if you do not, you may do so later during the course of this
interview.

* Delete if inapplicable

Witnessed by the Service Police:

Signed N Mkt W5



Handover ‘Notice to Suspect’

RECOrd any replY: .ot T

Ask the suspect the following questions. Record any reply.

1. * Do you wish to consult a legal adviser now?: NO Time: ...7.. ... hours.
2. * Do you wish to have a legal adviser present now?: NO Time: 1754 ... hours.
3. Do you wish to have an observer present now?: NO Time: .172% .. hours.

(If YES, it is the responsibility of the service police to assist the suspect to exercise the option(s)).

*1f NO/NOT NOW to either 1 and /or 2 ask: “Do you agree to commence the interview without a legal
adviser present?”:  Record any reply:

Certification by Suspect

I certify that | have been told of my rights and understand them. | have
recelved a copy of MOD Form 811 A entitled: ‘Notice to Suspect’ and | * DO / DO NOT want legal advice at
this point.

Signature: e e e

Witnessed by the Service Police:

Signed WFBORINGEH R R



To be Completed by the Service Police

Details concerning the Legal Adviser, Observer and Appropriate Adult should be recorded as indicated
below: -

-~
-

Prs
a. Legal Adviser(s). Record time when arrangements started: ......... [\our/s.
////
First Choice Alternative (1) Alternative (2)
Name: /
Address: e
Telephone: e
Time Contacted: P
e
e
Result: A
e
Time of Arrival: /7/
Remarks: /
//
-~
b. Observer(s) Record time when arrangements started: ......... hours.
First Choice Alternative (1) Alternative (2)
Name:
Address: /
-
Telephone:
Time Contacted:
-
e
Result:
Time of Arrival: 7
. /‘/
Remarks: '
Witnessed by the Service Police:
Signed  GuEEES A ik

-54 -



c. Appropriate Adult

Time when notified interview is to take place: .......... ... . ... ... ... ... T e

Time of arrival: .. .o P

Part 3

Legal Adviser Delayed

If the right to consult or the request for the presence of a lega! adviser is delayed record the rejsgn(s) and the

identity of the authorising officer below: //—/

Part 4

Information to Suspect on Interview Procedure

* When the interview is to be tape recorded s/y/tc.uhe sUspect

“The remainder of the mtervneyuw:ﬂ‘b’et/ape recorded. l am now going to insert two tapes and place them in the

tapWe to record.”

* Where a written contemporaneous record is to be made say to the suspect:

“During this interview * | /-Rank——""""""""7"= Name— 7T TTTIoTI oot
will make a record of the questions asked and the replies given. A record of events will also be made, such as
breaks for refreshment, as required by the Codes of Practice.

Atthe end of the interview, you will be given the opportunity to read over and sign the Record. If you consider it
to be inaccurate, you may make a note on the Record accordingly.”

* Delete if inapplicable

Witnessed by the Service Police:

Signed D WERRECK

-55-



Continuation Sheet Case Ref Number 06022/6

Record of Interview of NN

Q1 With regard to the exercise during which Sgt Lyden died. You have
previously stated that you did not consult the training pamphlet or
pamphlet 21 with regard to the use of the 2 inch mortar is that correct?

Al Yes.

Q2 If you had consulted either publication what course of action would you
have taken with regard to the use of the 2 inch mortar?
A2 Clearly I would have advised the CO that the weapon could not be used.

The tragedy here is that as I stated previously we had test fired the 2
inch mortar to ensure that the bombs impacted on snow and we were
prepared not to use the 2 inch mortar if this proved unreliable as it was
we were not happy with the smoke bombs which tended to be effected by the
snow and we stated that these would not be used. Although I have just
stated that I did not consult pamphlet 21 over the use of the 2 inch
mortar I would emphasise that I together with my support weapons plt
comnanders used pamphlet 21 extensively in order to incorporate both
Milan and Scimiter fire into the exercise. As far as the 2 inch mortar
was concerned this was as I stated a company weapon. In fact having
observed 2 inch mortar fire during platoon training on the ranges prior
to the live firing company attacks, I raised the matter in coanference
when it was laid down that only senior NCOs would be eligible to fire the
weapon and as far as the exercise was concerned the 2 inch mortar could
only be fired from 3 locations, those were from Satebu Hut ledge or the
high ground left of gulley to support phase 1 and from the centre of
objective 1 to support phase 3. This was complied with by all three
companies the tragedy being that Sgt Lyden was killed carrying out those
instructions.

Q3 Do you wish to make any form of written statement?

A3 Yes.

Q4 Will you write it yourself or do you want someone to write it for you?
Ad I'l1l write it myself.

1815 hrs statement commenced 1855 hrs statement concluded.

1900 I consider that there is sufficient evidence to justify disciplinary
action being taken against you in connection with Sgt Lyden's death and your
failure to comply with Standing Orders and Infantry Training Pamphlets under
the Service Disciplinary Acts and a report will be submitted without delay to
your commanding officer and other relevant service authorities. You do not
have to say anything unless you wish to do so but what you say may be given in
evidence

Yes

You are now given the opportunity to read over the Record of Interview. As you
do so would you sign the bottom of each page indicating that you have read it,
agreed with the contents and make a note against anything you consider to be
inaccurate. You are also invited to place your initials against each question
and answer. Do you wish to read the record of interview?

Yes.

1903 record of interview handed over.

I Y 2 ve read over the record of interview

consisting of seven pages. There are no inaccuracies. I have signed each page
accordingly. I have also initialled each question and answer.

1910 hrs 6 Jan
Bulford

Witnessed by the Servica Palira:
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Statement by:

Surname: TR Case No: 06022/6

Christian Names: e T B R Type of Engagement: ¢
Regt No & Rank: —

Date & Place of Birth: (NS Height: (NN

Full Unit Address: 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford.

Date to leave command: 6 Jan Service: N/A

I make this statement of my own free will. I have been told that T need not say
anything unless I wish to do so and whatever 1 say may be given in evidence.

Signed CEEEEEG_—_——NY

Owing to the fact that I leave 1 PARA wef 6 Jan for Norway, following which I am
posted to the MOD wef 9 Feb I wish to emphasise several points in the event that
a Board of Enquiry may be held in my absence. Firstly I wish to stress the
amount of planning and preparation which went into the exercise. Everyone from
CO down to Pl Comd level, and in some cases section comds were talked through the
exercise on the ground. Individual coys were subsequently able to train over
that same ground prior to the exercise and did so.

Secondly, although it appears that no formal exercise instruction was written
several written instructions covering planning for the exercise were produced,
including some large painted briefing charts which were used during the CO and
Coy Comd's orders. The amount of planning, reconnaissance and detailed
examination of the ground surpassed any written directive.

Thirdly, I emphasise the amount of preparation that the safety staff underwent,
with a full briefing from myself at Mjolfjell camp (canteen) following which they
were taken out to the exercise area. The absence of Sijjly due to his own
Board of Enquiry responsibilities did not constitute a problem, and the fact that
he reported for safety duty during A Coys attack not having been at the main
briefing was not critical. He was briefed on the day by other staff and was
fully capable of carrying out his safety duties. It should also be recognised
that GESRNSNNENEEE., =1lthough not at the original briefing, replaced gy
during C and B Coy attacks and had the benefit, and prebriefing, of carrying out
the exercise twice prior to A Coy. The fact that both these officers became
involved with the soldiers who fell through the ice was again not a real problen,
as other safety staff were on call to be moved to any position on the exercise
area, and did so. I also wish to emphasise that although a couple (I am not

Signed — (EEG—ND Signature witnessed by NS

-57-
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Case No 06022/6

Continuation of statement of (NN

certain how many) safety staff radios had failed by the time A Coy went through,
there is no stated requirement that each man requires a radio. We had in fact
gone to great lengths to constitute a safety net. I was able to control the
safety staff on one net, and the Platoons on another. We also had a spare

control net and had constituted a rebro link high on the mountain to ensure comms.
There were always radios within the perimeter of any platoon down to section
level on one or other of the nets.

Finally I should state that, although it may sound somewhat lame, the scale of
this extensive exercise in which 3lmm mortar, scimitar practice rds, MILAN, 84mm
Carl Gustev PRAC and it should be noted at one stage live air to ground F5
support (which did not materialize) tended to obscure the use of the 2" mortar
and its relative regulations concerning its use. The tragedy being that such

regulations have been proven.
Signed N

The above statement was self written in my presence and signatures witnessed by

me at 1855 hrs on Tue 6 Jan 87 at Bulford.
Signed D

-
RMP SIB

v

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY
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Aldershot Det SIB RMP UKLF

Aldershot Military - 3396
06022/6 Oct 86
CO SIB RMP UKLF
1. ALLEGED MANSLAUGHTER
2. ALLEGED NEGLECT OF DUTY

3. SUDDEN DEATH
(FINAL REPORT)

Person Deceased: 24351430 Sgt LYDEN Daniel
Born: 8 Oct 57

A Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford.

Persons Reported: L e TR SRR T T T R

For 1 & 2 Ht: E =" 2
Colour Eyes: Qi@ Colour Hair: Ui

For 1 & 2  eneamcelwiesess siSoaiimac Tty © & .

Born: ORI A e D
Ht: L 5% )

Colour Eyes: WM Colour Hair: CEREEENN

Both of 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford, Wilts.

1. On Thu 13 Feb 86 instructions were received from HQ SIB RMP
UKLF, that enquiries be made into a range accident which occurred
about 1400 hrs that day, at Mjolfjell Valley, Norway, when an
explosion occurred, fatally wounding 24351430 Sgt Lyden D (Born 8
Oct 57) and injuring

W and UGS 211 of 2 P1 A Coy 1 PARA, at that time
deployed on Ex 'HARDFALL SOUTH' in Norway.

2. Enquiries were commenced and the facts of the case are as
follows. Sgt Lyden met his death while taking part in a Coy live
firing exercise, conducted in the Mjolfjell Traianing Area,
Norway, map sheet M816. A Coy, 1 PARA under command of (il
A P ARA, were carrying out live firing Coy attacks
planned by CEIEEENSENNSEENNNEP °ARA, 0C Sp Coy, 1 PARA,

who also acted as the range safety officer but no written orders
were prepared. It would appear that both B and C Coys 1 PARA had
conducted this same exercise on Tue 11 Feb 86 and Wed 12 Feb 86.
A copy of map sheet Mjolfjell M816 showing the relative positions
of the objectives and mortar positions is attached at Annex A to
this report and for ease of comprehension it is suggested that it
be read in conjunction with the following narrative. Elements of
Sp Coy 1 PARA including a 2 inch mortar were deployed on the
ridge around the Satebu Hut, grid 826373 and along a ridge of high
ground running North East of that position. The Sp Coy Mortar Pl
OP was also located at this position, whilst the mortar line
comprising 4 barrels, was sited at grid 822349. A Coy arrived at
their DZ by helicopter and moved forward to their form up point.
Elements of A Coy support group including SF GPMG, 84 mm Anti Tank
and a 2 inch mortar moved to the area of the Satebu Hut in order
to assist with suppressive fire being laid down by Sp Coy.
_1_
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3. The exercise was planned in such a way that three objectives,
comprising of prepared, unmanned, bunkers were located to the
East of the Satebu Hut in the approximate areas of grid 829374,
the first objective, grid 832377 the second objective and grid
833372 the 'in depth' position. For 81 mm mortar purposes these
objectives were registered and designated as targets X11, X12 and
X13 respectively. During the opening stages of the exercise, X11
and X12 were to be engaged by 2 wortars each whilst fire on X13
would be provided by all four tubes. During A Coy's attack a
fire mission order requiring 5 mortar rounds per tube to be fired
on targets X11 and X12 was given and required both targets to be
engaged simultaneously. Following this, a barbed wire
entanglement which had been placed in front of the Satebu Hut,
between it and the objectives was breached by a Bangalore
torpedo, immediately afterwards A Coy began moving from their
form up point and the mortar fire missions order was repeated.

It was during this phase of the exercise whilst breaching the
barbed wire that a 2 inch mortar, sited to the right of the
Satebu Hut and operated by HNNIEEED VNN -] TSEENED
WE® PD both of Sp Coy 1 PARA was in action and laid down
a barrage of 24 rounds of HE for battlefield simulation. This
weapon did not fire again after the breaching of the barbed wire
entanglement. It is worthy of note at this time to mention that
at the time of the 81lmm bombardment on the target X11 troops were
deployed at the Satebu Hut, the distance between this position
and the target being established later by laser range finder as
being 160 metres. Additionally that whilst IR -nd GEED
PR vere firing their 2 inch mortar troops were deployed at
very short distances on either side of them and were moving in
the area in front of the weapon within its arc of fire.

4. As the attack moved forward, the bunker positions were
engaged by 84mm anti tank guns firing Tracer Projectile Target
Practice (TPTP), and a 2 inch mortar operated by

GRS :nd his number 2 UENEENENGNENEENNRNEE both of A
Coy. All of these weapons were located at the Satebu Hut and
VN D, HQ Coy, provided safety supervision for one
84 mm and the 2 inch mortar used by Syl both of which
were sited to the right of (NN position. The 84mm anti
tank gun engaged its targets following which the team left the
weapon pit to rejoin their platoon. (i »ortar began
firing as the advance began. Once again the line of the advance
would have taken the advancing troops into the weapon's danger
area.

5. It was during this advance while negotiating a frozen
waterfall, that several members of the leading sections fell into
a frozen pond breaking the ice and became immersed. Additionally
one member of the unit received a bayonet wound to the leg. 1In
view of this situation (EEEEEEGGEGGGEGGEEEENENEES TR att Sp Coy, 1
PARA, who was a safety supervisor accompaning 2 Pl A Coy stopped
at the frozen pond to render what assistance he could. He claims
that he had seen a safety supervisor moving on from that position
with 2 Pl, but that some five minutes later he was approached by

PARA, the other safety supervisor
allocated to 2 Pl, who took charge of the situation and
instructed him to move forward and rejoin the pl.

Para 5 Continued .....
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Para 5 /Continued .....

U 2ccount of this incident is at variance with Gl
— in that he claims to have remained at the waterfall and
not to have accompanied the leading pl. It should be noted that
both NS -nd GNP :2grce that there was no
detailed briefing of their responsibilities, neither were they
allocated to any specific weapons' group Or support weapone.
However, what is clear is that no safety supervisor was
controlling Sgt Lyden's fire. Although provision had been made
to stop the exercise in the event of a serious incident or
accident neither officer was equipped with a radio or red mini
flares with which to do so. It should be noted that unlike B and
C Coys who advanced on their objectives one at a time, as each
was selzed, A Coy's assault platoons moved together giving more
speed and momentum to their attack.

6. 2 P1, the leading platoon, who were to attack the first
objective moved forward and using a hand grenade and rifle fire
and QNS :tocok their objective. They were then
joined by the remainder of their fire support team, including
who deployed to the right. The other
section under the command of NN G
assaulted the second bunker of the first objective located some
40 - 50 metres to the left of this section. Once the position
had been secured it was intended that the 2 Pl HQ would also
locate itself at the bunker held by (Y :0d to this end
Sgt Lyden and (SR vho was to act as No 1 on the weapon took
up positions to the rear right of the bunker where they
established their 2 inch mortar and began firing at the 'in
depth' position. (Ml has described his arrival at the
position and the siting of the mortar, and states that the
ammunition, a total of some 28 bombs which he carried, had been
prepared prior to the commencement of the exercise, at which time
the bombs were removed from their primary packaging although the
safety pins and tape were left in position for transit.
According tc Gy t he weapon base plate was placed directly
onto hard packed snow and the position was not prepared in any
manner whatsoever. i has described where Sgt Lyden and he
were positioned in relationm to the weapon and the manner in wich
Sgt Lyden loaded the weapon with 2 rounds which he as No 1,
fired. He claims that Sgt Lyden was also supporting the weapon,
aiming it and having observed the fall of shot making any
necessary adjustments. —recalls actually firing two
rounds without any base plate sinkage or slippage and remembers a
third being loaded following which there was an explosion and he
was injured. This soldier did not see the strike of the first
two rounds and has no recollection of firing this third round.
Both (NN - G h2ve confirmed that 2 rounds had
been fired by the weapon prior to an explosion occurring as a
result of which they received their injuries. According to Ul
he described seeing Sgt Lyden and Sl arrive at the
location and set up their 2 inch mortar. He describes both
soldiers as kneeling on one knee and from the manner in which Sgt
Lyden was holding the weapon he assumed that Sgt Lyden was firing
whilst QISP loaded. He heard two rounds fired and a few
seconds later a loud explosion, but saw nothing of the flash
smoke or debris. (il cl2ims that at some stage during
either the advance to the objective or whilst there he was aware
of detonations occurring some 100 metres or so to his front.

-3-
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7. Numerous persons taking part in the exercise were in the
vicinity of the first objective at the time of the explosion,

or moving towards it, namel RN M el
PARA, 2 Pl Comdr, and SNNES
both of A Coy 1 PARA. All of these witnesses

have related hearing an explosion and seeing a ball of black
smoke at Sgt Lyden's position. Qlthbugh estimates of the
dimensions of this ball of black smoke or its height vary, all
of these accounts describe the smoke ball as being above ground
level. None of these witnesses saw any kind of flash or fire
ball associated with the explosion. As G rcached the
position he saw the 2 inch mortar lying between the prostrate

bodies of Sgt Lyden and NN @GNS ricked up the
mortar to check it and established that it was clear of
ammunition. Located at the Satebu Hut was NI
GH, Sp Coy a Mortar Pl Radio Operator. Also present at the
Satebu Hut as observers were Gen Sir G Howlett CinC AFNORTH and

RA G3 Trg HQ UKLF. All three also
describe seeing an explosion at the first objective and
describe a black ball of smoke above the ground with no
associated flash. QR :1sc stated that his initial
impression was that the explosion had occurred in front of the
position as viewed from his vantage point and he commented on
the absence of ground debris.

8. Medical assistance was summoned and \Glilll_

RAMC, the RMO 1 PARA attended the scene. On initial
examination of Sgt Lyden he noted a small entry wound to the
chest in the area of the heart, but he was unable to detect a
pulse and the SNCO's heart had stopped beating. After initial
attempts at resuscitation Sgt Lyden was conveyed by helicopter
to the Regimental Aid Post where after further attempts at
resuscitation (N certified that Sgt Lyden was dead.
was also taken to the RAP but after initial
treatment was conveyed with G R :nd GEENNNER tc Voss
Hospital where they underwent surgery for the removal of
shrapnel from various wounds. Sgt Lyden's body was conveyed by
GRS, GV 1 PARA to the (NEEMEENEEED by helicopter
where it was received by (NN :AMC, 16 Fd Amb
AMF(L), Wing Bks, Bulford from whence it was taken on by the
same helicopter in the care of (NSNS 'R RAF, 33
Sqn, RAF Odiham to Voss Hospital, handed over to a civilian
ambulance crew whose details are not known and taken to Gade
Institute Bergen. On 14 Feb 86 after being identified by R
PARA, 1 PARA, a post mortem examination was

carried out by . This examination
established the presence of several sharpnel wounds and a
"crushed' right thigh bone. Whilst post mortem

report has been translated to read 'crushed” this is not
actually the case and the bone was chipped by shrapnel
fragments. Of these injuries one piece of sharpnel had entered
the body in the area of the left nipple, passed through the
left lung and entered the heart. This injury is given as the
cause of death and that fragment together with two others were
recovered from Sgt Lyden's body.
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- 9. (NN .T RAOC, AMF(L) Ord Coy who was in the

exercise area attended the scene. During his examination of the
area he was able to recover two live 2 inch HE mortar rounds with
their safety caps and pins in place, three 2 inch mortar safety
caps and two safety pins. Visual inspection of the area failed
to show any signs of a ground signature and examination of the
ammunition boxes from which the bunker has been comnstructed also
failed to produce any sharpnel or signs of shrapnel damage. Gl
4RgNEP did note that a small tree located to the right side of
the bunker had been struck by an explosive device and showed
signs of blast and burn damage. NN has related that due
to the number of people moving about over the scene during the
initial attempts to assist the injured soldiers together with the
~arrival of several helicopters, the scene was somewhat disturbed
prior to his arrival. All items of equipment were removed from
the scene for a more detailed examination during which (NI
was assisted by NN RAOC of his unit. G
G h2d made a video recording of these items, the damage to
them and the scene and has related how he recovered one piece of
shrapnel from a waterbottle in one set of webbing. Another piece
of shrapnel was handed to (M) by 2o unknown person having
been allegedly removed from (jNN)- The 2 inch mortar was
recovered and examined by REME, an
armourer serving with AMF(L) Wksp REME. This examination was not
carried out with all gauges or barrel history sheet (AF G 8025)
but nevertheless established that the weapon was mechanically
serviceable and bore no sign of an internal premature

detonation.

10. As a result of the foregoing, vital but protracted lines of
enquiry involving shrapnel producing weapons have been taken in
an attempt to establish which weapon caused the explosion
resulting in Sgt Lyden's death including the submission of debris
to DLSA and RARDE for detailed analysis. These will be discussed
in the following paragraphs. Additionally all soldiers taking
part in the exercise have been interviewed but statements have
only been recorded from those persons with information pertinant
to this enquiry. It is confirmed that no other troops were
exercising in the area at the relevant time. :

81 MM MORTARS

11. The Mortar Pl Sp Coy 1 PARA, was under the command of (e

Canadian Armed Forces, an exchange officer who
acted as the overall range mortar safety officer and

ARA who acted as the safety supervisor for the

Observation Post (OP) Mortar Fire Controller (MFC). The mortar
base plate positions were prepared using 'Raschen Bags' on Mon 10
Feb 86, the bags and base plates being left in situ throughout
the period of the exercise. Daily sight testing was carried out
on the mortars and the weapons fired in order to observe and
adjust their belts of fire as required. As the No 1 and No 2
mortars were to fire on the first objective X11, No 3 and No 4
mortars were to fire on the second objective X12 and all four
mortars were to fire on the in depth position, only the No 2 and
No 4 mortars were used for this adjustment, the weapons having
been paralleled in accordance with normal practice.

Para 11 /Continued .....
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Para 11 /Continued .....

G P ARA, was detailed to act as the A Coy MFC

and as such relayed instructions for mortar fire from (NN
to the OP MFC, U P ARA, who after verifying them
with G passed the instructions to the mortar line. Fire
mission orders were issued calling for mortars No 1 and 2 to fire
five rounds each on to target X11 and No 3 and 4 to fire five
rounds each on to target X12 simultaneously. This fire mission
order was repeated to coincide with the breaching of the barbed
wire and fire was then switched to the 'in depth position’ X13 on
to which each mortar fired 3 rounds, a total salve of 12 rounds.
GRS counted down all 20 rounds onto the targets from the
first salvo and both he and QN cbserved the strikes of the
20 rounds from the second salvo. There were no blinds. With
regard to the third salvo fired onto the target X13 both NCOs
observed all 12 rounds impact into the target area. According to
U :s the last round of this salvo struck he became aware
that there had been an explosion at the first objective. @il
attention was drawn to this incident by ‘Giisiiiile. the OP
MFC radio operator as the last 81 mm round struck. L e o
G o U :rc qualified in the use of mortars
having attended courses at the School of Inf Weapons Wing
Netheravon. (il hzs been trained at Bn level. Following the
report of the acident at the first objective, the mortar teams
were ordered to 'stand clear' and the weapons and sights checked
by G “ho was able to verify that all four weapons were
correctly adjusted to fire onto the 'in depth position' X13.

L2 HAND GRENADES.

12, No 2 Pl were issued with two L2 hand grenades for use during
the exercise. One was carried by G 2nd used on his

bunker postion, the other by (D vhich was used on his
bunker position. Both grenades exploded prior to the explosion

which killed Sgt Lyden.

84 mm ANTI TANK.

13. The 84 mm Anti Tank Guns deployed during the exercise fired
Tracer Projectile Training Practice (TPTP) which is inert.
Additionally these weapons only fired om to the objective at the
initial stages of the advance and then moved foreward to rejoin
the sections and platoons. They were not cperating at the time
of the incident.

OTHER EXPLOSIVE NATURES.

14. Whilst there were no other explosives devices used at the
first objective, Gen Howlett, CHyiiiily 2n~d S 211 nade
reference to explosions occurring forward of the first objective.
Gen Howlett describes two or three explosions some 150 metres
forward which appeared to him to originate from a single weapon
as opposed to a battery and UNSEMMEMMM vhilst aware of explosions
occurring some 50-60 metres forward, did not associate them with
the 81 mm bombardment. (il hovever, is not quite sure
whether the explosions were occurring whilst he was skirmishing
towards the position or actually at it but he describes two or
three explosions occurring some 100 metres forward and claims that
he was also aware of other detonations further away in the area of
the 'in depth' positionu. ‘

_6._
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OVER HEAD GPMG FIRE.

15. Reference has been made by Wil to overhead GPMG fire
above the first objective. In view of this

D PARA, A Coy's SF GPMG controller has been interviewed and
states that his brief was to lay down suppressive fire on the
first objective up until the timé that the Bangalore Torpedo
detonated at which time he was to switch targets to the second
objective. He was to continue firing on this objective until
such time as 3 Pl passed through the gap in the barbed wire when
he would again switch targets. The third target given to G
@I :2nd the SF GPMG gun groups was a group of fig 11 targets
sited on the far wall of the valley between the first and second
objective. The weapons fired as briefed. NI v2s not
aware of any REME testing of his weapon for overhead fire prior
to the exercise and it should also be noted that the weapons
fired using iron sights not the C2 sight and aiming post.

2 INCH MORTAR

16. The pieces of shrapnel recovered from Sgt Lyden's body,
O - nd the webbing were submitted to RARDE Fort
Halstead. Electron microscopic examination was carried out on
the fragments and comparisons made with control specimens of
mortar shrapnel originating from 2 inch mortar bombs of the same
manufacturer's batch. These comparisons established that both
the control and the subject specimens had the same metalic and
chemical composition. In addition, the sample recovered from
the web equipment bore traces of tin whilst the fragment removed
from Sgt Lyden's heart bore traces of copper. As neither tin
nor copper are component parts of the 2 inch mortar bomb the
only possible explanations for the presence of either are that
these particles of shrapnel have ricochetted off particles of
those metals at or shortly after the time of the explosions.
Under test conditions using witness plates of tin and copper in
both the vertical and horizontal planes shrapnel from a
detonated 2 inch mortar bomb has been found to have collected
traces of both metals. Due to the earlier use of 7.62 nm
ammunition and L2 hand grenades traces of both metals would have
been available at the sceme. It should be noted that the
information regarding the fragment of shrapnel recovered from
the tin water bottle in the webbing was not made known by the
Ammunition Technicians to either the investigator nor RARDE
until the examinations were completed. Consequently no tests or
comparisons of the tin water bottle or cup have been made. The
RARDE examination showed that the fragments could not have
originated from a 81 mm mortar nor from any of the other weapons
used in the exercise and in view of the results of the tests
conducted, the conclusion drawn was that the fragments
originated from a 2 inch mortar bomb.

17. It is known that Sgt Lyden and (U had fired two
rounds from their mortar immediately prior to the explosion and
that whilst a third mortar bomb had been loaded, there is no
clear evidence from any person present at that location of it
being fired. '

Para 17 /Continued .....
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It should be moted that the base plate position had not been
prepared and the mortar was thus vulnerable to sinkage or
slippage whilst being fired. Additionally it is known that Gl
and GNP cre operating their 2 inch mortar,
firing from the Satebu Hut. When interviewed, Gl
explained that he used a piece of wood for the base plate which
split and he then used a bergen side pouch on which to steady the
weapon. He did not observe the fall of the first shot but relied
on G his safety supervisor to ensure that this round fell
on target. It should be noted that Wl has no formal
weapon trg qualifications. From the statements of il and
Ul the mortar engaged the second objective but at UHEN
WA direction the target impact area was switched to a
position in the open ground in between the first and second
objective, but beyond them. However, Ullliipingmgy clzins that he
fired eight mortar bombs at the second objective and with the
exception of the first which was observed by NN b
observed all of the strikes and none of his rounds fell short.

18. With regard to the damaged tree noticed by UIEEEGNNg 2t the
location where Sgt Lyden received his injury; as the area was
used as a mortar impact area on several occasions prior to the
day of the accident it could not be established when the damage
occurred. NN 25 taking photographs during the attack and
these together with the negatives have been handed to the
undersigned. ©Photographic enlargements of parts of those
negatives showing the first objective just prior to the 1Incident
have been produced in an attempt to establish the coundition of
the tree and position of it relative to Sgt Lyden's mortar.
Unfortunately due to the distance involved and the camera
equipment used, these failed to resolve the problem. The
negatives have also been submitted to the Home Office Police
Research and Development Establishment for computer enhancement,
but this was also unsuccessful due to the computer's inability to
resolve the grain of negative. It is therefore not possible to
establish whether the tree was damaged at the time of the
incident or at any time prior to it.

19. It can be seen from Mg cvidence that he considered
that the distance between the mortar tube and the reported
heights of the explosion that killed Sgt Lyden, was too short for
the mortar bomb to have armed itself. Enquiries were therefore
made in an effort to determine the method of detonation of a 2
inch mortar bomb. The bombs in use with 1 PARA at the relevant
time originated from batch no GD 0269016956 and were fitted with
the standard No 161 fuze which was manufactured at ROA Blackburn.
Accordingly enquiries were made at ROA Blackburn where it was
established that manufacture of the fuze in question ceased
somewhere between 15 to 20 years ago. Detailed drawings of the
fuze were no longer available and it was therefore not possible
for a definite answer to be given about the arming distance of
the 2 inch mortar bomb. VMM ROA Blackburn, stated that
in his opinion the fuze would be set and the bomb armed within a
metre of leaving the mortar tube.

Para 19 /Continued .....
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When asked to provide a written statement to that effect, -
) rcferred the matter to his superiors who refused to allow
him to make any form of written statement as the ROA Blackburn
were not the design authority for the 2 inch mortar bomb, and
without express permission from the design authority the factory
authorities would not allow a statement to be made. Due to the
production date of the 2 inch mortar bombs it has not been
possible to date to ascertain exactly who the design authority
is. Efforts to establish this and produce expert documentary
evidence of the workings of the fuze continue and should they
prove successful the results will be forwarded to all addressess
under separate cover.

20. From the foregoing there can be little doubt that Sgt Lyden
was killed as a result of a 2 inch mortar bomb explosion. There
can only be two possible sources of the explosion: either an
outgoing bomb from the SNCO's own mortar or an incoming mortar
bomb which could only have originmated from the mortar operated by
U $There was no count of the unused bombs remaining
at the scene, so the amount of bombs fired by Sgt Lydemn cannot
positively be ascertained. However, the evidence of those
present shows that three bombs were loaded and the recovery of 3
nose caps from the scene tends to support this. The fact that
the explosion occurred shortly after the third bomb was loaded
tends to suggest that the explosion was caused by an outgoing
bomb. The only possible causes of an explosion at this location
are:

a. An outgoing bomb striking the tree which was within Sgt

Lyden's arc of fire.

b. An outgoing bomb being struck by over head small arms
fire.

c. An incoming bomb landing on the positioh or tree.

d. On incoming bomb being struck by overhead small arms
fire.

e. Faulty ammunition detonated prematurely.

Here it should be noted that Inf Trg Vol 4 Pamp 21 sec 43 para
1487 draws the attention of the safety supervisor of a mortar
detachment to the dangers of overhead foliage and barrel
obstructions.

21. Examination of the records held by the Directorate Land
Services Ammunition have established that no previous accidents
under similar circumstances have occurred involving 2 inch mortar
HE bombs. A ban on the use of 2 inch mortar ammunition initiated
as a result of this incident remains in force.

22. The scene of the incident was visited by
U, Depot PARA & AB Forces, and from his observations
at the scene and evidence of the witnesses, it is apparent that
safety regulations involving the planning and preparation of the
exercise, the siting of the weapon group and general execution as
required by Inf Trg Vol IV Pamp No 21 Range and Safety and
Conduct and Inf Trg Vol 1, Pamp 8 (0ld Series), had not been
observed. U 2 s 2ble to detail specifically the
breaches of regulations as follows:
Para 22 /Continued .....
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a. Failure to produce detailed written exercise
instructious.

b. Failure adequately to brief and rehearse safety
supervisors.

c. The employment of unqualified safety supervisors.

d. Faillure to apply the safety criteria in the siting and
firing of all weapons.

e. The use of the 2 inch mortar firing HE bombs the
requirements of which are contained in Inf Trg Vol 4, Pamp
21, Sect 36, Para 1262 and Inf Trg Vol 1 (0ld Series) Pamp
8, the Light Mortar (2 inch) Para 129, which state:

Inf Trg Vol 4, Pamp 21, Sect 36, Para 1262:

1262 HE Bombs The following additional rules are to be
observed: ‘

a. During firing no—-one is to be in the danger area forward
of the mortar line. Range conducting staff and the firers
only are to be on the mortar line. Waitiong details and
spectators are allowed within the danger area provided that
they are behind the mortar line, protected by blast proof
cover and are wearing steel helmets.

b. The kneeling positioﬁ only is to be used for firing.
c. 1Individual mortar positiéﬁs are to be 20 metres apart.

d. Firing is to be from behind splinter proof cover at least
800 mm high. It may be of compacted earth, a sand bag wall
or a shallow pit. Immediately the fall of the bomb has been
observed, firers and supervisors are to lower their heads
behind this cover.

e. Only the amount of bombs required for one detaill is to be
on the mortar lime. The remainder are to be on a ready line
outside the danger area or if inside the danger area they are
to be behind the mortar line and protected by blast proof
cover. Bombs are NOT to be prepared for firing until they
are on the mortar line.

f. Bombs are not to be fired on field firing exercises.

Inf Trg Vol 1, Pamp 8, (01d Series), Para 129:

Field Firihg Exercises

129. HE Bombs are not to be used on field firing exercises.
This i1s because the mortar is a hand-held weapon and its
accuracy is accordingly dependent entirely on the skill of
the firer. ‘ .

Para 22 /Continued .....
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Para 22 /Continued .....

Gy produced copies of the relevant paras together with a 2
inch mortar safety trace extracted from Inf Trg Vol 4, Pamp 221,
Range Coustruction & Use, and was of the opinion that the firing
of the 2 inch mortar under the existing climatic conditions was
particularly foolhardy due to the high risk of base plate sinkage
and slippage.

23. Various other eunquiries have been made inm an attempt to
pinpolint the seat of the explosion resulting im Sgt Lyden's
death. As no ground signature of an explosion was located and
witness accounts of the position are unreliable as to its exact
position these enquiries have been unsuccessful. It should be
noted that both Sgt Lyden's and T vounds are
predominately to the left side of the body. In view of this the
assistance of NN :-o! UM, Dispersents Div,
CDE Porton Down was sought. Having been given access to all of
the evidence accumulated to date they have expressed the opinion
that the source of the shrapnel was probably some short distance
from Sgt Lyden and Ul :nd to their left forward side. Due
to the lack of available technical data relating to the speeds,
weights and sizes of shrapnel fragments produced by the 2 inch
mortar neither NN or UMY could make any further
comment or draw any other conclusions, consequently no written
statements have been obtained from them.

24. Copies of course reports regarding the attendance of both
Sy oo A oo Platoon Commanders Battle Course
(PCBC) at the School of Infantry Warminster, a basic
qualification to act as range supervisors have been obtained from
the Adjt 1 PARA (NN rARA, and are attached to
this report. A copy of the Mjolfjell Range Standing Orders
written and published by (N FARA, DCOS 1 Inf Bde
Tidworth, formerly 2IC 1 PARA, have been obtained and are also
attached to this report.

25. It is drawn to the attention of all addressees that,
regardless of which weapon was responsible for the accident
resulting in Sgt Lyden's death, had the various requirements of
Inf Trg Pamps as outlined in Para 22 above, been complied with
the 2 inch mortar would not have been deployed on the exercise
and the SNCO would not have been killed nor others injured.

26. On Fri 29 Aug 86, Wil “:s interviewed by SIB after
caution. During this interview the officer explained the
planning and preparation of the exercise. He acknowledged that
he had failed to check on the requirements regarding the 2 inch
mortar nor had he applied the weapon safety trace.

alleged that the weapons had been deployed with the knowledge of
the 2IC -PARA, who had published a letter outlining
2 inch mortar ammunition allocations for the exercise. He
declined to make any form of written statement.
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27. —has been interviewed with regard to (il

GEERENPEE -1lcgation and a copy of the letter produced to him.
Whilst _has acknowledged authorship of the letter he

states that it is only an ammunition allocation and not a
specific authority for the use of a 2 inch mortar during live
firing company exercises. He went on to state that he was aware
of the possible use of the 2 inch mortar on these exercises and
had no objection providing the sdfety criteria were applied.

28. On Tue 16 Sep 86 GNP ©* ARA, was Interviewed by SIB
after caution. He explained his role in the exercise as being

that of the Tactical Commander. His responsibilities were to
ensure that his tactical plan was within the constraints placed
on the exercise by virture of its location and scenario. He
admitted that he had not verified by reference to the various
publications the conditions under which specific weapons
including the 2 inch mortar could be used, nor had he applied the
various safety traces claiming that it was not his responsibility
to do so. (NN -xpanded on this by saying that the use of
the 2 inch mortar had been authorised by his Commanding Officer
although he could not specifically recall the details which were
given to him at a verbal briefing. He also expressed the opinion
that as a member of a PARA Bn it would not be in keeping for him
to verify the work or double check the instructions of his
superiors or contemporaries. He elected to make a written
statement reiterating his verbal comments.

29. A Board of Inquiry is to be convened to investigate the

incident under report and in view of this, neither VGjilliliimyh
nor GNP 2vc yet been notified that they are to be
reported as to do so might jeopardize any further enquiries the

Board may require to be made. Similarly, although other
personnel apparently committed breaches of the relevant
regulations, these have not to date been pursued, because they
have no direct bearing on Sgt Lyden's death. Should these
further enquiries be deemed necessary the appropriate actionm will
be taken and a further report submitted.

30. Copies of all maps, photographs, documents and statements
referred to are attached to this report, the originals of which
together with the shrapnel are retained available for production
if so required. -~

RMP (SIB)
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STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: . _— Forenames: WERETSenLS
Service No: ST Rank: o
Type of Engagement: (i NG_N . Height:
Date & Place of Birth: CHENNEENNEESE—
Full Unit Address: Sp Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford, Wilts.
Date to leave a.Command: Mar 86 b. Service: Aug 92

This statement,(consisting of 5 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 21st day of March 1986 Signed: U
I am NN ot present serving with Sp Coy, 1

PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford.

During Feb 86, I was taking part with my unit in Ex 'HARDFALL' in
Norway. Over the period Tue 11 to Thu 13 Feb 86, Coy live firing
exercises were to be conducted in the Mjolfjell Valley. Prior to this I
assisted in building the bunker positions for the Coy attacks.

The attack was planned in such a way that each pl was to pass
through a gap in a barbed wire entanglement, which had been blown by a
Bangalore Torpedo and then attack one of three prepared positions. The

attack was to be supported by 81 mm mortars, 84 mm Anti Tank guns and GPMG
SF.

About 1310 hrs onm Thu 13 Feb 86, A Coy began their attack. The
objectives had been designated as X11, X12 and X13. Mortar fire was laid
down on both X11 and X12. When this fire finished suppresive fire from SF
GPMGs, SLRs and a 2 inch mortar operated by myself was brought down from
the area of the Satebu Hut to cover the advance of the pioneers, who moved
forward to the barbed wire some 80-100 mtrs in front of me. The pioneer

Sect laid their bangalore and it was during this time that I was firing my
2 inch.

My weapon was sited to the right of the Satebu Hut on the open
ground. @ vas acting as my number 2. The base plate position
was prepared on the permafrost using broken polystyrene foam. Myself and
QI fired a total of 22 rounds or thereabouts, I fired 14 and GER
G fired 8. All of the rounds were fired at the right hand bunker of
the target X11 and the open ground to the right of that bunker. I saw all
of the rounds strike and explode. There were no blinds.

My mortar finished firing before the bangalore torpedo blew the gap
in the barbed wire and was not fired again that day.

=13~
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Continuation of Statement of: (NG Case No: 06022/6

s

The spread or belt of fire I laid down with the 2 inch mortar was
about 60 mtrs. Having considered the type of surface from which I was
firing I do not think this was excessive. The weapon will jump about when
fired and even when taking what you believe to be the same point of aim the
bombs will fall in different places. I was taking what I believed to be
the same point of aim each time. -

My mortar as I have previously stated finished firing before the
barbed wire had been blown and A Coy were still in the dead ground at the
left side of the Satebu Hut, they had not begun their advance.

Located to my right was another 2 inch mortar and an 84 mm gun

group. The 2 inch was operated by— of A Coy.

I cannot recall if there was any further 81 mm mortar fire on X11
and X12 or not. I had gone inside the Satebu Hut to get my binoculars and
camera when I finished firing. «

When I came back out of the hut A Coy were already going through the
wire. CNNNEIEN ortar was firing. I could not see where his bombs
were falling but I could see the direction in which his barrel was
pointing. It was directly across the front of the hut towards the area of
X12. ‘

I had taken some photographs of the general advance towards the
right hand bunker of X11 and then stopped as a belt of 81 mm mortar fire
landed on X13. I can't be certain but I think some troops had reached this
right hand bunker by this time.

The last photograph I took from this position was of (NS
fire trench.

I then moved to the other side of the Satebu Hut where I was going
to take some more photographs however, somebody drew my attention to
the right hand bunker where I saw a ball of black smoke above the ground.

As a result of a conversation with the CO I went to the location
with other people, travelling on skidoos. When I arrived I could see Sgt
Lyden lying on his back with his head towards the Satebu Hut. (NP vas
propped up against the bunker facing towards him, whlst G 2nd

were lying forward of the bunker. These four were all injured.
Several other people were present and still more arrived after me and first
aid was given.

I could not see any mortar bombs or the mortar itself until somebody
picked it up and threw it to one side, I cannot recall who this was. I
could not see what (NN v2s using as a base plate but a photograph
1 took of his position shows his base plate on the snow.

I have handed the negatives of those photographs to GNJEEENY RMP
(SIB), who has labelled them as exhibit WSE/1. I have signed that label.

Signed: EEENEND

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1030 hrs Fri 21
Mar 86 at Bulford.

Signed: G

o
-1l RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: . [ . Forenames: ek D
Service No: ERERSA b ‘ Rank: W
Type of Engagement: ool . Height:
Date & Place of Birth: sy
Full Unit Address: Sp Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford.
Date to leave a.Command: Nk b. Service: Nk

This statement,(consisting of 3 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 18th day of March 1986 Signed: IENEND

I am QNN -t present serving with Sp Coy; 1
PARA.

On Thu 13 Feb 86 about 1230 hrs or thereabouts I was taking part im
a Coy live firing field exercise being carried out by A Coy, l PARA, in
the Mjolfjell Valley or Range Valley, Norway.

1 was tasked with various admin responsibilites and to assist @@
O in firing the 2 inch mortar from the Satebu Hut at the various
objectives and the area behind the barbed wire, to simulate battle field
conditions. B8lmm mortars were firing on to the objectives.

Firing stopped and the pioneer Sect went forward to place Bangalore
Torpedos to breach the barbed wire. When the wire was breached the Coy
attacked through the gap.

The mortar that QNSNS and I had been firing was not needed
anymore so I watched the attack going on. 1 could see people attacking
the nearest objective X11l. Due to the distance which I estimate at 300 to
350 mtrs I could not distinguish individuals or weapons groups. 1 could
see a safety supervisor, discernible because of his orange headband and
arm band in the dead ground just behind the Sect at the right hand bunker
of X11. I'm sure that other people were standing just behind the Sect
watching them.

I saw a puff of black smoke at this location. It was above the
Sect, I did not see any flash. 1 saw somebody fall backwards and a couple
of people roll over. The people who fell down were at the right side of
the bunker towards the rear and those who rolled over were level with the
bunker on the right side.

A 2 inch mortar sited at the Satebu Hut, being operated by il
QR vac firing about the time I saw the puff of smoke but I'm sure
that it did not fire again afterwards as people were shouting for medics.

15
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rontinuation of Statement of: Rk CERR Case No: 06022/6

While I was watching I could see the fall of Gy nortar
and this was to the left of the objective where I had seen the puff of
smoke. As far as I am concerned all of his rounds appeared to fall on the
outer objective which was away to the left.

Myself and Gl c-xperienced no problems with our ammunition, or
any problems with the mortar itself.

I do not know if Qi th2d any problems with either his
ammunition or weapon.

Signed: \EEENEND

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1600 hrs Tue 18
Mar 86 at Bulford.

Signed: NN

RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: ) g terca ) Forenames: s
Service No: ARIIATES Rank: "’
Type of Engagement: e . Height:
Date & Place of Birth: WD
Full Unit Address: 1 pl, A Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford, Wilts.
Date to leave a.Command: Jun 87 b. Service: NK

This statement,(consisting of 6 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 16th day of February 1986 Signed: EENENEND

I an SFNNEEENENY PARA, at present on Ex 'HARDFALL SOUTH' in

the Voss Area, Norway with my Unit.

About 1700 hrs Mon 10 Feb 86, 1 went with my OC VS e pl
Comdrs , IR - GREMMER, the other pl Sgts Sgt Lyden,
OIS -nd and the CSM Sp Coy (NN to the area

known as Mjolfijell Valley Range at Grid 829375, where we were briefed by
the OC on an exercise that was to take place. I was briefed that it was
going to be a Coy live firing attack there were to be 3 objectives with
each pl to take one objective in turn. He briefed us that there were to
be support weapons including Milan, Scimitar and 8lmm and 2 inch mortars,
a helicopter gun ship and a fighter ground attack by a fighter plane which
would not infact open fire. To explain the positions to be adopted by the
support weapons and the routes to be taken to reach the objectives. Today
I have been shown by SjR:MP (SIB), a plan marked Coy live firing
attack, to which was attached an exhibit identification label marked JRP/1
which I have signed.

With regard to exhibit JRP/1 I recognise this plan as being the one
used by QNN to brief us on the exercise. I was briefed by Gl
GNP - to what my role was to be. However, the day before the -
exercise I was injured and my role in the exercise was changed by the 0OC
who then briefed me that I was to be in charge of the fire support for the
attack comprising of 2 GPMGs in the SF role, 2 x 84 mm Anti Tank weapons
(Carl Gustavs) and 1 x 2 inch mortar which the OC told me I was to fire.
PR - ther told me that I was to position the fire support to the
left side of the Satebu Hut which is a small hut overlooking the range in
the valley below.

On Thu 13 Feb 86 starting from about 1130 hrs A Coy flew by
helicopter to the landing zone which was about 1 kilometre away from the
form up point (FUP). We all arrived at the FUP which was located about
800 m from the range. Once the fire support team had all arrived I
reported this to the 0C.
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STAFF IN CONFIDENCE



STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

. 7ontinuation of Statement of: (EEG_—_—_G—_—_ Case No: 06022/6

By this time I had been briefed that I was to engage positions X11 and X12
with the 2 inch mortar I was to fire. The GPMGs were to engage X11, X12
and X13 and the 84 mm anti tank weapons to engage the bunkers on X11.

These positions are marked an exhibit JRP/1. After I reported to the OC
that we were all present he told me to mdve onto the range with the fire
support. We moved onto the range and I looked for a position to the left
hand side of the hut. When I reached this area I saw that the positions to
the left of the hut were already occupied by members of Sp Coy. I
positioned the 2 GPMGs in the area of these occupied trenches together with
one 84 mm. I then went to look for a position for myself with the 2 inch
and the other 84 mm. (N vho was my safety supervisor for the 2 inch
mortar told me that there was a position to the right of the hut where B
Coy had fired their 2 inch mortar from on the previous exercise. I went to
the right handside of the hut where I saw a trench about 10 metres to the
right of the hut. I got into the trench with the 2 inch mortar and the 84
mm crew. My No 2 (EENEE v2s lying to the left hand side of the
trench. The brief I had received was that 1 was to open fire on X11 and
X12 when the Bangalore Torpedo exploded breaching a gap in the wire for A
Coy to go through to the positions they were to attack.

After about 10 minutes I saw the assault pioneers running down the
side of the valley towards the barbed wire. They prepared the Bangalore
Torpedo which exploded and breached the wire. Both 84 mm then fired as
briefed at the bunkers on X11, my 84 mm crew then left the trench. I looked
around the target areas and I could see members of A Coy approach the gap
in the wire which was the start for X11. I decided not to fire any bombs
at X11 because of this. I then told (NN :c load the mortar and I
fired a bomb at X12. I did not see this bomb strike. I said to JE—_GgG
did you see that one land and he said yes. 1 fired a further 7 bombs at
X12. 1 didn't fire any more after this as I stopped to observe the
movements of the troops below and «ijl i to1d me to stop firing. By
this time the pl attacking X12 were getting quite close to their objective.
At no time did I fire any bombs at X11l. Out of the 8 rounds I fired there
was one misfire which I rectified by clearing snow from the pad and firing
the bomb and as far as I observed them were no malfunctions or drop shorts.
For the first few bombs the base plate for the mortar was on a wooden base,
which split and I then put the base plate on a bergen.

I did not observe any accidents and it was only later I learn't that
there had been casualties during the exercise.

For the exercise I was issued with 18 bombs, 8 of which I fired, 8

were returned and 2 were later destroyed as the caps and pins had been
removed .

Signed: VN

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1435 hrs Sun 16
Feb 86 Oppheim Norway.
Signed:
RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No;‘06022/6

Surname: . L Forenames: RS T T enen
Service No: AT Rank: E
Type of Engagement: Y ) Height:
Date & Place of Birth: EEEEEGEEEGRGGEEG
Full Unit Address: A Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford.
Date to leave a.Command: b. Service:

This statement,(consisting of 5 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 22nd day of March 1986 Signed: GEEEEED

I an SRS :: present serving with A Coy, 1

PARA.

On Thu 13 Feb 86, my Coy was taking part in a live firing Coy
exercise in the Mjolfjell Valley, Norway. I had been asked by my OC, Wl
4R o act as the no 2 on a 2 inch mortar.

I was given instruction on the 2 inch mortar during basic training
in 1979/80 but have never fired the weapon and I cannot recall receiving
any continuation training on the weapon since then.

I was to assist in firing this weapon. We moved
before the Coy attack and took up a position in a trench to the right of
the Satebu Hut. An 84 mm gun group also deploying in this trench. The
Satebu Hut and trench were located on high ground overlooking three
objectives.

The exercise started with a mortar bombardment on the two nearest
objectives followed by the breaching of a barbed wire entanglement. A
further mortar bombardment from 8lmm was laid down at this point” and the
Coy began to attack.

The 84mm fired one or two rounds at one of the objectives. It was
at this time that R and I vere to start firing our mortar. The
84mm leaving to rejoin thier pl.

I got out of the trench and moved to the left side of it where I
laid down on the snow. remained standing in the trench at
the extreme left hand side of it. The mortar was in front of him slightly
to his left. The base plate was positioned on a piece of wood. I was
lying down at a right angle to the mortar.

I prepared two rounds for firing. To do so I unscrewed the metal
nose cap and unwrapped the tape leaving it attached to the safety pin.
When (P ordered load I pulled the pin and placed the bomb in the
mortar barrel. I then prepared the next round in the manner I have
described so that I had two bombs ready for firing at any one time.
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Continuation of Statement of:. WELLRNEIR Case No: 06022/6

I cannot recall the exact sequence of events but I believe that one
of our early bombs was a misfire. <G ook the mortar apart and
cleared some snow from the area of the firing pin and we began firing.
Again I cannot be certain as to which round it was but at some time the
piece of wood we were using for the base plate broke and we then placed a
bergen or a side pouch under the mortar on top of the broken wood to use as
a base plate position.

We fired about eight rounds, but I did not see any of them strike.
and (gt hc safety supervisor were observing the strike
and adjusting the weapon accordingly.

There were to the best of my knowledge two misfires that were placed
to one side and marked for disposal later.

When we were firing the mortar barrel was at 45 degrees or
thereabouts in order that we could obtain maximum range. It was directed
to the left into the area of ground near to the second objective but on its
right hand side.

. I cannot recall which rounds they were probably the first few when
the base plate was on the piece of wood that I held the barrel to steady
the weapon. I'm sure that later on when we changed the base plate position
that it was firm and I did not have to hold it.

While we were firing I could see people moving through the gap in
the barbed wire in front of me and deploying in front of the first
objective. I don't know exactly how many rounds we'd fired by that time it
could have been four or five. I believed that we were firing bombs about
ever 15 seconds or so.

While we were firing I can remember @ shouting 'On' several
times but I do not know if this was every time we fired or not. I do not
remember him giving any corrections for elevation or bearing. The only
other commands I can recall (N giving was to switch targets. When
he gave the instuctions @l 2djusted the mortar further to the
left.

When I stated that I have had no formal continuation training on the
2 inch mortar, I should qualify that by saying that on the morning of 13
Feb 86, I was told that I would not be permitted to fire the weapon and the
preparation of bombs and loading was explained to me.

I have been shown a photograph showing the target area and the
trench that IR 2nd I fired from. On a photocopy of that
photograph I have marked the positions that 1 believe we fired at and the
positions of the troops during firing as I have explained them in this

statement.
Signed: NG

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1500 hrs Sat 22
Mar 86 at Bulford.

Signed: EEEEEENEGD
wore

RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case Np; Q6022/6

Surname: SN Forenames: Wuald.
Service No: WRIEEREaE Rank: kY
Type of Engagement: WHel Height:
Date & Place of Birth: NN
Full Unit Address: HQ Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford.
Date to leave a.Command: NK b. Service: 1993

This statement,(consisting of 7 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 19th  day of March 1986 Signed: UEIENEENR

I an Gl o the Parachute Regiment at
present serving with HQ Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford.

During Feb 86 I was serving with my unit in Norway, taking part in
Ex 'HARDFALL"”. On the 11 Feb 86 sometime during the evening 1 was warned
verbally by either GHNENEED or GNP that I would be required the
following day to act as a safety supervisor for live firing field
exercises to be carried out on Wed 12 Feb 86 and Thu 13 Feb 86.

Sometime during the late morning of Wed 12 Feb 86, I went with
several other people, all safety supervisors to the area of dead ground
just behind the Satebu Hut in the Mjolfjell Valley, this place is
sometimes referred to as 'Range' or Rjoanddalen' Valley.

I was detailed by N 0C Sup Coy to act as the

safety supervisor for a pl 2 inch mortar. My brief was that I was to act
as safety but I cannot now recall the specifics of that brief. My own
interpretation of my instructions was that I was to ensure that the
weapons was fired from a safe place, that it was aimed at a safe point, an
area in which there were no troops and that weapon handling drills were
carried our correctly.

I should point out that I have no formal weapon training
qualifications, although I have attended a Section Commanders Course in
1980, and a Platoon Sgts Course in 1984, at the School of Infantry, NCOs
Tactical Wing, Brecon. 1 have recelved instruction in the use of the 2
inch mortar both in basic training and pl continuation training. I have
fired the weapon on approximately six occaslons including live firing of
HE during Coy field firing exercises in Keyna in 1973 or thereabouts.

I consider that I was sufficiently proficient in the use of this
weapon to have carried out my duties competently. However, I still tried
to obtain a copy of the Infantry Tralning Pamphlet relating to the weapon
but this was not available to me in the field. I did not try to obtain a
copy of pamphlet 21, "Range Conduct and Safety”.
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___ Continuation of Statement of: S Case No: 06022/6

On both Wed 12 and Thu 13 Feb 86 I made contact with the 2 inch
mortarmen of the pl that I was attached to. Having made myself known to
them and been briefed by them as to their tasks I moved forward to wait for
the attacks to begin, waiting just before the Satebu Hut.

On Wed 12 Feb 86, I met the pl Sgt as the Coy advanced and went with
him to the area on the left of the Satebu Hut, where he established his
position. An 84 mm Anti Tank gun also deployed in the same trench, as
there was no safety supervisor with this weapon, I took it upon myself to
supervise that weapon as well.

From my position I could see the start of the route of the advance
down a gulley. I lost sight of the route then until it reached the area in
front of the barbed wire and I could see from there to the first, or
nearest objective the second and the in depth objective.

As the troops started to advance the 84 mm fired twice at the first
objective. I can't be certain as to exactly where the troops were but they
were actually moving in or towards the gulley when the 84 mm was firing.
The 84 mm was sited to the left the Satebu Hut in the extreme left trench,
next to the gulley, which was about 10 metres away at about 10 0O'clock.

The 84 mm teams remained where they were and the pl Sgt then fired 18, 2
inch mortar bombs at the second objective. During this time troops were
moving through the dead ground in front of him and the breach in the barbed
wire entanglement. As the troops reached the first objective fire was
switched from the second objective to the area of open ground beyond the
two objectives but between them.

Having fired all of the 18 bombs the pl Sgt and the 84 mm team then
moved off and joined the pl at the first objective. Neither weapon fired
again that day.

The following day I met ¢ijiiNNR, A Coy's 2 inch mortarman and
was briefed by him as to his role, in the manner I have described. The
exercise began about mid day with a mortar bombardment. This was followed
by the blowing of barbed wire entanglement and more mortar fire. The
troops began moving when the barbed wire was breached (NN 2nd his
No 2 were already established at the Satebu Hut, this time to the right of
it, with an 84 mm.

The 84 mm fired one round at the first objective and then stopped.
then began to fire his 2 inch. By this time the leading
troops were in the breach in the barbed wire. He was supposed to fire into
the second objective but due to the position of the troops on the ground I
directed him to fire into the open ground beyond both objectives but in the
centre of them. iR fired 8 rounds in all. I observed all eight
strikes and all of the rounds fell into the open ground.

e cortar had stopped firing before I became aware,
because of the activity and lack of fire that something had happened at the

first objective. I did not know what had happened.
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Continuation of Statement of: [ Case No: 06022/6

With regard to R position I can recall that initially
the base plate was placed on some wood but as this kept shifting with
firing it was discarded and the base plate placed against the snow which
was hard packed from three days use. There was to the best of my ’
recollection only one misfire and that was the first round, this was caused
by snow on the base plate, which was cleared and the weapon operated
satisfactorily.

I do not recall @ .sing a bergen as a base plate position
as far as I am concerned he did not.

He remained in that trench and did not change his position
throughout.

To elaborate upon the briefing I was given by gl 1 vas
given an outline of the battle plan, but I was not shown any maps nor were

the positions on the ground pointed out to me. At no time did I receive
any instructions as to what targets could be engaged by the two inch or
what areas were safe to fire upon. Nor was any information given to me to
indicate at what position troops could reach on the ground prior to fire
being terminated. :

I was aware that troops were passing underneath the mortar rounds
being fired.

When I directed fire into the open ground I knew that the first and
second objectives were to each side of the line of fire but I considered
this to be a safe place on which to fire.

All safety supervisors taking part in the exercise wore orange bands
around their helmets and were distinguishable by this.

I should also add that provision had been made to stop the exercise
by use of radlo or the firing of red mini flares. I do not recall in what
circumstances such action was permitted. I was not issued with red flares,
but there were radios in the vicinity.

Signed: CHEEEEENEEG.

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1100 hrs Wed 19
Mar 86 at Bulford.

Signed: VD
L

RMP (SIB)

2%
STAFF IN CONFIDENCE



STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: WAL Forenames: e RichaE

Service No: WEER Rank: [
Type of Engagement: -y Height:

Date & Place of Birth: (GGG

Full Unit Address: 2 RTR, Wessex Bks, Fallingbostel, BFPO 38
Date to leave a.Command: 24 Mar 86 b. Service: NK

This statement,(consisting of 8 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 16th day of February 1986 Signed: GENEED

I an Q) TR, at present attached to 1

PARA in Norway for the period of exercise 'HARDFALL' and serving as the
2IC Sp Coy, 1 PARA.

On or about Thu 6 Feb 86 I was tasked to assist with 3 Coy live
firing attack exercices that were to take place the following week. Over
the next few days I visited the range area known as Mjolfjell Valley or
just Range Valley located in Rjoanddalen Valley at grid 828374. During
these visits I was briefed by Wi .c 0C Sp Coy that I was to
act as a safety supervisor for the first assault pl for each Coy during
each Coy attack. That I was to watch out for grenade range safety and
battle players running infront of each other and the danger areas for the
support weapon particularly back blast and also the use of L2 grenades
when clearing bunkers. The exercise was to be a realistic Coy attack and
the safety supervisors were there to prevent injury or loss of life and
not to interfere with tactics. There were to be 2 other safety
supervisors also for the first assault pl.

The first 2 exercises for C and B Coy took place on 11 and 12 Feb
86 and passed without incident. I acted as safety supervisor for the first
assault pl on each occasion and became very familiar with the workings and
tactics of the exercise.

On Thu 13 Feb 86 A Coy were to take part in the exercise. H hour
was at 1300 hrs and was signalled by the detonation of a Bangalore Torpedo
breaching the barbed wire defences allowing the first assault pl to move
out of the dead ground behind Satebu Hut. I saw that (S :nd 2
Cpl who were also safety supervisors for the first assault pl moved to
near the front of the column for the first pl, the pl passed by and I
joined the rear of the column. The column moved out of the dead ground
past the road leading to the hut and down the waterfall. The route which
had been taken on the two previous occasions. The pl started to slide
down the frozen waterfall which is surrounded on both sides with a big
bank of snow until you reach the actual frozen waterfall which had a big °
bank of snow on the right.
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Continuation of Statement of: L e e Case No: 06022/6

When I reached I saw that the bank on the left had collapsed and about four
people had fallen about 15 feet onto the frozen pond and had broken through
the ice, including the pl comdr (NSNS 1 sav that one of the men
had injured his leg which was bleeding heavily. 1 signalled people
following me to stop until I had control of the situation and then waved
them past. I remained at this location and supervised the rescue of those
people in the water and their equipment.

From my position T could see that the attack was continuing and that
members of the initial assault pl were attacking the location known as X11.
I saw the orange flash on a helmet in the area of Xl11, identifying a safety
supervisor, so 1 continued to supervise the rescue.

About 5 minutes later (SN rcturned to the frozen waterfall
he told me to go up forward with the pl and he would take control of the
rescue. I then ran towards X1l. When I reached the gap in the wire I
looked around and saw that there was not a safety supervisor with the group
by the right hand bunker of X11, so I ran towards this bunker. As I
approached the bunker I was able to see that Sgt Lyden and (R vere
kneeling beside the right hand side corner of the bunker. Sgt Lyden was on
the right facing the enemy with his back towards me and NN was on his
left up against the side of the bunker. I could not see the 2 inch mortar
but I knew they were operating it as I heard it being fired and from their
posture it appeared it was being fired towards the in depth position X13.

I did not see who was loading or firing the mortar. I saw them fire one or
two rounds and when I was at a distance of about 10 metres from them when
an explosion occurred in the vicinity of the right hand side of the bunker,
infront of Sgt Lyden and —and approximatley 3 feet above ground
level. I could not see the flash of the explosion as Sgt Lyden and (iEED

bscured the centre of the explosion and all I could see was a black
burst about 3 feet above the ground. The noise of the explosion was very
loud. I realised that some type of accident had occurred and 1 saw Sgt
Lyden and il flinch backwards. I ran toward them after a moments
hesitation. The remainder of the Sect immediately started running towards
Sgt Lyden and P 1 ran towards them, I saw that Sgt Lyden was lying
on his right hand side facing towards the bottom of the valley. He was
huddled up and I heard a gurgling noise coming from him. I looked towards
A 1o was lying in the entrance of the bunker with his head towards
the bottom of the valley. He was bleeding from his forehead and his cheek.
I could also see that (N v2s lying on the front right side of the
bunker lying flat on his stomach. I could see that he was bleeding from
the back buttock and rear of his legs. To the left of NN I sav
Gl (ying in front of the bunker he was also bleeding from the
buttocks and legs.

By this time the Sect were arriving and putting first field
dressings on the wounded. I ran back towards Sgt Lyden who was being
attended to by a soldier whose name I do not know. The only visible injury
I could see was blood staining his camouflage whites in the area of his
groin. I could see that Sgt Lyden was going into shock and blood was
coming from his mouth not from his face wound. 1T told the soldier to
continue dressing the wound to the groin. I rolled him onto his back to
check for other wounds at this stage he appeared to be losing
consciousness.
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Continuation of Statement of: SEARARRLESN Case No: 06022/6

, Sp Coy CSM, then arrived he and I then noticed blood
soaking his clothing in the area of his chest, we moved away his clothing
and I saw what appeared to be a small but very deep wound on the edge of
his left nipple. We applied a first field dressing to the wound and pulled
his clothing back down. Whilst doing this Sgt Lyden gave a gasp and
appeared to stop breathing. I checked and found that he had stopped
breathing. I then started mouth to mouth resuciation. I checked the pulse
which at first was very weak and then faded until I could not feel the
pulse so I commenced external cardiac massage as well as mouth to mouth
until the arrival of N thc RMO 1 PARA and shortly afterwards a
helicopter in which Sgt Lyden was conveyed away from the range.

I then continued to assist with rendering and supervising first aid
and control of the area. I spoke with (@ and asked him what had
happened. He said, "We were firing the two inch mortar, we fired three
rounds and then I don't know what happened.”

I then looked around the area and saw a 2 inch mortar lying half in
and half out of the entrance to the bunker. The muzzle was pointing into
the bunker and the base plate was just outside of the bunker. I then saw
somebody pick up and clear the mortar, by tipping the muzzle downwards and
I saw that no bomb came out of the mortar it was clear.

During Sep 85 I attended the Other Arms Div (OAD) Small Arms Course
at Warminster. I believe that I was also authorised by the CO 1 PARA to
act as a safety supervisor for the Coy live firing attack.

Signed: NG

The above statement was recorded and signatures witnessed by me
about 1650 hrs Sun 16 Feb 86 at Oppheim Norway.

Signed: NGNS

RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: [ i Forenames: ey Riehunnl:

Service No: CREETS Rank: TN
Type of Engagement: %) Height:

Date & Place of Birth: (NN

‘Full Unit Address: 2 RTR, Wessex Bks, Fallingbostel, BFPO 38
Date to leave a.Command: 24 Mar 86 b. Service: NK

This statement,(consisting of 5 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 18th day of March 1986 Signed: RN
Further to my statement dated 16 Feb 86.

I have served as a commissioned officer with the Royal Tank
Regiment for about 1 yr 7 mths. As an Armoured Corps Officer I do not
complete an attachment to an Infantry unit. However, during Sep/Oct 85 I
attended an Officers and WOs Small Arms Instructors Course (Other Arms),
No 11 at the School of Infantry, Warminster.

Since passing my course I have conducted range practices with my
Unit on about 6 occasions. Each day would have involved some 40-50 men
firing SMG, SLR and GPMG using ETR and gallery ranges. I have no previous
experience of conducting live firing field exercise of the type carried
out in Norway.

I joined 1 PARA on 11 Jan 86 on a temporary attachment as an
assessment for a long term attachment to the Regiment.

On 13 Jan 86, I left with Sp Coy 1 PARA for Ex 'HARDFALL' in
Norway. Other than the Coy live firing attacks carried out on Tue 11, Wed
12 and Thu 13 Feb 86, I took no part in field firing exercise.

I was one of several people selected to act as safety supervisors
for these live firing exercises and was briefed by \UNj S oC Sr
Coy, the exercise controller. My brief, given to me by il D i
the field on the morning of Tue 11 Feb 86 was that I and the Regtl Adjt

and a JNCO both of whom were present, was in general

terms that we were to oversee the general safety of the range. No battle
plan or operation order or anything of that nature was produced. We were
instructed that in the event of an accident involving death, danger to
life or injury the exercise could be stopped either by radio signal or by
firing a red mini flare. One radio was allocated to each supervising
team, which was carried during Tue 11 and Wed 12 Feb 86 by the Regtl Adjt.
I was not personally issued with a red mini flare although I believe that
these were carried by the Regtl Adjt.
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Continuation of Statement of: G RETETV AR Case No: 06022/6

Although we were to act independantly of each other none of the
safety supervisors, to my knowledge was detailed to accompany any
particular Sect, or allocated to any particular weapon group, certainly I
was not. In view of this fact we tended to attach ourselves to those fire
groups which were in action but lacked a safety supervisor.

I was not given any detailed brief on the use of specific weapons,
in particular the 2 inch mortar, a weapon with which I am not familiar and
have never fired.

The situation remainded the same throughout the field firing
exercise, the only change occuring on the Thu 13 Feb 86, when the Regtl
Adjt was replaced by (SN, HQ Cov and another JNCO was to accompany
us. To the best of my Knowledge neither had been participating in the
exercise during the previous two days and they were both briefed in my
presence. (I v2s carrying the radio that day and I assume that he
also had the red wmini flares.

With regard to the incident at the waterfall. The following pls
were in a highly excited condition, determined to push on to their
objectives. It was apparent to me that unless somebody took charge of the
situation, that no rescue would be attempted and that the danger existed of
more soldiers falling into the water. My initial opinion was that there
was some danger to life, but as I did not have a radio or red mini flares I
was not able to stop the exercise. The situation was resolved very
quickly, within 2 to 3 minutes and we were getting people out of the water.
The need to terminate the exercise had passed, the situation was under
control and it was about this time that I began to think about moving
forward with the rest of the pl.

I am certain that . vho had been in front of me in the pl
had gone forward and then returned some two to three minutes after the
incident, at which time he instructed me to move on with the leading
Sects. (D h:d not remained at the waterfall, he had gone foward
and then returned. The other safety supervisors had also gone forward and
I had not seen him.

I consider that my judgement and actions at the waterfall were
correct and justifiable. Several men had been immersed in water in sub
zero temperatures in artic conditions, the presence of blood indicated a
further casualty and the situation needed resolving at that time, with a
view to a possible immediate casevac.

With regard to the explosion at X11, at the time that I was
approaching this position I was in dead ground and about to crest the rise.
I was therefore looking upwards at Sgt Lyden and (il I can add
nothing further to my description of that explosion. I was familiar with
the sound of an 81 mm mortar detonating and from the sound of this
explosion I did not believe it to have originated from that weapon.

I do recall that at least two rounds had been fired from Sgt Lyden's
mortar as I had heard the popping sound. I believe that a third round was

fired.
Signed: ARSI

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1020 hrs Tue 18

Mar 86 at Bulford.
Signed: T R
E
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STATEMENT

Case No: 06022/6
Surname: — Forenames: AR

as
Service No: sl Rank: L]
Type of Engagement: E el Height:
Date & Place of Birth: UNEEEG—_—G——ND
Full Unit Address: Int Offr, HQ Coy, 1 APRA, Picton Bks, Bulford,
' ’ Wilts.
Date to leave a.Command: Jun 87 b. Service: Jun 2015

This statement,(consisting of 4 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 16th day of February 1986 Signed: yilED

I an G - ¢ present serving as the Int

Offr, HQ Coy, 1 PARA. I am at present on Ex 'HARDFALL' with my unit in
Norway .

On Thu 13 Feb 86 at Mjolfjell Valley Range commonly know as Range
Valley, I was to act as a safety supervisor for a Coy live firing attack
which was to be conducted by A Coy 1 PARA. I had initially been detailed
for this task by the 0C Sp Coy <SR :1d on the day of the
exercise I was briefed on the running of the exercise by (D 2
RTR att 1 PARA.

A bricfed me that we would accompany the first pl
through who would split into 2 assault Sects. That once they had captured
their objective they would go firm that is they would not move forward
from that objective. They would then provide fire support for the depth
position. It was agreed that we would accompany one of the Sects each. I
understood that the first pl was to attack the nearest group of bunkers on
the right for which myself and I vcre to act as safety
supervisors. G vas also to act as a safety supervisor for the
heavy weapons sect of the first pl who were to take up their position
overlooking the valley.

I took up a position with G NEEEER in the gully leading down
to the hut. The signal for the start of the attack was to be the
detonation of a Bangalore Torpedo breaching a barbed wire obstacle. When
the Bangalore Torpedo was detonated the first pl moved towards the hut and
then to the left down a frozen chute.

Myself and (U joined the rear half of the column
together and followed the column into the chute. Once in the chute we
“ s81lid down following the column. Towards the bottom of the chute where it
passed very close to the frozen river a section of the bank had dropped
away and two soldiers and a GPMG in SF role mounted on a small sledge had
fallen from the chute onto and breaking through the ice into the river.
One of the soldiers was trapped underneath the sledge.
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Continuation of Statement of: SRR Case No: 06022/6

The other soldiers present were uncertain as to whether to continue the
advance or rescue their colleague. I started to organise the rescue of the
soldiers in the frozen pond and after no more than about 2 minutes I told

GENER vho was present to go on. —then left with other

soldiers towards the objective.

I remainded at the frozen pool for about 5 minutes after S
WG had left, everybody was then rescued from the pool and the
injured soldier moved to safe ground. I then moved towards the gap in the
‘wire at which time a skidoo came down the valley from the direction of the
hut. The driver ignored my waving and drove straight through the hole in
the wire to the nearest bunker. I pursued him and arrived at the bunker
where I sav U 21d others administering first aid to wounded
soldiers including Sgt Lyden whom I recognised.

On Sep 84 1 attended the Platoon Commanders Battle Course at
Warminster.

Signed: R

The above statement was recorded and signatures witnessed by me
about 2145 hrs Sun 16 Feb 86 at Oppheim Norway.

Signed: \EENNES
L ]
RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: LR Forenames: @;ristophal
o
Ly

Service No: WL Rank:

Type of Engagement: R T Ree . W Height:

Date & Place of Birth: NN

Full Unit Address: HQ Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford, Wilts.

Date to leave a.Command: NK b. Service: Jun 2015

This statement,(consisting of 3 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 22nd day of March 1986 Signed: NS

Further to my statement dated 16 Feb 86.

With regard to my briefing as a safety supervisor for the exercise,
I was briefed by «iij N i as nuch as he told me that the exercise
would be conducted in the same manner as that of the previous year. I had
drawn a radio from Sp Coy for use on the Bn safety net.

Myself and WNENENENR discussed the exercise in general terms,
at which time he described to me the manner in which the safety
supervisors had been operating during the previous two days. We agreed
between us that we would accompany a Sect each during the attack although
no decision was made as to who would accompany which Sect. We were to act
as the situation dictated in that we would go with which ever Sect was
closest at the time.

I was aware that a 2 inch mortar was to deploy with the pl that I
was acting as a safety supervisor for, but I did not know that this weapon
was to fire H.E. ammunition. No specific instructions were given to me
regarding this 2 inch mortar. I should point out that had I known that 2
inch HE mortar ammunition was to be used I would have stayed close to that
weapon on the ground.

Regarding the incident at the waterfall at the beginning of the
attack. I had gone down the path and moved forward with one of the Sects
to see where they were going. I was aware that there had been an accident
at the waterfall at that time and in order to assist with the rescue of
those in the water I needed to remove my snow shoes. I had not gone very
far forward, maybe 5 mtrs. When I got back I saw that there were only two
people in the water. Others may have fallen in and been rescued by that
time I did not see any others. As I am an Artic Warfare Instructor I was
aware of the potential danger and decided that I should stay at the
waterfall and take charge of the situation and casualties, one of whom ha
a bayonet wound. .
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Continuation of Statement of: N SRR Case No: 06022/6

I had not been at the waterfall very long when I instructed -
WP o =0 forward and join the attacking sects.

I was unable to use my radio to call for a casualty evacuation as my
set was unserviceable. I therefore tried to stop a skidoo coming down the
hill, when he did not stop I chased after him and came upon the incident at
the bunker involving Sgt Lyden.

With regard to stopping the exercise in the event of an emergency.
It has in the past to my knowledge been possible to do so by firing a red
flare. However, I was not issued with any red flares.

Signed: MEMNNNNG

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1330 hrs Sat 22 Mar 86
at Bulford.

Signed: NN

RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT

Case No: 06022/6
Surname: L) Forenames: Wepistophes

g Tt
Service No: S AERPAVIE T ) Rank: A
Type of Engagement: ey Height:
Date & Place of Birth: RS
Full Unit Address: 2 pl, A Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford Camp,

Salisbury, Wilts.

Date to leave a.Command: May 87 b. Service: May 87

This statement,(consisting of 4 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, T shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which T know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 16th day of February 1986 Signed: N

I an EE S < ¢ present serving
with my unit on Ex 'HARDFALL SOUTH' 86 in Norway.

About 1330 hrs Thu 16 Feb 86, I was engaged on a live firing Coy
attack in 'Range Valley', Mjolfjell, Norway. I was acting as the Sect 2IC
for 1 Sect, 2 pl of A Coy, 1 PARA. The aim of my part of the exercise was
to take an objective named X11 which were two bunkers. supposedly occupied
by enemy forces.

H hour, the start of the exercise was to be 1330 hrs Thu 16 Feb 86.
‘The H hour was to be signified by the detonation of a 'Bangalor Torpedo',
‘which is a device designed to demclish a barbed wire obstacle which was
between my Sect and our objective.

To this end about 1330 hrs the Bangalor Torpedo detonated and
myself and my Sect began to advance. My Sect and 2 Sect negotiated an
'Ice Chute' at the bottom of which was a pool of water. However, 3 Sect
got held up in the pool. My Sect continued to advance down the hill to
our bunker objective approximately 200 metres away. At the same time 2
Sect advanced off to our right flank to take their bunker objective,
which was about 50 metres to the right of our objective.

We eventually gained our objective no more than 5 minutes later.
After this 3 men from my Sect went off to our left to take another
objective and I moved back from the bunker to the mortar impact pits about
5 metres behind and to the left of it. From this position, together with
2 other soldiers from my Sect, the other bunker was 50 metres off to my
right and behind my right shoulder. About 2 minutes later I saw the
grenade go into the bunker location which indicated to me that 2 Sect
whose objective it was, were in the process of taking their objective.

After this time I paid no attention to 2 Sect location as I was

councentrating on directing fire into another location about 400 metres in
front of us.
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Continuation of Statement of: [ Case No: 06022/6

About eight minutes later I recognised the voice of Sgt Lyden say,
"Get the fucking mortar working”. I've no doubt it was Sgt Lyden who said
this and on looking behind, and to my right, I saw in 2 Sect location three
other soldiers. I could not clearly see the soldiers as they were behind a
slight incline but he appeared to me to be on the edge of the bunker.

I continued looking over and about 3 to 5 seconds later I saw a
black ball of smoke appear in the middle of Xll's location. The ball of
smoke was almost immediately preceded by a very loud explosion. 1In
relation to the soldiers at the bunker the explosion was not more than
about a metre away from them. My immediate thought was that an accident
had occurred with a mortar in the bunker. However, I did not move from my
location as the exercise was still in progress and people on the exercise
were still firing onto the location 400 metres from mine. I considered it
unsafe to move across open ground under such circumstances. A few minutes
later all firing had stopped so I went cross to the bunker where the
explosion had occurred.

When I got there the injured soldiers had already been evacuated to
a Puma helicopter close by. When I got into the actual bunker location I
saw a two inch mortar lying on the ground to the back of the bunker. The
mortar appeared to be in good condition and not damaged.

I would like to add that I believe that the black ball of smoke from
the explosion appeared to be about 3 feet off the ground.

Signed: NS

The above statement was recorded and signatures witnessed by me at
The Oppheim Hotel, Opphelm, Norway about 1540 hrs Sun 16 Feb 86.

Signed: \UINNG_G—
"=
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6
Surname: BRGNS : Forenames: R Hon RelB
SRS
Service No: , AL sl Rank: sl
Type of Engagement: R Height:
Date & Place of Birth: G
Full Unit Address: 2 pl, A Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford Camp,
Salisbury, Wilts.
Date to leave a.Command: May 87 b. Service: May 87

This statement,(consisting of 2 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 17th day of September 1986 Signed: G

Further to my statement dated 16 Feb 86. I would like to add that
when my section attacked the second bunker of the first objective, I went
forward and used a hand grenade on the bunker. At this time I was alone
the remaining five members of my section being some 50 yds behind me in an
extended liune.

With regard to the shouted instructions I heard Sgt Lyden giving
prior to this I had seen mortar rounds impact and explode in the area of
the 'in depth' position. I cannot recall how many explosions there were.
I do recall that the 81 mm mortars had fired on that position and that
that bombardment had stopped some time prior to the explosions of which I
speak.

I was not persohally aware of any other mortar fire coming down in
front of or to the sides of my position.

Signed: NEEG—_G

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 0935 hrs on
Wed 17 Sep 86 at Hereford.

Signed: NN
L s
RMP (SIB)

-35-
STAFF IN CONFIDENCE



STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname:

Forenames: CmphRg
Rank: iy

SRR
RSP

Type of Engagement: rveasih Height:
BT R AT Nt £R

Service No:

Date & Place of Birth:
Full Unit Address: A Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford.
Date to leave a.Command: NK b. Service: Oct (O

.  This statement,(consisting of 3 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 21st day of February 1986 Signed: (S

I an I -t present serving with 1 PARA in
Bulford.

On Thu 13 Feb 86 I together with other members of A Coy, 1 PARA,
was taking part in a live firing Coy assault at a place known to me as
'Range Valley', Norway.

The attack began when some barbedwire entanglements were blown up
and supporting fire was laid down on the bunker targets designated as X11,
X12 and the in depth target X13.

I was a Sect Comdr in 2 pl of A Coy. One of my allotted tasks was
to clear the bunkers, X1l1l. My Sect had moved forward and together with
P [ cleared the bunker using grenades and rifle fire.

Having done so we moved forward in front of the bunker. L et
was to my left some 5 mtrs and 2 or 3 mtrs infront of the bunker. Both of
us were lying prone and the rest of the Sect were deployed in an extended
line to my right.

I checked around and saw that the 2 inch mortar crew, Sgt Lyden and
@GS hod arrived. By looking to my left at an angle of 45 degrees I
could see them starting to set up some two to three mtrs behind me. They
were centrally located behind (@ and I. Sgt Lyden shouted to me to
ensure that none of my Sect were in front of the weapon as he would be
opening fire with it. I checked the position of the rest of my Sect and
noted that the area in front of the mortar was clear. I had to adjust the
position of GNP 2nd then gave a fire order. I heard the 2 inch
mortar open fire from behind me.

I heard two rounds fired from the mortar and then there was an
explosion and I was thrown around so I was facing back towards the

bunker.

I could not see any smoke or signs of an explosion in the area.
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Continuation of Statement of: A e atbiadly : Case No: 06022/6

Due to the other live firing going on at the same time I am unable
to say if another 2 inch mortar was firing or not.

As a result of the explosion I sustained the following sharpnel
wounds .

1. A shrapnel entry wound to the left side of the bottom of my
nose.

2. A shrapnel wound to the rear of the left buttock.
3. A shrapnel wound to the outside rear of the upper left thigh.
4. Shrapnel wound to the outside rear of the mid left thigh.

Signed: o

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1700 hrs on 21
Feb 86 at RAF Wroughton.

Signed: GENENENEED

a
RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT

— Case N9: ‘(‘)6022/6.
Surname: AR | Forenames: [ E e
Service No: [ e 4 Rank: @8
Type of Engagement: R Height:
Date & Place of Birth: gD
Full Unit Address: A Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford.
Date to leave a.Command: b. Service:

This statement,(consisting of 3 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 2lst day of February 1986 Signed: NN

I an PR of 1 PARA at present serving with my

unit in Bulford. I was born on 26 Dec 65.

On Thu 13 Feb 86 I was taking part in a Coy live firing exercise
with 2 pl, A Coy 1 PARA, in a place known to me as 'Range Valley',
Norway .

The attack had started when a barbed wire entanglement been blown
by Bangalore Torpedos and bombardment of the targets designated as X11 and
X12, the indepth target being X13.

—and 1 were tasked to clear the bunker designated as
X1l once the mortar and other support weapons had changed targets we moved
forward as a Sect.

Having disposed of the bunker using grenades and rifle fire Wi
@ 2nd I moved forward. I took up a position some 2 to 3 yards in
front of the bunker at its left edge facing in the direction of the
advance. (NS ook up a position level with my position some five
yards or so to my right. We were in the prone position.

It was while we were in this position that I heard a sharp
explosion behind me. I looked around and saw that —and Sgt Lyden
had sited a 2 inch mortar to what would have been the right rear side of
the bunker from my position. I could see that (N vas facing towards
the line of the advance and that the mortar was sited to his right side.
To the right of the mortar was Sgt Lyden. I could see that he was almost
facing directly towards me but slightly off to his left.

I did not see any rounds fired, but I heard another round and then
a third explosion at which time I was injuried.
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“ Continuation of Statement of: TR R R L Case No: 06022/6

My injuries were shrapmel wounds, two to the right hip entry and
exit, one to the outside rear of the right thigh, the other to the outside
rear of my right calf.

I cannot comment on the rhythm of the mortar firing. Additionally
the 81 mm motars and other weapons were firing on other targets and due to
all the noise I am unable to say if any other 2 inch mortars were firing or

not.

Signed: \NEENEND

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1630 hrs on Fri
21 Feb 86 at RAF Wroughton.

Signed: D
L
RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: Et s Forenames: iGN I 2
Service No: R B Rank: R
Type of Engagement: e Height:
Date & Place of Birth: <«
Full Unit Address: A Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford.
Date to leave a.Command: NK | b. Service: Apr 88

This statement, (consisting of 4 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 2lst  day of February 1986 Signed: -

1 an NS oC ! PARA.

On Thu 13 Feb 86 about 1345 hrs, I was operating as part of 2 pl, A
Coy, 1 PARA, taking part in a live firing exercise in a place known to me
as 'Range Valley' Norway.

I was with the HQ Sect with Sgt Lyden. Prior to the commencement
of the exercise both Sgt Lyden and I were issued with about 28 rds each of
2 inch wortar ammunition which we carried on our bergen rucksack. T was
also carrying two 84mm rounds, my personal weapon an SMG and the 2 inch
mortar itself.

The start of the attack was signalled by the blowing of some barbed
wire by Bangalore Torpedos. At this we advanced towards the targets,
which were bunkers designated as X11 and X12, the in depth target was X13.
As the attack began the 8lmm mortars, and other support weapons were
firing on the targets and as we approached they changed target.

Sgt Lyden and I arrived at the target known as X11 and took up a
position at the rear of the bunker X11 and to the right of it. We had not
fired the mortar up to this point.

Assisted by Sgt Lyden I sited the mortar having removed my
rucksack. Sgt Lyden removed the ammunition from my rucksack as he
required 1t for firing. I was kneeling with my right knee up facing my
front across the barrel to 1 o'clock the mortar was held by my left hand
for aiming whilst I was to operate the lanyard to fire the weapon with my
right hand. Sgt Lyden was on the other side of the mortar, facing 2 away
from it towards the target area. I know that Sgt Lyden loaded two rounds
into the mortar which I fired at his command. He was observing the fall

of the rounds and was adjusting my aim accordingly.
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STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

Case No: 06022/6

I can recall that Sgt Lyden loaded what I believe was the third
round, but I have no recollection of firing this round. It was at this
point that I was injured. I do not recall any explosion.

With regard to the position that Sgt Lyden and I occupied, I can
recall small trees or bushes to my front right and at least four or five

yards away.

The ammunition we used had been prepared prior to the exercise
starting, they had been removed from their standard packaging and loaded
into the rucksacks with the safety pins in position and white tape about
the nose cone. Due to the amount of live firing going on at the time of my
injury and before it I cannot recall if any other mortars were firing at

the time or not.

My injuries are all shrapnel wounds.

1. A wound above the

2. A wound to the lef

right eyé.

t lower cheek.

They are as follows:

3. A wound to the area above the right upper lip.

4., A wound to the area between my left shoulder and neck.

5. Three small puncture wounds to the left shoulder.

6. Numerus puncture wounds to the left upper arm.

7. Four puncture wounds to the rear of my left side and back.

8. A puncture wound to the left side of my mid chest.

9. Numerous small puncture wounds to my left upper leg.

10. Bone damage to the

right kneecap.

11. Shapnel wounds to the right calf and thigh on the interior

side.

I did not to the best of my knowledge slip or move the weapon

suddenly during firing, nor d

id Sgt Lyden.

I did not see Sgt Lyden drop or mistreat any ammunition.

Signed: GEENEND

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1730 hrs Fri

21 Feb 86 at RAF Wroughton

Signed:

41—
STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

RMP (SIB)



STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: —_— Forenames: LD A G e

Service No: bR 20 Rank: g
Type of Engagement: e sl . Height:

Date & Place of Birth: (RN

Full Unit Address: A Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford.

Date to leave a.Command: NK b. Service: Apr 88

This statement,(consisting of 2 pages each signed by me) 1s true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 17th day of September 1986 Signed : SEjEND

Further to my statement of 21 Feb 86.

When Sgt Lyden and I arrived at the bunker position we set up our
mortar as I have previously described. My position was about 3 ft to the
rear of the bunker and about 1 ft away sideways. 1 removed the mortar
from my bergen and Sgt Lyden sited it. Neither of us placed anything
beneath the base plate, this was placed directly on to the hard packed
snow to the best of my recollection.

As we arrived and set up the weapon I was aware of explosions
occurring to my front at distances of some 50 to 60 metres. I did not
associate these explosions with the 8lmm bombardment on the 'in depth’
position which I had seen as we were approaching the position.

With regard to the target area that we were firing at I can only
say that it was to our front. There was a very large boulder or mound of
snow in the middle distance and our rounds were aimed to fall to the left
side of this. :

I should also add that the mortar tube was aimed at an angle of
more than 45 degrees but less than 60 degrees.

Signed: D

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1625 hrs on
Wed 17 Sep 86 at Headley Court.

Signed: GG

RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: HIORELS - Forenames: ‘Wb lnsomg

Service No: SRETTRER Rank: [ )
Type of Engagement: G S ] Height:

Date & Place of Birth: NN

Full Unit Address: A Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford Camp, Wilts
Date to leave a.Command: May 87 b. Service: May 89

This statement,(consisting of 6 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 22nd  day of February 1986 Signed: GEENGEGD

I am at present serving with my
Unit at Ex 'HARDFALL SOUTH' 86 in Norway.

On the afternoon of Thu 13 Feb 86 I was the 2IC of 2 Sect , 2 pl, A
Coy 1 PARA, who at the time were engaged on a live firing Coy attack in
Range Valley, nr Mjolfjell, Norway. The other members of my Sect were
. , the Sect Comd, and GEEENERNGEED CERERN ShEE
G i SN 6 The Sect was split into two sub Sects
comprising of myself, (il S GHENNES @IS in one sub Sect and
T G - (P in the other.

We had originally formed up some distance from the actual exercise
area and walked in. The objective in the exercilse area was to take a
bunker identified as X11 which was supposedly occupied by enemy forces.

On entering the actual exercise area I saw that we had to descend a
steep slope onto the start of the valley floor.

From the top of the slope I could see X11 off to our right about
200 metres away. In a staight line ahead was the objective X13 which was
some 600 metres away and off to my left about 220 metres away was the
objective X12 which was to be taken by the other Sect of my pl.

We moved down the slope, 1 Sect leading and my Sect behind.
As we went down the slope we lost a couple of blokes into a water

pool at the bottom of the slope. However, onlygiiiiiiilll® os held up by
this hazard so the rest of my Sect continued on towards the objective.
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Continuation of Statement of: <D Case No: 06022/6

To do this we had to negotiate a barbed wire obstacle between ourselves
and X11. The barbed wire was breached by a device called a 'Bangalore
Torpedo' and once this had been taken down 1 Sect veered off to their
objective, on the left, and 2 Sect, my Sect, went off towards X1l. Our
Sect advanced in extended line towards X1l. Our two sub Sections
leapfrogged each other until we came to a point some 20 metres from the
objective. At thils time my Sect gave covering fire as QD 2nd D
went forward to post a grenade into the bunker. Once they had done so
they moved back five metres or so while the grenade exploded. After the
explosion UNER and UMM moved forward through the bunker clearing it
with rifle fire as they did so.

Then they went to ground on the far side of the bunker and ¢l zave the
signal for me to move forward with my Sect to the bunker. My Sect then
deployed in a straight line from the right side of the bunker and we all
put fire down on the objective X13.

About a minute to two minutes later Sgt Lyden of my unit arrived at
the bunker together with Gy Sgt Lyden proceeded to set up the 2
inch mortar he had brought with him and as far as I am aware
bought up the ammunition for the mortar in a bergen he was carrying. I am
unable to say what kind of surface Sgt Lyden used for putting the mortar
on. However, I can say that both Sgt Lyden and Wl vere kneeling down
on one knee as the mortar was fired. The mortar was directed towards X13
and Sgt Lyden was on the right of the mortar closest to me and - was
on the left side of the mortar furthest away from me. I do remember seeing
Sgt Lyden holding the mortar which indicates to me that Sgt Lyden was
actually firing the mortar and Gl was loading it. Also during the
time I heard two rounds being fired from the mortar I am positive that two
rounds were fired but am unsure if any further rounds were fired.

To make it easier and more clear as to the position of the persons
around the bunker I have drawn a plan of the bunker. About 2230 hrs Sun 16
Feb 86, (MMM F (SIB), attached an exhibit label marked JJB/1 to the
sketch. T have signed that label. I then handed the sketch to SQumimEgs-

While the mortar was being fired my half Sect plus D & Gl
were laying down rifle five on X13. A few seconds later I heard a very
loud sharp sounding explosion immediately to my left which was where the
mortar was positioned. I laid down my rifle and put my finger in my left
ear Iin an attempt to clear my ear as the explosion had a kind of pinging
sound and it affected my left ear.

I then looked to my left and saw Sgt Lyden lying on the ground on
his right side. W vos also lying on the ground across the side of
the bunker. On looking at Gy I sav he was still in the same
position but had turned towards me and said he had been hit. At that time
I didn't look at WulliEmi to see what condition he was in as I went to the
assistance of Sgt Lyden, but as far as I could tell he ) vas still
lying on the ground in the prone position.
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~— Continuation of Statement of: g R Case No: 06022/6

Following the explosion I was not aware of any shock wave or a black
ball of smoke. On reaching Sgt Lyden I didn't see any obvious injury. I
asked him if he was all right and he complained of having a broken leg.
The only injury I did see was some blood coming from the corner of his
mouth. 8Sgt Lyden's speech was clear at this time. I then started to take
his snow shoes off and he complained of pain in his legs. I then loosened
his clothing and on pulling up his jumper I saw a puncture like wound about
2 inches above his left nipple. I put a fleld dressing on the wound and
pulled his jumper down. I then tried to tend to his groin because he
seemed to have puncture wounds on the left and right side of his groin.
Other people then started to arrive and rendered medical aid to all four
soldiers prior to them being evacuated from the area by helicopter. While
helping Sgt Lyden his condition started to get worse Iin that his speech was
very slurred and when I tried to find a pulse in his left wrist and on the
side of his neck I couldn't feel a pulse.

Signed: <GP

The above statement was recorded and signatures witnessed by me of
the Oppheim Hotel, Oppheim, Norway about 1430 hrs Sat 22 Feb 86.

Signed: D

-
RMP
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: BRALRLE Forenames: RS
Service No: WASE0E Rank:‘ L i
Type of Engagement: Il Height:
Date & Place of Birth: yilEEED
Full Unit Address: A Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford Camp, Wilts
Date to leave a.Command: May 87 b. Service: May 89

This statement,{consisting of 2 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 20th day of March 1986 Signed: GENEENENEN

Further to my statement dated 22 Feb 86.

When I took up my fire position at the Sect objective I did so by
bracing myself against a tree. The tree was to my right side and T had my
right hand resting against it, holding my weapon. If I looked back over
my left shoulder at an angle of about 45 degrees I could see Sgt Lyden,
NN 2nd the 2 inch mortar. Sgt Lyden was no more than 4 ft to the
side, but diagonally about 6 ft from me.

At the time of the explosion I heard a very loud bang and had to
clear my ear. I did not feel the tree move at all, nor did I feel any
blast or heat from the explosion. No debris struck me nor was any of my
equipment torn or damaged.

I have been shown a colour photograph exhibit BJM/2 showing the
Sect objective from the right side. This photograph shows a red grid laid
to from the right side of the bunker in which is located a tree. This
tree is in the 3rd row from the bunker and 3rd row from the bottom of the
photograph. The top of the tree is damaged.

This is the tree against which I was resting, I was between it and
the bunker. I have signed the label attached to the photograph.

1 am unable to comment on how the tree was damaged or whether it
was damaged before I took up my position.

Signed: NG

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1600 hrs on
Thu 20 Mar 86 at Bulford.

Signed: ENGEGNED
)
RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname:

Forenames: TRl CRDP
Rank: W

Height:

Service No:

Type of Engagement:

Date & Place of Birth:
Full Unit Address: A Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford Camp, Wilts
Date to leave a.Command: May 87 b. Service: May 89

This statement,(consisting of 2 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, 1f it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecutlon if I have wilfully stated 1in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 18th  day of September 1986 Signed: (EEE—_G—D

Further to my previous statements of 22 Feb 86 and 20 Mar 86.

I now realise that when I identified the tree against which I was
leaning I was mistaken. I was actually resting against the next tree to
the right.

Additionally I wish to add that at some time after we arrived at
our position I was aware of explosions occurring in front of me. I
believe there were two or three which happened about 100 metres or so in
front, there was a time lag between each explosion of at least 5 seconds.
I believe that there were other explosions going on further away about the
same time and that those closest to me could have been part of the 81 mm
bombardment on the 'in depth' position. If that were the case then the
explosions could have been happening as we skirmished up to the position I
really do not recall exactly.

Signed: (IEENND

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1515 hrs on
Thu 18 Sep 86 at QEMH.

Signed: QMBI
et

RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: A Forenames:

Pcdidahli
Wacksol
Service No: p PRRT Rank: L ]

Type of Engagement: Wil Height:

Date & Place of Birth: NN

Full Unit Address: A Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford Camp, Salisbury
_ Wilts.

Date to leave a.Command: May 87 b. Service:

This statement,(consisting of 5 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make 1t knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 16th day of February 1986 Signed: o

1 am— at present serving as the pl

comdr for 2 pl of A Coy, 1 PARA at present serving on Ex '"HARDFALL SOUTH'
86 in Norway.

On Thu 13 Feb 86 my pl and myself were engaged on a live firing Coy
attack in 'Range Valley' Mjolfjell, Norway. The actual exercise involved
my pl taking a specified objective, in this case referred to as X11, which
was a group of four bunkers supposedly occupied by enemy forces.

To achieve this my pl was divided into 2 Sects who were actually on
the ground involved in the events I am about to describe. H hour, the
start of the exercise, was given about 1330 hrs Thu 13 Feb 86.

As part of the exercise a device called a 'Bangalore Torpedo' was
used to breach barbwire defences between my 2 Sects and our objective,
X11l. The detonating of the Bangalore Torpedo was the signal for my two
Sects to begin our move forward. The reason I say 2 Sects is that
following an incident after the Bangalore Torpedo detonated my other Sect
was unable to reach X11, as they had advanced forward into a pool of water
and this held up their advance. At the time we went into the pool our
objective X11 was about 200 metres South West of us and downhill from the
pool.

Despite the incident at the pool numbers 1 and 2 Sects carried on
forward together with Sgt Lyden the pl Sgt. I was stuck at the pool and
by the time T had extricated myself and moved forward I could see that Sgt
Lyden had already taken X11 and was situated in a bunker which formed part

of X11 together with (NN, GNP - d (NN -

My impression of the scene as 1 approached was that Sgt Lyden was
in front of and to the right of the bunker. (W vas about 2 or 3
feet away from Sgt Lyden, to the left and front of the bunker. Behind the
two on the other side of the bunker was WEilllED --] GNP
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Continuation of Statement of: WAL IO B Case No: 06022/6

As I got closer I saw that Sgt Lyden was operating a 2 inch mortar
and that GEESSEEER was next to him loading the mortar with ammunition. When
I was about 18 feet away from the bunker ‘I saw a black ball of smoke appear
very close about 3 or 4 feet away from Sgt Lyden. The black ball of smoke
was accompanied by a very loud explosion and I then saw all four soldiers
fall to the ground. A few seconds later I reached the bunker. By this
time Sgt Lyden was lying on the ground on his left side. My first
impression was that he wasn't injured as he was mumbling but I was not
aware of him forming any words I could make out.

I then sav QENSNENSENNE “ho was lying about 6 or 7 feet away from
Sgt Lyden. G -s cvidently injured as he was lying on his front
and on looking at his back view I saw that his camouflage white trousers
were ripped and that he was bleeding from wounds to his buttocks and legs.
I asked -if he was okay and he said, "Yes”.

I then sav GHEMEESR vho was also lylng on the ground some seven
feet fronGENNNNE wEEaEg 2c 21so lying on his front and from
what T initially saw I could see that he too was injured in that he had
sustained wounds to his right leg. I asked Gy if he was okay and he
also replied, "Yes”. :

By this time other members of my pl started arriving at the bunker
and started to administer help to the four injured soldiers. 1 remember
seeing (NNNEEND coing over to help Sgt Lyden and I believe a (uuniil
went to assist (N I stayed with GENEEEDand PSSR then as more

people arrived they also went to assist the injuried men.

During the twenty minutes or so prior to the soldiers being

evacuated I asked what had happened and SR - S -

unable to say what they thought had happened. I asked NS if 2
grenade had exploded amongst them and he said, "No"

I was unable to speak to Sgt Lyden as by the time I was able to look
at him some 2 or 3 minutes later I saw that SN -s adninistering
mouth to mouth resusciation and also closed chest cardiac massage in an
apparent attempt to revive Sgt Lyden.

I did not see any injuries to Sgt Lyden apart from a cut lip which
he had sustained. I should also mention that the black smoke which
resulted from the explosion appeared to me to be centred in the middle of
the four soldiers around the bunker. Whether or not the explosion was an
air burst or ground burst 1 am unable to say.

Signed: GGG

The above statement was recorded and signatures witnessed by me at
The Oppheim Hotel, Oppheim, Norway about 1425 hrs Sun 16 Feb 86.

Signed: NN
L

RMP
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: SR Forenames: T OpIEg
i

Service No: [ o g Rank: |

Type of Engagement: el Height:

Date & Place of Birth: CENENEGEGNGENEE

Full Unit Address: A Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford, Wilsts.

Date to leave a.Command: NK b. Service: Apr 93

This statement,(consisting of 3 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if 1t is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution 1f I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 20th day of March 1986 Signed: "RDEN

1 an GERENEEEEEEE: ¢ present serving with A Coy, 1

PARA in Bulford.

During Feb 86 I was with my unit in Norway taking part in Ex
'HARDFALL'.

On Thu 13 Feb 86 I was the radio operator of 2 pl A Coy. We were
taking part in a Coy live firing exercise in a place I know as Range
Valley. The attack started about mid day or shortly after. I was part of
the pl HQ which comprised myself, (R, Szt Lyden, GRS che 2
inch mortarmen and G R the S4mn.

As the attack started we had to negotiate a steep snow covered
bank, which gave way and we fell into a pond. Several other people fell
including VS :nd I believe NN . There was some delay
while we got ourselves and our equipment out. In the meantime the rest of
the pl had pushed onto their objectilves.

Having got out I ran to join Sgt Lyden and (MR a2t the first
bunker of our objective. I could see both of them there and that was to
be the pl HQ. I must have been about 75 mtrs away when I saw an explosion
at the bunker. I could no longer see any individuals as I was in dead
ground. All I saw was a puff of black smoke, it was a ball of smoke. I
ran on to the position and when I saw that there were casualities I sent a
radio message.

I cannot recall seeing anything to indicate that there had been an
explosion on the bunker, although the entrance was smoke blackened.
Having sent my radio message I picked up a 2 inch mortar that was on the
ground between WSS 2nd Sgt Lyden, both of whom were injured and
looked down the barrel. Seeing the weapon was clear I put it down. B

ol o G cre 2lso both injured.

I don't remember seeing any mortar rounds lying loose in the snow
although there was a rucksack nearby full of 2 inch bombs.
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Continuation of Statement of: SEREECATRNG ‘ Case No: 06022/6

Both Sgt Lyden and QMR had their rucksacks off.

Signed: NSNS

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1645 hrs Thu 20
Mar 86 at Bulford.

Signed: NGNS

RMP (SIB)
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STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

STATEMENT
case No: 06022/6
Surname: - Forenames: [
Service No: ) Rank: ]
Type of Engagement: foiiae o ¥ Height:
Date & Place of Birth: AN
Full Unit Address: HQ Sect, 2 pl, A Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford,
Wilts.
Date to leave a.Command: Jun 87 b. Service: Dec 93

This statement,(consisting of & pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 16th day of February 1986 Signed: WENEERER

o L S e et
I an GEEEERSSSSSEG HQ Sect, 2 pl, A Coy, 1 PARA at

present serving with my unit on Ex 'HARDFALL' in Norway. During the
morning of Thu 13 Feb 86, I was given orders by Sgt Lyden for a Coy live
firing attack to be held later that day at Mjolfjell Valley. I was told
that we were going to attack a Coy position which he illustrated using a
map and a plan he drew. He told me that I would fire on one objective and
then on another using the 84mm Carl Gustav then after (I had fired
the 2 inch mortar I would fire the 2 inch mortar. Sgt Lyden asked me if I
had fired the 2 inch mortar before and I told him that I fired one smoke
bomb last year. He then jokingly said that he would have to fire them
all. Then Sgt Lyden opened two cases containing 2 inch mortar bombs, 18
bombs in each box. To the best of my kowledge all of the bombs were
contained in intact sealed cylinders within these two sealed boxes. Sgt
Lyden then told me to load a patrol pack with these bombs. I then opened
one sealed cylinder at a time and loaded the bombs into my patrol pack in
which I put seven bombs. Sgt Lyden told (R to load his bergen with
bombs . GNP broke the seal on one of the canisters and then asked me
if it was okay to carry the bombs in this fashion. I told him that it
was. @) then loaded 29 bombs in his bergen. I then left the
immediate area. On my return about 30 minutes later I returned to where

as who told me that he had been give some more mortar bombs as
one of the other pls did not have their 2 inch mortar.

I picked up GEEEER: bergen which was very heavy and I brought
this to Sgt Lyden's attention, who also picked up (I bergen, which
he said was too heavy and he should put them in another bergen which he
would carry. (S then started to repack some of the bombs into
another bergen. As he did so I saw that some of them were still contained
in the sealed metal canisters. Sgt Lyden told R to leave some of
them in the metal canisters as he did not think he would have time to fire
them all. @SS continued to transfer some of the bombs and when Sgt
Lyden left the area some of the bombs he transferred he removed from their
sealed metal canisters.
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Continuation of Statement of: — Case No: 06022/6

Shortly after this we boarded the helicopter and moved to the LZ near the
range. From there we moved to the form up point (FUP). Shortly afterwards
we were told to start the attack. I was towards the front of the pl with
Sgt Lyden and — We moved forward towards the range into dead
ground behind Satebu Hut. We waited there for some time during which 1 pl
were putting fire down on the objectives whilst the Bangalore Torpedo was
being laid. Then we were told to go, the Bangalore Torpedo exploded then
my pl started to move down a frozen waterfall towards the range. On the
way down most of my pl left the ice track and fell into a frozen pond the
ice on top of which broke and we ended up in the water with our equipment.
I got out of there fairly quickly with everyone's help as I had to reach
the objective and fire my 84 mm Carl Gustav. Once out I went through the
wire and headed towards our objective. I started running towards the left
as I thought I saw Sgt Lyden. I was corrected by my pl comdr who directed
me towards a bunker on my right. I looked to my right and saw a bunker
where Sgt Lyden and (MR vwere. Sgt Lyden was on the right of D
who was about one yard behind and to the right of the right hand rear
corner of the bunker. I could see Sgt Lyden was holding a bomb in his
right hand and the mortar tube in his left as if about to load the mortar.
He was kneeling to the right of the mortar. (M vas kneeling to the
left of the mortar and he was taking his bergen off.

I was about seven yards behind them. I looked down at the ground in
order to see where I could step and almost instantly I heard a very loud
explosion. I looked up and saw Sgt Lyden and (Nl lying on the ground.
G v:s running towards Sgt Lyden shouting for a medic. I ran
towards them and ripped off my field dressing which I handed to (HllB

. I knelt beside Sgt Lyden and when I looked around I saw (Hllp

G o1t beside (NN Sct Lyden tried to get up I told him to

stay still, as he tried to raise himelf he shouted that his legs were hurt.
called me over to help with (NSNS 2nd I left Sgt Lyden
with NI I then assisted HNEEEEER v treating CENINEESNEED

with wounds to his legs. I then continued to assist with first aid until
the casualties were evacuated.

The seven mortar bombs I had been issued with were never fired.

Signed: NNEEENGNGND

The above statement was recorded and signatures witnessed by me
about 1825 hrs Sun 16 Feb 86 at Oppheim Norway.

Signed: NN
e

RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6
Surname: HOWLETT Forenames: Geoffrey
Service No: 411979 Rank: Gen Sir
Type of Engagement: Reg C Height:

Date & Place of Birth: 5 Feb 30 at Bangalore India
Full Unit Address: CinC AFNORTH BFPO 50
Date to leave a.Command: b. Service:

This statement,(consisting of 2 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution i1if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 21st day of March 1986 Signed: G HOWLETT

I am Gen Sir Geoffrey Howlett. My present appointment is CinC
AFNORTH.

About lunchtime on Thu 13 Feb 86 I was present at the Satebu Hut,
Mjolfjell Valley, Norway as an observer. A Coy 1 PARA, were to carry out
a live firing Coy rattack, on the positions prepared in the valley.

The actual attack was preceeded by an 81 mm mortar bombardment of
the objectives and a gap was blown in a barbed wire entanglement in front
of my observation position. The Coy attack was supported by various SF
GPMGs, 2 inch mortars and 84 mm anti tank guns fired from the Satebu Hut
area.

I was aware that a 2 inch wmortar was sited to the right of the
Satebu Hut and this weapon was firing into the valley.

I cannot recall exactly how long the exercise had been in progress,
but I was looking towards the right hand bunker of the first objective, a
distance of approximately 300 mtrs where I could see a fire support team
deployed in action. I could not see what weapons were in use. 1 saw an
explosion at this location. The explosion occurred some three feet or so
above the ground, I did not see any flash only a ball of smoke blackish in
colour. Almost immediately I saw people at the location falling over.

I am unable to accurately pin point the time that the mortar to my
right ceased firing. However, I was aware of it firing about this time.
I am unable to comment as this mortar's base plate position.

Signed: Gen Sir GEOFFREY HOWLETT

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1510 hrs on
Fri 21 Mar 86 at Aldershot.

signed: (NG
g 3

RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6
Surname: HOWLETT Forenames: Geoffrey
Service No: 411979 Rank: Gen
Type of Engagement: Reg C Height:

Date & Place of Birth: 5 Feb 30 at Bangalore India
Full Unit Address: CinC AFNORTH BFPO 50
Date to leave a.Command: b. Service:

This statement,(consisting of 2 pages each signed by me) 1s true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated 1in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 20th day of August 1986 Signed: G HOWLETT

Further to my statement of 21 Mar 86.

I wish to add that during the field firing exercise carried out by
A Coy 1 PARA in the Mjolfjell Valley on Thu 13 Feb 86, I was aware of
explosions taking place in the open ground forward of the first objective.
There were two to three explosions over a period of approximately one
minute. I can only say that the fall of shot gave me the impression of a
single weapon as opposed to a battery. The rounds fell in the dead
ground some 150 metres, forward of the first position. I commented on
this fact to Maj Clement RA another observer.

With regard to rounds falling to the left of the bunker where the
accident happened 1 am unable to comment, I did not personally see any
explosions in this area, 1 was concentrating on the first objective.

Signed: G HOWLETT

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1040 hrs on

Wed 20 Aug 86 at Crickhowell.
Signed: ‘

RMP (SIB)

~55-
STAFF IN CONFIDENCE



STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

STATEMENT
Case No; 06022/6

Surname: .- Forenames: T L
Service No: WEEGI08 Rank: aiel
Type of Engagement: F g Height:
Date & Place of Birth: _
Full Unit Address: G3 Trg, HQ UKLF, Wilton
Date to leave a.Command: Jan 87 b. Service: NA

This statement,(consisting of 3 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it.
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 26th day of February 1986 Signed: <IN

I an (N, :: present serving with HQ UKLF, where I

hold the appointemnt of G3 Trg (S02 (NATO)).

On Thu 13 Feb 86 I was present at the Satebu Hut, Mjolfjell Valley
Range Norway, as an observer at a Parachute Bn live firing exercise.

The exercise began shortly after 1315 hrs, with a mock fighter
aircrft attack, followed by a live mortar bombardment with small arms fire
onto the objectives. A 2 inch mortar had been sited to the right of the
Satebu Hut and was also firing. Following this a barbed wire entanglement
in front of the objectives was blown by a Bangalore Torpedo. '

I saw members of the unit run forward and place the charges in the
barbed wire and at this time I saw that the supporting small arms fire was
still being laid down, but directed to targets to either side of them.
The exercise seemed to progress well and was very realistic. I watched
the leading sections pass through the barbed wire to attack the nearest
objective to me. I should point out that at the Satebu Hut an area of
snow, perhaps a couple of yards wide had been cleared and the 2 inch
mortar had been sited in this area initially and at some stage during the
attack, I do not know when, it was moved some 5 or 6 yards further to the
right outside of the area of cleared snow. With regard to this mortars
second position I can only offer the opinion that this was a hastily
prepared location, in that it was on the side of a steep snowy bank.

I saw the troops take the first objective and whilst my
observations were not detailed as I was not using binoculars I could see
people moving around. It would have been about 1345 hrs that I was
looking towards the first objective when I saw an explosion close to it.
I saw only black smoke, no ground debris or flash. My first impression
was that a round had fallen just beyond the position as there were
soldiers silhouetted by the pall of smoke. It would have been 3 or 4
seconds after this that I saw people falling over in that location.
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Continuation of Statement of: — Case No: 06022/6

At the time of this explosion the 2 inch mortar to my right had been
firing. However I cannot comment as to which target it was engaging. I
did not observe the fall of its bombs due to the other activity going on at
the time.

I should point out that when this mortar was first sited close to
the hut I had seen the crew prepare their base plate position by packing it
with broken bits of expanded polystrene foam or a similar substance that
was grey in colour. I did not see them use either wood or a bergen for
their base plate on this or their subsequent position.

Signed: NN

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1740 hrs on Wed
26 Feb 86 at Wilton.

Signed: G

RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No;-Q§022/6

Surname: L ) Forenames: WL BTG RE)
Service No: R . Rank: Lt 3
Type of Engagement: AR EIs ] Height:
Date & Place of Birth: (R
Full Unit Address: Mortar Pl Sp, Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford.
Date to leave a.Command: NK b. Service: Nov 89

This statement,(consisting of 4 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution i1if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 22nd day of March 1986 Signed: D

I an UAREINEEEENESNEP 2t present serving with the Mortar P1,

Support Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford. I am employed as a radio
operator within the pl.

On Thu 13 Feb 86 T was taking part in a Coy live firing exercise
carried out in the Mjolfjell Valley, Norway. A Coy 1 PARA was to attack
three objectives, which had been designated, for mortar fire as X11, X12
and X13 the in depth position.

I was positioned in an OP at the Satebu Hut with SN, OC
Mortar Pl and P Ve had adjusted the mortars on to the targets
and recorded the details.

It would have been about 1300 hrs that the MFCs (Mortar Fire
Controllers) arrived and they were then give the fire plan proformas with
all of the recorded details.

I can recall that A Coy were deployed in dead ground behind the hut
but some of their fire support including a 2 inch mortar were deployed in
the area of the Satebu Hut.

The first fire mission order called down mortar fire on the 2
nearest objectives X11 and X12, following which a breach was blown in a
barbed wire entanglement midway between the hut and the objectives. With
this more mortar fire was brought down on to these two positions. It was
after this salvo that the Coy began to move forward towards their
objectives and mortar fire was switched to the in depth position X13.

Whilst this was going on I was watching the Sect moving onto their
objectives. I saw a Sect move up onto the first bunker of X11. I could
see that some of the Sect were lying down in firing positions to the right
of the bunker and two people were crouched down at the back right corner
of the bunker.
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Continuation of Statement of: (D Case No: 06022/6

All the time that this was going on SF GPMGs were firing live
ammunition above the position a few feet above their heads. These weapons
were firing from the Satebu Hut and I could follow the line of the tracer
rounds.

Suddenly I saw what I took to be an explosion in the area of the
bunker. What I actually saw was a cloud of dense black smoke. It appeared
to be directly in front of the two people crouching at the rear of the
bunker and appeared to be about a foot above their heads. The smoke shot
out left and right and a central column shot up vertically. I did not see
any flash. My initial reaction was that a grenade had exploded.

The two men at the rear of the bunker fell over and I saw other
members of the Sect, get up, throw down their weapons and run towards
them.

The only other thing I can say is that from my position the Sect was
deployed in almost a straight line at an angle of about 30 degrees.

After this ¢iiiill® took over my radio and went to the position.
At the time that the accident occurred SF GPMGs were deployed very
close to me and due to the noise of their firing I cannot say if the 2 inch

mortar at the Satebu Hut was firing or not.

I can recall seeing the 81 mm mortars landing in the target X13 but
was not aware of any other explosions in the area of Xl1.

Signed: INNENY

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1055 hrs Sat 22 Mar 86
at Bulford.

Signed: N

RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT

Case No: 06022/6
Surname: it Forenames: (R

WOBSL oW
Service No: WREENE Rank: Ry
Type of Engagement: Y Height:
Date & Place of Birth: (R
Full Unit Address: RMO 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford, Wilts.
Date to leave a.Command: Dec 86 b. Service: NK

This statement,(consisting of 5 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 16th  day of February 1986 Signed: NN

I an G, 2t present serving as the

Regimental Medical Officer for 1 PARA, who are at present deployed on Ex
'HARDFALL' in Norway. My qualifications are MB ChB which I gained at
Sheffield University in 1982.

On Thu 13 Feb 86 I was on duty at the regimental aid post which had
been established about 400 m away from Satebu Hut in Mjolfjell Valley
Range. About 1345 hrs I was informed that there had been 4 casualties in
the A Coy live fire attack which was taking place on the range. I
travelled to the range arriving there about 5 minutes later. On nmy
arrival I saw a male person dressed in artic combat clothing who was
identified to me as Sgt Lyden 1 PARA. He was lying on the ground
unconscious, his clothes open from the waist upwards. I noticed a small
entry wound in the chest over the area of the heart. On examination no
pulse was papable and his heart had stopped with corresponding clinical
signs. I made attempts at resuscitation but was unsucessful. I arranged
for the helicopter evacuation to the regimental aid post and I accompanied
him on the jourmey.

At the regimental aid post further attempts at resuscitation were
made by myself and staff, but were again unsucessful. At this point (il
G os also brought to the regimental aid post and I made the
decision that Sgt Lyden was dead and stopped further treatment. T
observed that Sgt Lyden had a minor cut to the lower 1lip but further
investigation was not necessary as resuscltation was of primary
importance.

I then examined P ho at the time of the examintion was
face down on a stretcher. He was conscious and orientated. He had a
large soft tilissue injury to the left buttock of about 5 inches in diameter
and no further injuries at this time were detectable. An intrevenous drip
was set up and a field dressing applied to his wound. In addition I gave
an intramuscular dose of morphine. He was then carried out by stretcher
to a waiting helicoper for evacuation to hospital.
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Continuation of Statement of: PSR AR Case No: 06022/6

About 45 minutes later I visited Voss hospital casualty department
and sav USSR 2nd QR together withENMNEENNES in the casualty
treatment room. — had shrapnel wounds to the upper and lower part
of the back of his right leg all of about 2cm in diameter. He was later x
rayed and I examined the films which showed no fractures but did show that
shrapnel had entered all of the wounds to his legs.

SR had shrapnel wounds to the right knee entering from the
front and a shrapnel wound over the right eye and a further shrapnel wound
to his left elbow entering from the outside of the elbow. He was-also
X-rayed and I examined the films which showed that shrapnel had entered all
of these wounds. He was later operated on under a general anaethetic to
remove the shrapnel including a piece in the right knee joint.

I again examined (NR vho had the aforesaid wound to the
buttock and a shrapnel wound to the nose comprising of a small entry wound
to the left nostril. (Ui vas X-rayed and on examination of the
films I saw that there was shrapnel in the wounds to the buttock and nose.
These three soldiers were all operated on by the Norwegian doctors from the
hospital and on Fri 14 Feb 86 they were evacuated to RAF hospital Wroughton
for further treatment.

Having examined all of the wounds and from the patients accounts of
their position and posture I am of the opinion that all of these wounds are
as the result of an explosion causing shrapnel occurred between all four
soldiers.

Signed: NN

The above statement was recorded and signatures witnessed by me
about 2030 hrs Sun 16 Feb 86 at Oppheim Norway.

Signed: ENGED

RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: PR Forenames: T AR e
Service No: WIINBAY Rank: &R

Type of Engagement: WA Height:

Date & Place of Birth: (NN

Full Unit Address: HQ Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford.

Date to leave a.Command: May 87 b. Service: Sep 88

This statement,(consisting of 2 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the lst day of October 1986 Signed: TR

I an QRN - ¢ present serving with 1 PARA in

Bulford.

On Thu 13 Feb 86 I was on duty at the Regimental Aid Post (RAP) set
up near to the Satebu Hut in Range Valley Norway.

It was about lunchtime that Sgt Lyden A Coy, who was known to me
and I could recognise arrived at the RAP by helicopter accompanied by -
I assisted (N vith first aid and resuscitation of Sgt
Lyden until such time as@i B s2id he was dead.

Having dealt with other casualities I then accompanied Sgt Lyden's
body by Puma Helicopter to the MRS of 16 Fd Amb at Borreon where I handed
the body over to a member of that unit, who I believe was (NjR.

Whilst I was assisting GHNJSNERE vwith Sgt Lyden I saw that he had
sustained an injury to his bottom lip and wound to the right of the left
nipple. It looked like a little hole.

Signed: EEG—_———

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1225 hrs on
Wed 1 Oct 86 at Tidworth.

Signed: @D
SR
RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT

Case No: 06022/6

Surname: ) Forenames: (D
Service No: RGN Rank: L

Type of Engagement: ey Height:

Date & Place of Birth: GENRIND

Full Unit Address: 16 Fd Amb AMC (L), Wing Bks, Bulford.

Date to leave a.Command: Mar 87 b. Service: Dec 99

This statement,(consisting of 2 pages each signed by me) 1is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 1lst day of October 1986 Signed: D

I an QU o the RAMC and trained Combat Medical

Technician.

On Thu 14 Feb 86 I was taking part in an exercise at Bonaen Norway,
where my unit had established a Medical Reception Station. Sometime about
1500 hrs the MRS received casualities room 1 PARA by helicopter.

When the helicopter arrived members of my unit unloaded it and
brought in two strechers. One was carrying a soldier with a bayonet wound
the other was used to carry a dead body. Both strechers were carried into
the MRS and having established that the man was dead I instructed my unit
orderlies to take the dead body back to the helicopter for onward
transmission to the Park Hotel landing area and transfer to a Civil
Ambulance.

I do not know who unloaded the dead body from the helicopter or who
put it back on to the aircraft. I believe that it was conveyed from my
location by the same helicopter it had arrived on.

Signed: QNS

Statement recorded and signtures witnessed by me at 1445 hrs on Wed
1 Oct 86 at Tidworth.

Signed: (iNENG_GG—G

RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No¢ 06022/6

Surname: A Forenames: TSR
Service No: AR Rank: v
Type of Engagement: PR Height:
Date & Place of Birth: *
Full Unit Address: 33 Sqn, RAF Odiham.
Date to leave a.Command: Dec 87 | b. Service: Dec 90

This statement,(consisting of 4 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if T have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 6th day of October 1986 Signed: JAS

1 an (N, currently serving with 33 Sqn at RAF

Odiham, Hants.

I do not recall the exact dates but during the period mid Jan 86 to
mid Mar 86 I was serving with my unit on as a Load Master on a Puma
helicopter in Bonoen Norway.

On 13 Feb 86 I was in the crew room within Bonoen camp, when a call
came in that an accident had occurred on the Mjolfjell range and

helicopters were required at the scene. il iRinnil, GRS -
G :d I then boarded a Puma helicopter and began the journey to the

scene of the accident. I believe this flight took approximately 15 to 20
minutes.

On arrival we landed and waited for instructions from the ground
forces. Approximately 3 minutes later we were called forward to collect a
dead body and 1 injured soldier. Neither the dead body or the injured
soldier were identified to me. 1 only recall them being both male and
dressed in DPM combat suits.

I do not recall receiving orders to convey the two soldlers to any
particular destination. As all the other helicopters had returned to
Bonoen camp we initially conveyed the two soldiers to MRS within Bonoen

camp .

On our arrival at the MRS both soldiers were off loaded and taken
into the medical centre. I helped carry the stretcher holding the dead
body.

Once in the medical centre the dead body was examined by one of the
medical staff. After this examination we were iunstructed by the same
person to convey the dead body to Voss hospital.
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Continuation of Statement of: SRR A LD Case No: 06022/6

The body was again loaded onto the Puma helicopter and conveyed to
Voss hospital. I believe this flight took approximately 5 minutes.

As there was no known landing site at the hospital we landed at the

nearest available point.

Once we had landed we were
boarded the aircraft and examined
completed the body was removed by
ambulance. We then left the area

met
the
the
and

by a civilian ambulance crew who
body. Once the examination was
ambulance crew and transferred into a
returned to Bonoen camp.

Signed: VNN

The above statement was recorded and signatures witnessed by me at

RAF Odiham on 6 Oct 86 about 1840

hrs.
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RMP att SIB
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6
Surname: SRR Forenames: SRR G R o
Service No: SROSEFTR Rank: ‘
Type of Engagement: G Height:
Date & Place of Birth: NSNS
Full Unit Address: Adjt, HQ Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford, Wilts.
Date to leave a.Command: Jun .86 b. Service: 2011
This statement,(consisting of pages each signed by me) is true to tHe

best of my knowledge and belief and I wmake it knowing that, if it 1s tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 17th  day of February 1986 Signed: N

I amm PARA, at present serving with my
unit on Ex 'HARDFALL' in Norway. ‘

About 1300 hrs Mon 17 Feb 86, at the Gade Institute, Haukland
Hospital, Bergan, Norway, I saw the body of 24351430 Sgt Lyden Daniel, a
member of my unit, whom I recognised. I identified the body of Sgt Lyden
to SIS (S13). '

Signed: D

The above statement was recorded and signatures witnessed by me
about 1810 hrs Mon 17 Feb 86 at Oppheim, Norway.

Signed: (N
L

RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: RO Forenames: Wil

{ Sonltih oA AL o M
Age of Witness (if over 21 enter “over 21"): NN
Occupation:
Address: University of Bergen, The Gade Institute

Department of Forensic Medicine, 5000 Bergen - Norway
Identity Card No: Status:
This statement,(consisting of pages each signed by me) is true to the

best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the day of 1986 Signed: FICURECTARTSER

1 am a professor of forensic medicine, which I have practised for
30 years at The Gade Institute of Pathology the University of Bergen. I
am a member of the British Association in Forensic Medicine.

On Friday the 1l4th of February 1986, I performed a post mortem at
the Haukeland University Hospital in Bergen on D. Lyden, who died on the
13th of February following an accident.

I found multiple scratch wounds and entry wounds. The most
important entry wound was found in the left breast, just beside the
papilla mammery. From this skin wound we could follow a track through the
left lung, through the pericardial sack and through the apex of the
heart. A small piece of metal was found lying in the pericardial sack.
This was delivered to the Norwegian policeman who attended the autopsy.
There was about 1.00 ml fluid blood in the plura, and about 300 ml in the
pericardial sack. Other important injuries were a large scratch mark in
the lower lip, an entry wound in the skin on the back of the left
shoulder. Here a metal bit was found subcutaneously. There were three
entry wounds in the lower front of the left thigh. Here the femural bone
was splintered. A metal piece was found in the soft tissues. These two
metal pieces were also given to the police officer. We did not attempt
to recover all metal pieces.

In my opinion the cause of death was due to the puncturation of
the left lung and of the heart by a piece of metal with subsequent
haemorrhage and heart failure.

In Norway we do not put the organs back into the body. The organs
have been incinerated.

Signed:
Professor dr. med.
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname:

Forenames: —
Rank: -

Service No:

Type of Engagement: Height:

Date & Place of Birth:

Full Unit Address: AMF (L) Sup Coy RAOC, Log Sup Bn AMF(L), Ludgershall.
Date to leave a.Command: Sep 88 b. Service: Jun 92

This statement,(consisting of 5 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and T make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 1st day of October 1986 Signed: HENENED
I am—RAOC a fully qualified Ammunition
Technician.

On Thu 13 Feb 86 T was taking part in Ex HARDFALL SOUTH in Range
Valley, Norway. My initial task was to monitor the firing of Milan Anti
Tank Missiles.

About 1300 hrs that day or thereabouts I became aware that an
accident had occurred at the bunkers of the first objective being used by
1 PARA on a Coy field firing exercise in the valley below.

I went initially to the Satebu Hut where I spoke to
0C Sp Coy 1 PARA, who informed me that an ammunition accident had
occurred. Two mortars were deployed at the ridge on the right side of the
Satebu Hut.

I went then to the scene of the accident where I was informed that
there had been one fatality and that other soldiers had been injured by an
explosion at that location. I carried out a search of the area during
that and the following days, assisted by q AT RAOC of my unit,
who also made a video of the area and later removed equipment from the
scene.

During my initial search I saw a 2 inch mortar which was lying
beside the bunker, T examined that weapon and established that it was
clear. Two HE rounds inside of a bergan rucksack at that location had
been struck by shrapnal fragments and were later destroyed.

During my searches of the area of the incident I was unable to
detect any signs of the ground signature of any type of mortar explosion.
However, it should be noted that 3 or 4 helicopters had overflown the area
and landed and that numerous troops had trampled the area in between the
incident and the beginning of my examination. On digging down in the snow
I found carbon deposit. It was during this phase of my examination that I
found three 2 inch mortar safety caps and two 2 inch mortar safety pins.
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Continuation of Statement of: (D Case No: 06022/6

I dismantled the bunker in total. It had been constructed of empty
wooden ammunition boxes. Whilst I found signs of damage to the boxes
caused by the explosion of L2 hand grenades, detonated inside the bunker
leaving exit holes, there were no signs of shrapnel entering these boxes
from the outside.

I also examined the mortar and established that there were no signs
of an internal explosion, nor were there any visible scoring to the
exterior of the barrel.

During my examination I noted that there was a small tree located
some 2 metres forward of the rear of the bunker and no more than 2 metres
to the right. The top of this tree was forked and showed signs of having
been involved in an explosion as one fork had been broken off and the other
was splintered and charred. It was not possible to determine when this
explosion had occurred and from my own knowledge I know that the area had
been used as a mortar impact area earlier that day and during the
preceeding days.

From my observations and examinations at the scene I prepared a

written report, a copy of which I have handed to (il RrvP (SIB),
who has labelled it BIM/1.

Additionally whilst at the Satebu Hut and the scene of the accident
I caused photographs to be taken. I retained the exposed film which I had
developed at DLSA Didcot, from which photographic enlargements were made.
I have handed a set of these photographs to d who has labelled

them BJM/2. Those photographs show:

View from Satebu Hut showing_trench and mortar

position.
2 View of right rear quarter of bunker.
3 Colour photograph showing damaged tree and broken off branch.
4. Search grid of position. ‘
5. Right hand front of bunker looking rearwards.
6
7
8

=

. Close up of damage tree.
Front of bunker slightly left.

. Front of bunker slightly right.
9. Right rear of bunker.
10. View of right side of bunker.
11. Left side of bunker.
12. Rear left side of bunker.
13. Front left of bunker.
14. Front left of bunker towards Satebu.
15. General view of right rear of bunker.

16. Position of (N Mortar.
17. Trench and position of Qi) 'ortar.

I have also handed to —the video tape made by —

which has been labelled BIJM/ 3.

On or about 14 Feb 86 I was handed a piece of shrapnel which had
been removed from QP I retained this in my possession.
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Continuation of Statement of: (i EEEEND Case No: 06022/6

On 5 Mar 86 I was handed by (i the folowing items labelled
as indicated: .

CN/1 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment
CN/2 - Metal Shrapmel Fragment
CN/3 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment

and another metal shrapnel fragment marked originating from web eqipment.

I retained these items in my possession until I forwarded them to
DLSA.

Today 1 Oct 86 the fragment I recovered and that handed to me by -

GEDoriginating from the web equipment have been shown to me by (NN
G 1 :belled as exhibit CN/4 and CN/5 respectively. I recognise tham

as the same _items as I have described above.

I have signed all of the labels referred to.

Y

Signed: HEENG_N

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1700 hrs on Wed
1 Oct 86 at Tidworth.

signed: CIEEENNED
L

RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: SRR Forenames: Qi
Service No: Fsrrol Rank: P

Type of Engagement: Wenl2ovren il Height:
Date & Place of Birth: (G

Full Unit Address: AM: (L), Sup Coy RAOC, Ludgershall.
Date to leave a.Command: b. Service:

This statement,(consisting of 3 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the } nd day of October 1986 Signed: QI

I an QD \0C an ammunition technician at present

serving with my unit in Ludgershall.

On Fri 14 Feb 86 I was tasked to assist G ot ny unit at
the scene of an ammunition accident at Range Valley Norway. 1 assisted in
the search of the area.

Later we returned to Vinge Hotel, Vinge where — RAOC
handed to me four plastic sacks that contained web equipment and combat
helmets in another sack. I examined the webbing and found the following.

Two sets of webbing were undamaged. One set had shrapnel damage to
the water bottle carrier. I removed the water bottle and cap and found a
piece of shrapnel which had pierced the metal cup and embedded itself in
the inside of the opposite face.

The remaining set of webbing had a tear in the centre of the rear
nylon this was some 5 mms long. There was another tear in the front left
of the yolk. I retained the piece of shrapnel in my possession.

I also made a video film showing the scene of the accident and all
of the equipment recovered including the helmets and webbing, as well as
clothing belonging to Sgt Lyden. All of this clothing was returned by me
to the QM 1 PARA.

On Mon 17 Feb 86 I received from (i rvr (SIB), the
following items labeled accordingly. '

CN/1 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment Left Foot
CN/2 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment Heart
CN/3 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment Left Upper Shoulder.

I retained all of these items in my possession until 17 Mar 86 when
I handed them together with the shrapnel I had recovered and the video
tape to QD of oy unit.
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Continuation of Statement of: — Case No: 06022/6

Today Thu 2 Oct 86 PWF RMP (SIB) has shown me the
following items marked accordingly. .

CN/5 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment Webbing Side Pounch.
BJM1 - Video Tape of scene.

I recognise both these items are being those I have described
above.

Signed: (NS

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1900 hrs on Thu
2 Oct 86 at Kineton.

Signed:

RMP (SIB)

2
STAFF IN CONFIDENCE



STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: [ Forenames: —
Service No: — Rank: =

Type of Engagement: bl Height:

Date & Place of Birth: (NG

Full Unit Address: AMF (L) Wksp REME, Ward Bks, Bulford.

Date to leave a.Command: NK b. Service: May 94

This statement,{(consisting of 2 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if T have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the lst day of October 1986 signed: (NG

Y

I an QU = 2 fully qualified class 1
armourer at present serving with my unit in Bulford.

During Feb 86 I was taking part in Ex HARDFALL SOUTH in Voss,
Norway.

On 14 Feb 86 at Voss, at the request of— ATO RAOC I
examined a OML 2 inch mortar Mk 8, barrel no L/159574, body L/159574. The
barrel history sheet AF O 8025 was not available, nor were EMERs relating
to the weapon.

I carried out my examination visually and I can state that the
barrel showed no signs of an internal explosion. By this I mean that
there was no distortion of the barrel nor were there any visible signs of
explosive residues. I tested the mechanical function of the trigger
mechanisum and this worked satisfactorily. When dismantled there were no
obvious defects.

I was in possession of a 2 inch mortar barrel running gauge with
which I tested the barrel. The barrel accepted this and it passed through
the barrel freely and there was mno excessive movement of the gauge inside
the barrel.

The weapon bore no outward signs of paint scraping or scratching or
other external damage. The weapon was as far as I could ascertain from my
inspection in a serviceable condition.

signed: (EENEED

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1110 hrs on
Wed 1 Oct 86 at Shipton Bellinger.

Signed:
RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT 5
Case No: 06022/6 |

Surname: REi: Forenames: —
Service No: Snapsacl Rank: Pty
Type of Engagement: L Height:

Date & Place of Birth: QGGG

Full Unit Address: OC Mortar Pl, Sp Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford.
Date to leave a.Command: b. Service:

This statement,(consisting of 5 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 17th day of March 1986 Signed : (NG

I am —of the Canadian Forces. I am at
present on an exchange tour with 1 PARA, where I am employed as the Mortar
P1 0C. I attended a Mortar Pl Comdrs/2ICs course at the Support Weapons
Wing, Neatheravon during Sep/Nov 84.

During Feb 86 1 PARA was taking part in Ex 'HARDFALL' in the area
of the Mjolfjell Valley Norway. This area is sometimes referred to as
Range Valley' or Rjoanddalen Valley.

Initially the mortar pl, comprising four tubes was deployed at grid
811349 of map sheet M816, on Mon 10 Feb 86. Because of the nature of the
base plate position and its preparation using 'Raschen' bags the base
plates were left in situ from that time, live firing was carried out on
the 11 and 12 Feb 86 and each morning the mortars were sight tested at the
mortar line.

Live firing in support of C Coy was carried out on Tue 11 Feb 86
and again on Wed 12 Feb 86 in support of B Coy. A Coy were to carry out
their live firing Coy exercise on Thu 13 Feb 86. On each day three
targets designated as X11, X12 and X13 (the depth position) were to be
engaged. These remained constant and were at grids 828372, 830374 and
831370 respectively to the best of my recollection.

Each morning after the mortars had been resited and sight tested,
the mortars were bedded in and their belts of fire checked. Mortars were
fired in pairs on each of the targets X11 and X12. In order to
standardise the firing the two right hand mortars (No 2 and No 1) were to
fire on X11 and the two left hand mortars (No 4 and 3) were to fire on
X12. All four mortars were to fire on X13.

My basic task was that of overall safety officer for the 81 mm
mortars. —was operating as the safety for the MFC OP and the

mortar line was under command of NN 2s safety NCO with Q.

as the CPO, (Command Post Operator).
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Continuation of Statement of: — Case No: 06022/6

On the moruning of Thu 13 Feb 86 the mortars were bedded in, their
belts observed and fire adjusted in the normal manner by (NN -

Mortar fire was laid on the targets X1l and X12 during a lull in the
mortar fire the Bangalore Torpedo was laid to breach the barbed wire and as
that detonated fresh mortar fire was laid on the targets X11 and X12. A
Coy began its advance and all four mortars switched their aim to X13. I am
aware that five rounds were fired on X1l and X12, as fire for effect before
the blowing of the barbed wire and that this fire order was then repeated
before the Coy began its attack. All four mortars then fired 3 rounds, a
total of 12 rounds on X13. No further 8lmm fire was laid down. But the
81lmm mortars were at readiness for another fire mission order.

1 heard a sharp crack, not the sound of an 8lmm round exploding,
come from almost directly in front of me. I looked towards X1l and saw
some black smoke dispersing. I assumed from the sound that this was a hand
grenade. I could see a soldier running towards the objective and then
looked back towards X13.

—who was also watching the advance of the pl advancing on
X13 drew my attention to the fact that he considered that this pl was now
approaching an unsafe position for any further fire. I agreed with him and
the order 'Check fire' was given to the mortars to which the mortar line
responded.

About this time I was made aware that there had been some sort of
accident at X1l involving casualties and gave the order to the mortar line
to 'Stand Clear™. was then sent to the mortar line to check
those weapons.

I should point out that at the time of the incident on ¥X11, the
order rounds complete had been given by the mortar line and there was no
live mortar fire coming down on any targets. 8lmm mortar fire had ceased
prior to the explosion on X11, as best as I can recall.

The only incident involving the mortar line during the period Mon 10
— Thu 13 Feb 86 occurred at the end of firing on Wed 12 Feb 86 when the
Raschen bag of No 2 mortar had to be repositioned as it had slipped and
this was done that day. The following days bedding in and adjusting
confirmed the mortar to be firing on line.

There were no other incidents involving the 81 mm mortars or their
ammunition during this period that were brought to my attention.

Signed: GHEND

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1625 hrs Mon 17
Mar 86 at Bulford.

- Signed: —
o

RMP (SIB)

‘%lh oo ’1‘_
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: _ Forenames: Fenedh
Service No: W03 3908 Rank: -

Type of Engagement: (il Height:

Date & Place of Birth: (GGG

Full Unit Address: Sp Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford.

Date to leave a.Command: b. Service: Nov 86

This statement,(consisting of 5 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidencey I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 17th day of March 1986 signed : QNG

I am _ ‘ I am at present serving as the 2IC of
the mortar pl Sp Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford. I attended a mortar
pl comdrs/2ICs course at Support Weapons Wing, Neatheravon during Dec 79.

During Feb 86 my unit was exercising in the Mjolfjell Valley,
Norway. This location is sometimes referred to as the 'Range' or
'‘Rjoanddalen'’ Valley. Live mortar fire was to be provided for Coy live
firing exercises during the period Tue 11 - Thu 13 Feb 86. To this end I
was to act as the MFC Op safety supervisor.

The mortar line was prepared using Raschen bags on Mon 10 Feb 86 at
grid 811349 on map sheet M816 but no firing took place.

The following day Tue 11 Feb 86, the mortars were bedded in and the
belts of fire observed and adjusted on X13. Each other target ie: X11 and
X12 were then fired on mortars Nos 2 and 1 fired on X1l and mortars Nos 4
and 3 fired on X12. To adjust these targets I used the No 2 and No 4
mortars, thereby ensuring that fire from the other two mortars would fall
further away from the friendly forces. The targets were recorded after
ad justment. This procedure was repeated on each day prior to firing in
support of the Coys.

Prior to the first days firing I issued instructions for sight
testing. I did not repeat this instruction daily as this is a Standard
Operational Procedure.

On the morning of Thu 13 Feb 86 I satisfied myself that the mortars
were firing on target. To the best of my recollection only a slight
ad justment was needed to X12, this was fired and then a second round to
confirm the fall of shot. Having re recorded the targets I prepared an AB
545, Artillery Fire Plan Proforma for the incoming MFC (Mortar Fire
Controller) at Op, a copy being handed to the Coy MFC and another to-
@ the mortar range safety officer.

76~
STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

T o i BT A T b -,



STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

Continuation of Statement of: — Case No: 06022/6

On this form I specified the targets, which mortars were to fire on
targets and instructions as to when fire was to commence and be checked.

I briefed the OPMFC, @) vhilst QN bricfed the Coy MFC,
KRR

I had issued fire mission orders to the mortars who were waiting for
the order to fire from the MFCs, who had been briefed and could exercise
their own judgement as to the rate of fire required by the Coy Comdr. The
mortars fired at the command of the MFCs from Qi) to GNP 2-d
then to the mortar line. The fire mission order given was for each pair of
mortars to engage their respective targets simultaneously. Following this
the Bangalore Torpedo was placed and the barbed wire breached, at which the
fire mission order repeated. The advancing troops were still behind the
start line and did not move until firing on X11 and X12 was completed.

~

As the troops advanced across the start line 81 mm mortar fire was
switched to X13 and 3 rounds fired from each mortar 'for effect”. Having
completed that fire mission the mortar line was standing by to repeat the
mission.

I was monitoring the progress of the pl advancing on to the target
X13, as I was aware that the mortar line was prepared to fire. I became
aware of a group of people gathering around X11, but as I was not aware
that anything untoward had happened there I paid little attention to it.
The troops moving on X13 were now moving towards what would have been the
danger area and after speaking to —the order to check fire on the
mortar line was given. I was not paying attention to the time but it would
now have been about 1400 hrs and the attack had been in progress for 16 to
20 minutes.

It was then that I became aware that there had been an accident
involving casualties on X1l1. The order 'Stand clear' was given to the
mortar line and I was later instructed to go to the mortar line, with Qi
@ P ARA and check the weapomns.

1 would have arrived at the mortar line some 20 to 30 minutes later.
Having obtained the relevant Information regarding the bearing and
elevation of the target X13 myself and “ then checked that these
were corrected applied to the sights and that the sights were correctly
aligned with the aiming posts. Having done so we then checked with a
compass that all barrels were on the same bearing.

Everything on the mortar line was correct.

Signed: QD

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1800 hrs Mon 17
Mar 86 at Bulford. i

signed: (INNND
Wk

RMP (SIB) °
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: o Forenames: _
Service No: — Rank: -

Type of Engagement: - Height:
Date & Place of Birth: (GGG
Full Unit Address: Mortar P1, Sp Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford.
Date to leave a.Command: NK b. Service: Mar 2002

This statement,(consisting of 5 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true. '

Dated the 22nd day of March 1986 Signed:~

I ani’—at present serving with the Mortar P1,
Sp Coy, 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford. I am employed as a Mortar Fire
Controller (MFC).

On Thu 13 Feb 86 about 1315 hrs I was detailed to act as the Op
MFC, for a Coy live firing exercise, conducted in the Mjolfjell Valley,
Norway, which involved A Coy 1 PARA. Present at the OP with me were
G - G of the Mortar P1l. (U 2s acting as 0IC
safety.

When operating in the field the method used is that one MFC, in
this case accompanies the Coy Comdr and relays instructions for
mortar fire from the OC to me. As targets had previously been adjusted
and recorded, on an AB 545 Artillery Fire Plan Proforma, by ‘
there was no need to adjust on to the targets, when fire was called for.
All requests for mortar support were referred to i D:or-
verification before I passed the order to the mortar line for firing to
begin.

The OP in which I was situated was to the left of a place called
the Satebu Hut. Grouped around this hut was fire support team of Sp Coy
and elements of A Coy fire support team, including a 2 inch mortar and 84
mm Anti Tank Guns. :

The first fire mission order I received was to fire five rounds for
effect on both of the first two objectives designated as X11 and X12,
simultaneously. I called this fire in.

A bangalore torpedo was then laid in a barbed wire entanglement
between the hut and the first objective, X11 and prior to this actually
detonating the fire mission order was repeated. On each occasion I
counted all twenty rounds down onto the two objectives X11 and X12.
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Continuation of Statement of: — Case No: 06022/6

A Coy began its advance and another fire mission order was passed to
me calling for four mortars to fire 3 rounds each for effect on the
objective X13.

I passed this order to the mortar line and then the rounds began
falling on the target. I counted all of the rounds down. They were all on
target.

As the last round landed on X13 I heard the A Coy signaller, who was
with QSN the OC, say something like 'there's a grenade gone off
down there'. I put down my binoculars and looked down into the valley. At
the nearest bunker of the first objective, X11, I could see a group of
people lying around the bunker. I looked away and looked back again almost
immediately and it was then that I realised that people were injured as
they did not appear to have moved. Other people were also running towards
them. ~

The mortars had been left at readiness to repeat their last fire
mission order, that is 3 rounds each for effect on X13. As the pl
advancing on ¥X13 was still pushing on toward its objective I ordered 'check
firing' on the instructions of both il and :

G :hcn told me, some minutes later, to pass the order to
the mortar line to 'stand clear', shortly after which he left my location
telling me he was going to the mortar line.

It would have been sometime later, when people had cleared the area,
that I took a laser range finder and on the instructions of
lased the distance between the Satebu Hut and the bunker where the accident
had happened. The distance was 160 mtrs. I did not measure the distance
to any of the other objectives although I would calculate the distances as
about 260 mtrs to X12 and about 560 mtrs to X13. When viewed from the
Satubu Hut X11 was at 12 o'clock or 6400 mils. X12 was to the left about
10 o'clock some 6000 mils. X13 was spread out a lot more, the central
point would have been about 1 o'clock or 200 mils.

As I had my headset on and was observing the target X13 I cannot
comment on whether the 2 inch mortar at the Satebu Hut was firing or not.
I was paying attention to the fall of the mortar rounds.

My mortar training has been restricted to Bn training. I am a
mortarman lst class and have attended Bn MFCs course which I passed I am
due to attend an MFC course at the Support Weapons Wing Neatheravon in June

86.
Signed: —

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1000 hrs Sat 22
Mar 86 at Bulford.

signed: (D
gy

RMP (SIB)

-
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname:

LY N Forenames: s
Service No: eRve o Rank: E 2]

Type of Engagement: Height:

Date & Place of Birth: —

Full Unit Address: Sp Coy, 1 PARA, Bulford Camp, Salisbury, Wilts.
Date to leave a.Command: b. Service:

This statement,(consisting of 8 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything wirich I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 16th day of February 1986 signed: (D

~

I an Q) - present serving with my unit om
Ex 'HARDFALL SOUTH' 86 in Norway.

On the afternmoon of Thu 13 Feb 86 I was involved in a live firing
Coy exercise at 'Range Valley' Mjolfjell, Norway.

During the exercise I was employed as the 'Alpha' Mortar Fire
Controller and as such was used in support of A Coy, 1 PARA who were
carrying out the exercise. Under my control I had 4 8lmm mortars.

My qualification for the employment as a Mrtar Fire Controller is
the Mortar Fire Controller and Command Post Operator's course. I attended
the course at the Support Weapon Wing, Netheravon, Wilts, in Nov 80. As a
result of the course I gained a B grade pass. .

My responsibilities as the MFC for this particular live firing
exercise was to advise QU the OC of A Coy 1 PARA, who were
engaged on the exercise. It is my job to advise Qo 211 safety
aspects about the mortars he intended to use, in this case four 8lmm
mortars, what ammunition was to be used, the position of the mortars, how
they were to be used, what targets could be fired on and also when the
mortars could be used bearing in mind the safety aspect of firing mortars
in support of soldiers in the exercise area who may be in potential danger
from the firing of the mortars.

My tasking for the exercise was to position my 4 8lmm mortars
approximately 2 kilometres South West of the target we were to engage in
the exercise area. Two of these targets were X11 and X12. The mortars
were positioned about 1000 hrs Thu 13 Rb 86 ready for use after 'H' hour,
the start of the exercise, which was to be at 1330 hrs Thu 13 Feb 86.
During the exercise I was to be positioned close to the actual area of the
exercise and in order to give orders to the soldiers manning the four
mortars I was using a radio to speak to them.

80~
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Continuation of Statement of: — Case No: 06022/6

In the normal course of events the fire orders for the mortars are
as follows:

I am given an Artillery Fire Plan Proforma which outlines what my
tasking will be. Once this has been noted I am able to plan where the
mortars are, how many are needed, what the targets are and how much
ammunition I need. On the actual day of the exercise I was close to the
observation post looking over the exercise area. I had spoken to Qi)
@ 0C A Coy, and told him that I had decided to use 2 mortars to
engage the first target (X11) and 2 mortars to engage the second target
(X12). I also told R I was ready and had checked with my mortars
that they were ready to carry on.

I then walked down with (Uil covards the edge of the exercise
area. This would have been shortly after 1330 hrs Thu 13 Feb 86. ()
—saia, "Fire it now.”™ I then used the radio I had to speak . my
'Bravo Operator', il of ny unit, who was situated in the observation
post overlooking the exercise area. I said to him, "Fire, cancel at my
command”. I then heard— relay this message to the mortars who in
turn repeated the message back to_ to indicate that they had
received the message and also act as a safety precaution so that I know
that messages I pass to fire mortars via— are correctly received.

I should mention at this time that the mortars were aware that on the
command "Fire cancel at my command”, they would fire five mortar rounds

from each mortar. Therefore a total of 20 rounds were fired, 10 at each
target, in this case X11 and X12. The mortar line then told me, via QB
@l Rounds complete”, which means all 20 rounds were on their way into
the targets. I then said to the mortar line, via_ "At my command
repeat”. The mortar line acknowledged this order and stated that they were -
ready to repeat the exact fire order again.

I then informed _that the mortar line was ready to fire
again. The rounds that were fired all impacted into the target areas some
50 seconds after I had given the order "Fire, cancel at my command”. I
only saw five rounds impact into the target area X11l. However, if all 20
rounds had not impacted into the target area —would have told me.
As it wasdsaid nothing to me, which is normal procedure to
indicate that all rounds had impacted.

then informed me that he wished the next salvo of 20
mortar rounds to be fired when the Bangalore Torpedo was detonated. At
this time I should explain that I had moved to a position close to the
exercise area observation post.

The exercise area was below and infront of me slightly to my right
and 200 metres away was target X11l. Slightly to my left and about 220
metres away was target X12. Directly infront of me about 600 metres away
was a further target, X13. Also directly infront of me but very slightly
to my right and about 100 metres away was a barbed wire barricade which had
to be negotiated by soldiers from A €oy who were to attack both X11 and
X12. In order to breach the barbed wire for the advacing soldiers who were
infront of me the Bangalore Torpedo was detonated and the soldiers
advanced, away from me, through the gap in the wire. They then split into
two groups each group heading for the objectives X11 and X12.
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Continuation of Statement of: — Case No: 06022/6

Prior to the Bangalore Torpedo being detonated (il said he
wanted the next salvo of mortars fired as the Bangalore Torpedo was
detonated. However, bearing in mind that the mortars took all in all 50
seconds to reach the objectives then the soldiers may have been in danger
1f they had advanced too quickly towards the objectives. Therefore, Maj
Trigger's request was overruled and gave the order to the mortar
line to open fire with the 20 round salvo before the Bangalor Torpedo was
detonated.

The procedures were carried out agalin as per the orders for the
first salvo and then I gave the warning order to the mortar line to prepare
for firing again, this time onto the objective X13.

I should add that I saw all 20 rounds from the second salvo impact
onto their abjectives (X11 & X12).

I then watched what the soldiers in front of me were doing and saw 2
Sect each attack X11 and X12. A third Sect which had got stuck in a water
pool at the bottom of an ice shute had by this time extricated themselves
and had carried out a right flanking movement and were heading towards X13
which was about 460 metres away from where they were at that time.

then gave me the order to fire 3 rounds from each mortar
onto X13 instead of the originally agreed five, which I did. After doing
so I counted 12 impacts onto X13 which had been fired from my mortar line.

I then gave the order 'At my command repeat', which was acknowledged
and then watched the soldiers on the exercise area who by this time had
taken their respective objectives.

As I was watching, (JSSSl vho was stood next to me on my right
said something very similar to "What the fucking hell was that.” He then
said something like, "Look Sir there's bodies been blown back there”. T
think (QEEEEND vas addressing QU vho vas our pl comdr.

I then looked towards X1l's location and saw a ball of black smoke
in the actual location of the bunker. Because of the distance between
myself and the bunker I could not make out much detail apart from seeing
the black ball of smoke and the sound of an explosion. From my position
the explosion didn't sound very loud and I couldn't say what kind of
ammunition caused the sound of the explosion. From my experience of
operating 8lmm mortars it didn't sound like the detonation of a 81 mm
mortar round. I should also add that at the time of the incident (D
was using binoculars but whether or not he saw the explosion through the
binoculars I don't know.

I then told — to give "Check fire™ to the mortar line which
he did. “Check fire", means to stop firing.

I should add that about 1315°hrs Thu 13 Feb 86, I met Sgt Danny
Lyden from A Coy 1 PARA, as he was on his way into the exercise area. We
talked about the ammunition he said he had in his bergen which he was
complaining about because of its weight. However, as to what kind of
ammunition was in the bergen Sgt Lyden didn't say- ’
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Continuation of Statement of: — Case No: 06022/6

While up at the observation post (N r2dioc operator
received a message which he relayed to G 1t vas about
casualties from Xll's location and shortly after the people in the post ran
down to X1l. By the time we reached it, soldiers were giving medical aid
to four soldiers who where lying on the ground injured. One of the
soldiers was Sgt Lyden. However, what his injuries were I've no idea.
Shortly after the casualties were evacuated by helicopter.

Apart from the mortar rounds that I had ordered to be fired onto
locations X11, X12 and X13 I was unaware of any other mortar rounds being
fired onto or near to those three locatiomns.

~ Signed: (D

~
The above statement was recorded and signatures witnessed by me at

The Oppheim Hotel, Oppheim, Norway about 2000 hrs Sun 16 Feb 86.

~

signed: (ENEGEGND
o

RMP
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Case No: 06022/6

Surname? Forenames:

el
Rank: -

deight:

Service No:

Type of Engagement:

Date & Place of Bircth:
Full Unit Address: A Coy 1 PARA, Picton Bks, Bulford
Date to leave a.Command: May 87 b. Service: Aug 96

This statement,(consisting of 3 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowinyg chac, if it is tendered

in evidente, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

. Dated the 28th day of  August 198 6 Signed: NN

I amqat present serving with A Coy 1 PARA, where I am
employed as a GPMG SF Gun Controller.

I was operating in this role whilst deployed on exercise Hardfall on
13 Feb 86 in the Mjollfjell Valley Norway. I was the controller of 3 Pl
GPMG which was manned by (i D the Vo 1 and QNN -
No 2. The gun was mounted on its SF pulk. The pulk is a sledge like item
fitted with a GPMG SF mounting which 1s then secured by four stakes prior
to firing. This gun was located on the ridge to the left of the Satebu
Hut and the approach to the waterfall.

When we arrived at the assembly area we were briefed by the OC,-
that we were to provide suppressive fire on the first objective

until such time as a bangalore torpedo had breached the barbed wire in
front of us. After this we were to change our fire and fire upon the second
objective. Additionally I was told that the target would be changed at
the time that I saw 3 pl pass through the breach in the wire and begin their
attack: on this position. I was then to direct my fire across the valley
at fig 11 targets on the far side of the valley between the first and
second objective.

We were taken forward by —and given an area in which to
site the gun. also pointed out to me the objectives on the
ground. With the start of the exercise my gun fired as briefed. We
were firing belted tracer (red) one in five rounds. As we did not have
time to register the targets the C2 sight and aiming post was not used
and we fired using Iron sights. I do not recall receiving any instructions

.to that effect. A (G from the patrol pl acted as the safety

supervisor on my gun. At no time after the bangalore torpedc had
detonated did my gun fire at or over the bunkers of the first position.

I can recall two other GPMGs being sited at the Satebu Hut, the first
which was located behind and to the left of mine was operated by (Gl
with his gun team. The other GPMG was from the patrols pl and this
was deployed in the light role, to my right near the hut. ’

I did not see the accident at the first objective. I was aware of a
2 inch mortar operated by _and being located at the
Satebu Hut but I do not know if it fired, when it fired or at what targets.

8l
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Continuation of Statement of: (i D case ho: 06022/6

I do not know if there was an examination of my GPMG by a REME armourer
or not prior to the exercise.

Signed: D

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1107 hrs on Thu
28 Aug 86 at Bulford.

Signed: UIENEGED

RMP !SIB)
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STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: vl Forenames: PRcan sl
Service No: B L Rank: Wasly

Type o.f Engagement: e canglh Height:

Date & Place of Birth: (D

Full Unit Address: Depot PARA and AB Forces, Browning Bks, Aldershot
Date to leave a.Command: NK b. Service: NA

This statement,(consisting of 5 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidenc2z, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 3rd day of October 1986 Signed: GNEEENEND

I am — Arms School Corps. I have been a
member of the SASC since 1964. 1 am qualified Advisor on Infantry Weapons
encompassing Small Arms, Medium Mortars and Heavy Anti Tank Guns.

On 14 Feb 86 I was tasked to attend the scene of a fatal range
accident in the Mjolfjell Valley Norway, to assist (il (SIB) and

G ::0C

At the scene I spoke to various witnesses including —
PARA, the OC Sp Coy 1 PARA, the exercise planner. The nature of the
exercise and locations of various weapon positions and objectives were
explained to me. From my observations and discussion with witnesses it
became apparent that safety regulations involving the planning and
preparation of the exercise, the siting of weapons group and general
execution as required by Infantry Training Vol IV Pamphlet No 21 Range
Safety and Conduct had unot been observed. Specifically:

Failure to produce detailed written exercise instructions.
Failure to adequately brief and rehearse safety supervisors.
The employment of unqualified safety supervisors.

Failure to apply the safety criteria in the siting and firing
of all weapons.

The use of the 2 inch mortar firing HE bombs which is
specifically forbidden during field firing exercise by Inf Trg
Vol 4 Para 21 Sect 36 Para 1262 and Inf Trg Vol 1 (old
series) Para 8. The light mortar (3 inch) Para 129.

6. I consider that the firing of this weapon under the existing
climatic conditions was particulary foolhardy due to the high
risk of base plate sinkage or slipage.

&S W
s o

w
°

During my observations at the scene of the incident I noted the
presence of a small tree some 2 metres to the right of the rear of the
bunker and 2 metres forward. }
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Continuation of Statement of: _ Case No: 06022/6

There was a fork at the top of the tree which bore signs of damage. One
fork had broken off and the other was splintered. From my observations I
was unable to determine whether the damage was due to small arms fire or
shrapnel or a combination of both. Nor could I ascertain when the damage
occurred as the presence in the area of mortar strikes combined with the
knowledge that exercises had taken place during the days immediately
preceding the incident made apparent that damage could have occurred at any
time.

I was also shown the firing position of another 2 inch mortar, which
had been operating from a weapon's pit some 20 metres or so to the right of
a place called the Satebu Hut. This weapon was known to have been firing
to support the assault through the barbed wire and onto the objectives and
was allegedly still firing at the time of the incident. I was also shown
the positions occupied by SF GPMGs, which were to the left of the Satebu
Hut and the 84mm Anti Tank Guns and 81 mm Mortars.

From these positions and my discussions with witnesses I was of the
opinion that the accident involved a shrapnel producing weapon I therefore
investigated the firing of the 8lmm and 2 inch mortars. I was satisfied
that the 81 mm mortar was not firing at the time of the incident. While I
cannot exclude the possibility that a round fired from the 2 inch mortar
operating at the Satebu Hut caused the fatality, although I consider this
to be unlikely, I am of the opinion that the 2 inch mortar being operated
at the scene of the incident was responsible. I am convinced that a muzzle.
premature occurred on this mortar caused by:

1. Faulty Ammunition

2. Error of Drill

3. A combination of both the above.

4. The round impacted some object or being struck by small arms
fire.

I have handed to—(SIB) certified true copies of Inf

Trg Vol 1V, Pamp_Zl; Section 36 Para 126 and Inf Trg Vol 1 (old series)
Pamp 8, para 129, these are labelled TW/1 and TW/2 respectively and I have
signed those labels.

From Inf Trg Vol 4 Pamp 22 Range Comstruction and Regulations I have
provided 4G ith a certified copy of the} inch mortar HE bomb
trace now labelled TW/3. I have signed that label.

Signed: —

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1300 hrs Fri 3
Oct 86 at Aldershot.

Signed:

RMP (SIB)
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STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: [ Forenames: GGG
Service No: aywsnnllh Rank : Wl

Type of Engagement: Wil Height:
Date & Place of Birth: QG

Full Unit Address: DLSA Vauxhall Barracks, Didcot, Oxon, 0X1ll 7ES
Date to leave a.Command: 290687 b. Service: 290687
This statement,(consisting of pages each signed by me) is true to the

best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have W1lfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 19th day of September 1986 signed: (NG

~

— RAOC employed at DLSA Didcot.

On 6 Mar 86 I received from— RAOC, the following items
labelled as indicated:

CN/1 - Metal Sharpnel Fragment Left Foot

CN/2 - Metal Sharpnel Fragment Heart

CN/3 - Metal Sharpnel Fragment left Upper Shoulder
CN/4 =~ Metal Sharpnel Fragment

CN/5 = Metal Sharpnel Fragment Webbing Side Pouch

I retained these items in my possession until 7 Mar 86 when I
handed them to “{Aoc of my unit.

I have signed those labels.

signed: ENEEGEG_—G

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1555 hrs on
Fri 19 Sep 86 at Didcot. :

signed: D
kil

RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Service No: _ Rank:

Type of Engagement: (i NN Height:
Date & Place of Birth: (NN

Surname: sl Forenames: (i)
Wl

Full Unit Address: DLSA Vauxhall Barracks, Didcot, Oxon.
Date to leave a.Command: Jun 88 b. Service: 20/11/1993
This statement, (consisting of =~ pages each signed by me) is true to the

best of my knowledge and belief and T make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 19th  day of September 1986 Signed:—

1 am~ employed at DLSA Didcot.

On 7 Mar 86 I received fron(Qul® :hc following items
labelled as indicated: '

CN/1 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment Left Foot

CN/2 = Metal Shrapnel Fragment Heart

CN/3 =~ Metal Shrapnel Fragment Left Upper Shoulder
CN/4 =~ Metal Shrapnel Fragment

CN/5 = Metal Shrapnel Fragment Webbing Side Pouch

1 retained these items in my possession until 11 Mar 86 when I

handed them to CEEEEEG— R AOC -

I have signed those labels.

Signed: (D

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1600 hrs on
Fri 19 Sep 86 at Didcot.

signed: (NG
- dmeai®

RMP (SIB)
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STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname:

 ERvRasARE Forenames: (i ENNND
Service No: syl Rank: FCof

Type of Engagement:

Date & Place of Birth: (GGG

Height:

Full Unit Address: Directorate of Land Service Ammunition, Vauxhall
Bks, Didcot, Oxon 0X11l 7ES
Date to leave a.Command: 1 Oct 86 b. Service: Army
This statement, (consisting of pages each signed by me) is true to the

best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the 22ud day of September 1986 Signed: QEEEEG—_—

S

I an QNN - .0C cuployed at DLSA Didcot.

On 11 Mar 86 I received from (i RAOC the following items
labelled as indicated:

CN/1 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment Left Foot

CN/2 = Metal Shrapnel Fragment Heart

CN/3 = Metal Shrapnel Fragment Left Upper Shoulder
CN/4 -~ Metal Shrapnel Fragment (N

CN/5 = Metal Shrapnel Fragment Webbing Side Pouch

I retained these items in my possession until 12 Mar 86 when I

handed them to (D RARDE.

I have signed those labels.

Signed: QD
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: oS Forenames: (N

Age of Witness (if over 21 enter “"over 217): Over 21 years
Occupation: Superintendent MP 1 Div
Address: P 1 Div RARDE, Fort Halstead

Identity Card No: Status:

This statement,(consisting of pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, i1f it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated the ~ 19th day of Sep 1986 Signed: Rkl

1 am_ employed at RARDE Fort Halstead.

On 12 Mar 86 I received frow(Qj il 0152 the following items
labelled as indicated:

CN/1 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment Left Foot

CN/2 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment Heart

CN/3 = Metal Shrapnel Fragment Left Upper Shoulder
'CN/4 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment ‘

CN/5 = Metal Shrapnel Fragment Webbing Side Pouch

I retained these items in my possession until 24 Mar 86 when I
handed them to( D =ARDE.

I have signed those labels.

Signed: CNNEENND

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1000 hrs on
Fri 19 Sep 86 at Fort Halstead

signed: D
Sondl

RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: E Y Forenames: (NN

Age of Witness (if over 21 enter “over 21"): Uver 21 years
Occupation: Professional & Technical Officer
Address: RARDE, Fort Halstead

Identity Card No: Status:

This statement,(consisting of pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

Dated tne = 18th day of Sep 1986 Signed: dbnesavih
i am—employed at GC3 RARDE.

On 24 Mar 86 I received from _of RARDE the following items
labelled as indicated: ’

CN/1 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment Left Foot

CN/2 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment Heart

CN/3 ~ Hetal Shrapnel Fragment Left Upper bhoulder
CN/4 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment

CN/5 = Metal Shrapnel Fragment Webbing Side Pouch

I retained these items in my possession until 25 Mar 86 when I

handed them to —{ARDE.

I have signed those labels.

Signed: (D

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 13% hrs on
Thu 18 Sep 86 at Fort Halstead

Signed: QU
PP

RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: WARGRAE Forenames: NEEEED

Age of Witness (if over 21 enter "over 21"): Over 21 years
Occupation: Senior Scientific Officer

Address: RARDE, Fort Halstead

Identity Card No: Status:

This statement,(consisting of 2 pages each signed by me) is true to the
best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true. '

Dated the 18th day of Sep 1986 Signed: —

1 au{—; employed as the Senior Scientific Officer, in the
Metal Physics Dept (PM 1 Div) RARDE Fort Halstead.

On 25 Mar 86 I received from _RARDE the following items

labelled as indicated:

CN/1 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment Left Foot

CN/2 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment Heart

CN/3 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment Left Upper Shoulder
CN/4 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment

CN/5 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment Webbing Side Pouch

I retained these items in my possession until 26 Mar 86 when I
handed them to (Mot ny department.

I have signed those labels.
Signed: (D

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1146 hrs omn
Thu 18 Sep 86 at Fort Halstead

Signed:

RMP (SIB)
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STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: el Forenanmes: (D

Age of Witness (if over 21 enter "over 21"): Over 21 years
Occupation: Higher Scientific Officer
Address: PM 1 Div RARDE Fort Halstead
Identity Card No: Status:
This statement,(consisting of pages each signed by me) is true to the

best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered
in evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it
anything which I know to be false or do not believe to be true.

~

Dated the 18th day of Sep 1986 Signed: Ssacl

I aﬁx— employed as a Higher Scientific Officer at PM 1 Div
RARUE Fort dalstead. '

On 26 dMar 86 I received from (N of ~y Department the
following items labelled as indicated:

CN/L - 0Metal Shrapnel Fragment Left Foot

CiN/2 -~ Metal Shrapnel Fragment Heart

CN/3 = Metal Shrapnel Fragment Left Upper Shoulder
CN/4 - Metal Shrapnel Fragment .

ChN/5 = Metal Shrapnel Fragment Webbing Side Pouch

I have signed those labels and retained the items in my
possession.

Signed: (EEND

Statement recorded and signatures witnessed by me at 1105 hrs on
Thu 18 Sep 86 at Fort Halstead

Signed: NG
-

RMP (SIB)



STAFF IN CONFIDENCE

STATEMENT
Case No: 06022/6

Surname: R Forenames: —

Age of Witness (if over 21 enter “"over 21"): Over 21 years
Occupation: Government Service

Address: RARDE, Fort Halstead, Stevenoaks, Kent.
Identity Card No: Status:

This statement,(consisting of 2 p<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>